
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 19, 2017 • Page 1 of 4 

MEETING OF THE 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 
TEMPLE, TEXAS 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 19, 2017 
5:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER
1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting. 
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to three 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  

III. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS
3. Recognize Wendell Williams, past Chair of Board of Directors for the Temple Health &

Bioscience Economic Development District.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 

4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate
resolutions and ordinances for each of the following:



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 19, 2017 • Page 2 of 4 

Minutes 
 

(A) January 5, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 
 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids 

 
(B) 2017-8509-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal contract with the 

South Central Planning and Development Commission, in the estimated amount of 
$60,000 for the use of an online management software for Permitting, Planning & Zoning, 
Land Management, and Code Enforcement. 
 

(C) 2017-8510-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one rack of 
modules for the Membrane Water Treatment Facility from SCINOR Water America, LLC, 
New York, NY in the amount of $117,000. 
 

(D) 2017-8511-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of three rights-of-
way necessary for the construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and conversion 
of the private road Daniels Drive into a public street and authorizing closing costs 
associated with the purchase, in an amount not to exceed $9,000. 
 

(E) 2017-8512-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right of way 
necessary for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorizing 
closing costs associated with the purchase in an amount not to exceed $352,000. 
 

(F) 2017-8513-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC in the amount not to exceed of 
$42,500 for a Water and Wastewater cost of service study. 
 

(G) 2017-8514-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Playcraft Systems, a division of Krauss Craft, Inc., of Grants Pass, OR, in the amount of 
$180,560.54 for the purchase and installation of a play system with shade structure for 
Oak Creek Park. 
 

(H) 2017-8515-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Vortex USA, Inc. of Carrollton, in the amount of $402,926.41 for the construction of a 
splashpad at Jaycee Neighborhood Park. 
 

(I) 2017-8516-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Shaw Integrated Solutions and Cen-Tex Tile & Floor Center in an amount not to 
exceed$111,592 for flooring replacement at the Library utilizing the National Joint Powers 
Alliance cooperative. 
 

(J) 2017-8517-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an agreement for yearly service 
through AT&T Corporation, of Dallas, in the amount of $90,000 for voice and data 
services. 
 

(K) 2017-8518-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kimley-Horn of Austin, in an amount not to exceed $49,300 for 
engineering services required for the traffic signal design at the intersections of North 
Kegley Road at Airport Road and West Adams Avenue at Greenview Drive. 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 19, 2017 • Page 3 of 4 

(L) 2017-8519-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an agreement for Right of Way
Procurement with the State of Texas for right of way necessary for improvements to FM
2483.

(M) 2017-8520-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit an
application and accept funding through the Texas A&M Forest Services TIFMAS Grant
Assistance Program, in the amount of $2,250 for training tuition.

Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 

(N) 2017-4817: SECOND READING - Consider an ordinance adopting the Temple Parks and
Recreation Youth Standards of Care.

(O) 2017-4818: SECOND READING - TMED-FY-17-01 – Consider adopting an ordinance
amending Ordinance No. 2016-4749, for a TMED Planned Development District site plan
on .85 +/- acres, Lot 11, Block 1, Highline Addition, to allow for a drive-through restaurant
located at 2110 South 31st Street, as well as to amend the overall development/site plan
to consider allowing a public sidewalk in lieu of a private trail.

(P) 2017-4819: SECOND READING - Consider adopting an ordinance reapproving the
extension of the life of City of Temple Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone
Number One to December 31, 2062.

Misc. 

(Q) 2017-8521-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit an
application and accept funding through a Body-worn Camera Program through the
Criminal Justice Division of the Governor’s Office.

(R) 2017-8522-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a requested exception to the
Parkland Dedication Fees for North Gate phase 2.

(S) 2017-8523-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal
year 2016-2017.

V. REGULAR AGENDA

ORDINANCES – FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING 

5. 2017-4820: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance
authorizing the annexation of 60.33 acres of land Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract 692, Bell
County, Texas, a portion of a 86.91 acre tract conveyed as Tract Four to Roy Skaff, as the
Independent Executor of the estate of Leonard Apt, in Document No. 2016-00009203, Official
Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas.

6. 2017-4821: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-04: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing rezoning from Two Family zoning district to Commercial zoning district,
Lot 4, Block 011, Temple Heights subdivision, located at 1107 South 53rd Street, Temple.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 19, 2017 • Page 4 of 4 

7. 2017-4822: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-06: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from the Commercial zoning district to the Multi-Family Two 
zoning district, on 0.928 +/- acres, Lots 1-6, Pt. 7, Eastern Hills Subdivision, located at 715 North 
20th Street, Temple. 

 
8. 2017-4823: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - A-FY-16-10: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing abandonment and conveyance of the entire 20 foot wide alley in Block 3 
of the Keaton Addition Subdivision, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas. 

 
9. 2017-4824: PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-05 (WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT):  Consider an 

ordinance adopting a rezoning from Agricultural to Planned Development-Single Family One 
requiring development/site plan approval, per Unified Development Code Section 3.4, on 15.662 
+/- acres, 39-lots, 1-block, residential subdivision, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract 
No. 5, located at 6352 Jupiter Drive. 

 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
10. P-FY-17-03 & A-FY-17-03: Consider adopting resolutions: 

(A)  2017-8524-R: Approving the Final Plat of Santa Fe Plaza West, an 11.007 +/- acre, 9 
 lot, 3 block, non-residential subdivision, being a replat which embraces multiple lots within 
 the Original Town of Temple subdivision and Moores Railway Addition subdivision plats; 
 

(B)  2017-8525-R: Authorizing abandonment of all or portions of service alleyways originally 
 dedicated within the Original Town of Temple and Moore’s Railroad Addition subdivision 
 plats; 
 

(C)  2017-8526-R: Authorizing abandonment of all or portions of public rights-of way 
 originally dedicated as West Avenue A, West Avenue B, South 5th Street, South 7th Street, 
 and South 9th Street within the Original Town of Temple subdivision plat; and  
 

(D)  2017-8527-R: Authorizing abandonment of all or portions of public rights-of-way 
 originally dedicated as West Avenue A, South 9th Street, and South 11th Street within the 
 Moore’s Railway Addition subdivision plat. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
5:00 PM, on Friday, January 13, 2017. 
 
 
_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) January 5, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
January 5, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 

Item #4(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal contract with the South 
Central Planning and Development Commission, in the estimated amount of $60,000 for the use of an 
online management software for Permitting, Planning & Zoning, Land Management, and Code 
Enforcement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City has been using a solution called OneSolution for Community Development 
for the past twelve years, but the software, while it has served its purpose, will no longer be supported 
and enhanced by Sungard Public Sector, the company that provides the City’s current financial 
software, Naviline. 
 
Since this product will no longer be enhanced and supported, we are taking this opportunity to utilize a 
new product to enhance the entire development process for our employees and customers as we are 
proposing replacing this aging technology with a product called MyGovernmentOnline, which will 
include applications for Permitting, Planning & Zoning, Land Management, and Code Enforcement. 
This new product will provide more efficient workflow through its integrated building permits, planning, 
and code enforcement software. MyGovernmentOnline will also interface with our current financial 
software, NaviLine, a Sungard Public Sector product. 
 
The software will allow staff to create a customized workflow that will best fit the needs of our 
development community. The software enables Mobility/In-Field Usage: View, schedule and modify 
inspections and record notes while in the field from laptops, iPads, Smart Phone and tablet devices. 
This software is subscription based for unlimited users on the cloud and will be charged a subscription 
price of approximately $50,000 per year.  The first year expenditure in an estimated amount of $60,000 
includes implementation costs. 
 
A review group made up of the Planning Director, Assistant Planning Director, Assistant City Manager, 
IT Director, IT Project Manager, Permits Supervisor, Chief Building Official, Development Coordinator, 
Deputy City Attorney and Engineering reviewed four software solutions that will interface with Naviline, 
and the MyGovernmentOnline software was determined to provide the best solution for the Planning, 
Permits and Inspections areas. This software solution is also used by San Marcos, Georgetown, Belton, 
Harker Heights, Cedar Park, Leander and Pflugerville which provides the City a strong regional user 
base to share information, ideas and suggestions. 



01/19/17 
Item #4(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is appropriated for the use of this software in the amount of $60,000, project 
101527, as follows: 
 

 110-5919-519-6221  520-5000-535-6221  Total 
Project Budget  $                 45,000    $              30,000    $      75,000  

Encumbered/Committed to Date                             -                             -                     -  
MyGovernment Online Software                    (36,000)                   (24,000)           (60,000) 

Remaining Project Funds  $                   9,000    $                6,000    $      15,000  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Contract 
Resolution  
  



1 

 
INTERLOCAL CONTRACT  

FOR LICENSING SCPDC SOFTWARE 
 

Sec. 1.  Parties and Purpose 
  
1.1.  The Capital Area Council of Governments ("CAPCOG") is a regional planning commission 
and political subdivision of the State of Texas organized and operating under the Texas Regional 
Planning Act of 1965, Chapter 391 of the Local Government Code, as amended, and is a 
signatory Agent for Licensor.   

 
1.2.  The City of Temple, Texas (“Licensee”) is a Texas home-rule city.            
 
1.3. The South Central Planning and Development Commission (Licensor) (“SCPDC”) is 
a regional planning commission and Political Subdivision of the State of Louisiana, 
domiciled in Terrebonne Parish.  The district was established in 1973 and created by law 
in 1978 under state act 472.  The statute allows its member governmental entities to come 
together through SCPDC to provide long range planning, act as a state and federal 
liaison, provide guidance and study to current issues affecting government, and provide 
services to business and citizens. 
 
1.4.   SCPDC has created MyPermitNow, MyProjectNow, MyAddressNow, Inspection 
Anywhere and MyGovernmentOnline software (the “SCPDC Software”) and this contract is 
entered into among Licensee, and SCPDC  under chapter 791 of the Government Code to license 
Contractor to use the SCPDC Software under certain terms and conditions.  CAPCOG has been 
granted a limited power of attorney by SCPDC to execute this contract on SCPDC’s behalf. 

 
 
      This INTERLOCAL CONTRACT USE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is entered 
into by and between Licensor and Licensee, and describes the terms and conditions pursuant to 
which Licensor shall license to Licensee the use of, and provide support for, certain Software (as 
defined below). 
 
      In consideration of the mutual promises and upon the terms and conditions set forth 
below, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 2.    DEFINITIONS 
 
2.1   "CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION" means this Agreement, including all of its terms, 
and all its Schedules, any addenda hereto signed by both parties, all Software listings, 
Documentation, information, data, drawings, benchmark tests, specifications, trade secrets, 
object code and machine-readable copies of the Software, source code relating to the Software, 
and any other proprietary information supplied to Licensee by SCPDC, or by Licensee to 
SCPDC and clearly marked as "confidential information", including all items defined as 
"confidential information" in any other agreement between Licensee  and SCPDC whether 
executed prior to or after the date of this Agreement. 
 
2.2   "DOCUMENTATION" means any on-line help files, instruction manuals, operating 
instructions, user manuals, and specifications provided by SCPDC which describe the use of the 
Software and which either accompany the Software or are provided to Licensee at any time. 
 



2 

2.3   "EFFECTIVE DATE" means the later of the dates on which Licensee and SCPDC have 
signed this Agreement. 
 
2.4   "EQUIPMENT" means the computer system, including peripheral equipment and 
operating system software, specified in Schedule B. 
 
2.5   "MAJOR AND MINOR UPDATES" shall mean updates, if any, to the SCPDC Software. 
Major Updates involve additions of substantial functionality while Minor Updates do not. Major 
Updates are designated by a change in the number to the left of the decimal point of the number 
appearing after the product name while Minor Updates are designated by a change in such 
number to the right of the decimal point.  Example, My Permit Now version X.0 (major update) 
and My Permit Now version 0.Y (minor update). SCPDC is the sole determiner of the 
availability and designation of an update as a Major or Minor Update. Where used herein 
"Updates" shall mean Major or Minor Updates interchangeably. 
 
2.6   "SITE" means each physical location, or each Internet link accessible by end-users 
through Licensee’s Web Site, at which Licensee and its customers are entitled to Use the 
Software. 
 
2.7  "SOFTWARE" means the computer software programs specified in Schedule A and 
otherwise provided for Licensee use pursuant to this Agreement. 
  
2.8   "USE" means loading, utilization, storage or display of the Software by Licensee for its 
own internal information processing, and utilization by end users accessing Licensee’s Web Site 
through the Internet.  
 
2.9  “PERMIT” shall mean any type of permit, including but not limited to, new construction 
permit, building permit, structure renovation permit, mechanical permit, plumbing permit, gas 
permit, electrical permit, and sign permit.   Multiple permits listed under one number shall not be 
considered a single permit when calculating funds owed SCPDC pursuant to the terms of the 
Cooperative Endeavor Use Agreement. 
 

2.10 “License Fee(s)” shall mean all payment due pursuant to this Agreement, including the 
permit volume package amount and the payments due for the elected add on modules as detailed 
in Schedule A. 

 
 
 
3.    LICENSE, DELIVERABLES AND COPIES 
 
3.1   LICENSE GRANT. 
  
 (a)  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Licensor grants to Licensee a nonexclusive, 
nontransferable, royalty-bearing user license during the term of this Agreement to use the 
Licensor’s Software, through Internet access only, internally on one or more servers controlled 
by or on behalf of Licensee solely for purposes of using the Licensor’s products known as My 
Permit Now, MyProjectNow, MyAddressNow, MyGovernmentOnline, Inspection Anywhere. 
The scope of the foregoing license encompasses Licensee’s internal use of Licensor’s Software 
in connection with providing services to Licensee’s customers, allowing customers of Licensee 
access to Licensee’s portal for the purpose of researching permit requirements and submitting 
permit requests to the Licensee, but excludes any sublicensing of Licensor’s Software, uploading 
or otherwise transferring, or providing direct access to, the Licensor’s Software to any third party 



3 

without Licensor’s prior written consent, including access by any third party to the Licensor’s 
Software on a stand-alone basis. License granted hereunder includes the use of Documentation in 
connection with Use of the Software. 
 
 (b) OWNERSHIP. SCPDC and its licensors solely own all right, title and interest in and 
to the SCPDC’s Software, and reserve all rights therein not expressly granted under this 
Agreement. This license transfers to Licensee neither title nor any proprietary or intellectual 
property rights to the Software, Documentation, or any copyrights, patents, or trademarks, 
embodied or used in connection therewith, except for the rights expressly granted herein. 
 
                 (i) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as expressly stated 

in paragraph (a), Licensee may not directly or through any third party (a) transfer or 
sublicense, in whole or part, any copies of the SCPDC Software to any third party; (b) 
modify, decompile, reverse engineer, or otherwise attempt to access the source code of 
the SCPDC Software; or (c) copy the SCPDC Software, except such copies of the 
records as necessary for reasonable and customary back-up and disaster recovery 
purposes. Licensee will not delete or alter the copyright, trademark or other proprietary 
rights notices of SCPDC and its licensors included with the SCPDC Software as 
delivered to Licensee, and will reproduce such notices on all copies of the SCPDC 
Software. If derivative works of the SCPDC Software are prepared by or on behalf of 
Licensee based on suggestions or requests by Licensee, SCPDC will solely own such 
modifications. 

(ii) The Licensee may not develop products that interface or are intended for 
use with the SCPDC Software ("Add-On Products") without SCPDC’s express written 
permission. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding the inclusion of Licensee’s customer in the class of allowed users, 
SCPDC's affirmative obligations will be limited to the entity named above. Licensee 
hereby shall indemnify and hold harmless SCPDC from and against all losses, costs, 
liabilities and expenses arising out of or relating to any breach by Licensee of this 
agreement, use of the software, or as a result of the carelessness, negligence or 
improper conduct of Licensee, its agents, employees or representatives. 
 

3.2   DELIVERABLES.  SCPDC shall issue to Licensee, as soon as practicable, a web address 
from where the Licensee can select “jurisdiction login.” The login account shall be comprised of 
a unique username (for instance johndoe@scpdc.org) and password for each user of the system 
in the employ and under control of Licensee.  
 
3.3   COPIES.  Whenever Licensee is permitted to copy or reproduce all or any part of the 
Documentation, all titles, trademark symbols, copyright symbols and legends, and other 
proprietary markings must be reproduced. 
 
4.    LICENSE RESTRICTIONS. Licensee agrees that it will not itself, or through any parent, 
subsidiary, affiliate, agent or other third party:  (a) sell, lease, license or sub-license the Software 
or the Documentation; (b) decompile, disassemble, or reverse engineer Software, in whole or in 
part; (c) write or develop any derivative software or any other software program based upon the 
Software or any Confidential Information; (d) use the Software to provide services on a 'service 
bureau' basis; or (e) provide, disclose, divulge or make available to, or permit use of the Software 
by any unauthorized third party without SCPDC's prior written consent.  
 
5.    LICENSE FEE 
 

mailto:johndoe@scpdc.org


4 

5.1   LICENSE FEE.  In consideration of the license granted pursuant to Section 2.1. Licensee 
agrees to pay SCPDC the License Fee specified in Schedule A. Licensee shall pay SCPDC a fee 
based on Licensee’s use of the SCPDC Software, determined according to the terms set forth in 
Schedule A. It is expressly agreed that the Licensee will not house transactions that are the basis 
of fees paid to SCPDC in another system with the intention of avoiding the responsibility of 
paying fees to SCPDC for the term of this agreement. Should SCPDC determine that Licensee 
violates this provision, SCPDC, at its expense and on reasonable notice, may cause such 
Licensee’s records to be audited during regular business hours at Licensee’s facilities. If an audit 
reveals underpayment of fees due under this Agreement, all such amounts will be promptly paid 
with interest at the prevailing U.S. dollar prime rate accruing from the original due date. If any 
such underpayment exceeds 5% of the fees due for the period audited, Licensee will also pay 
SCPDC’s reasonable costs of conducting the audit. 
 
5.2   TAXES. Licensee agrees to pay or reimburse SCPDC for all federal, state, parish, or 
local sales, use, personal property, payroll, excise or other taxes, fees, or duties arising out of this 
Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (other than taxes on the net 
income of SCPDC). 
 
5.3   NO OFFSET.  Fees and expenses due from Licensee under this Agreement may not be 
withheld or offset by Licensee against other amounts owed by SCPDC for any reason. 
 
6.    MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT.  Licensee agrees to pay Fees according to Schedule 
A.  For so long as Licensee is current in the payment of all fees in Schedule A, with respect to 
each software module, Licensee will be entitled to Maintenance and Support for each software 
module as set forth in Schedule C attached hereto. Failure to pay fees with respect to any 
software module shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and in such event SCPDC 
shall have the right to terminate the rights granted hereunder with respect to such site for the 
term of this Agreement. 
 
7.    LIMITED WARRANTY AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
 
7.1   LIMITED WARRANTY.  SCPDC warrants for the term of the contract from the 
Effective Date (the "Warranty Period") the Software will perform in substantial accordance with 
the Documentation under normal use. If during the Warranty Period the Software does not 
perform as warranted (a "Non-Conformance"), SCPDC shall undertake to correct such Non-
Conformance, or if correction is reasonably not possible, replace such Software free of charge. If 
neither of the foregoing is commercially practicable, SCPDC shall terminate this Agreement and 
refund to Licensee the License Fee. THE FOREGOING ARE LICENSEE’S SOLE AND 
EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES FOR BREACH OF WARRANTY. The warranty set forth above is 
made to and for the benefit of Licensee only. The warranty will apply only if: 
 

(a) the Software has been properly used at all times and in accordance with the 
instructions for Use; and 

 
(b)  no modification, alteration or addition has been made to the Software by persons 

under the control of Licensee  (except pursuant to the authorized Use of the Software specified in 
Schedule A) except as authorized in writing by SCPDC; and 

 
(c)  Licensee has not requested modifications, alterations or additions to the Software that 

cause it to deviate from the Documentation;  
 



5 

(d)  SCPDC warrants that it possesses all of the right, title, interest and authority to enter 
into this agreement with Licensee. SCPDC also warrants that no lawsuit or claim concerning the 
Software is currently pending. 
Any pre-production versions of the Software distributed to Licensee are delivered "as-is," 
without any express or implied warranties. No employee, agent, representative or affiliate of 
SCPDC has authority to bind SCPDC to any oral representations or warranty concerning the 
Software. Any written representation or warranty not expressly contained in this Agreement will 
not be enforceable. 
 
7.2  DISCLAIMER.  EXCEPT AS SET FORTH ABOVE, SCPDC MAKES NO 
WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY REGARDING OR 
RELATING TO THE SOFTWARE OR THE DOCUMENTATION, OR ANY MATERIALS 
OR SERVICES FURNISHED OR PROVIDED TO LICENSEE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, 
INCLUDING MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT. SCPDC SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION AND SAID OTHER MATERIALS AND SERVICES, AND WITH 
RESPECT TO THE FOREGOING. IN ADDITION, SCPDC DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY 
WITH RESPECT TO, AND WILL NOT BE LIABLE OR OTHERWISE RESPONSIBLE FOR, 
THE OPERATION OF THE SOFTWARE IF PROGRAMS ARE MADE THROUGH THE 
USE OF SOFTWARE OR NON-SCPDC SOFTWARE THAT CHANGE, OR ARE ABLE TO 
CHANGE, THE DATA MODEL OF THE SOFTWARE. 
 
7.3  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT WILL SCPDC BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF DATA, COST 
OF COVER OR INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
OF ANY KIND IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THE FURNISHING, 
PERFORMANCE OR USE OF THE SOFTWARE OR SERVICES PERFORMED 
HEREUNDER, WHETHER ALLEGED AS A BREACH OF CONTRACT OR TORTIOUS 
CONDUCT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, EVEN IF SCPDC HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. IN ADDITION, SCPDC WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR 
ANY DAMAGES CAUSED BY DELAY IN DELIVERY OR FURNISHING THE 
SOFTWARE OR SAID SERVICES. SCPDC'S LIABILITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR 
DIRECT, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL AND/OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, RESTITUTION, WILL NOT, IN 
ANY EVENT, EXCEED THE LICENSE FEE PAID BY LICENSEE TO SCPDC UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
7.4 ALLOCATION OF RISK.  The provisions of this Section 6 allocate risks under this 
Agreement between Licensee and SCPDC. SCPDC's pricing reflects this allocation of risks and 
limitation thereof in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and not liability. 
 
7.5   CLAIMS.  No action arising out of any breach or claimed breach of this Agreement or 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be brought by either party more than one (1) 
year after the cause of action has accrued. For purposes of this Agreement, a cause of action will 
be deemed to have accrued when a party knew or reasonably should have known of the breach or 
claimed breach. 
 
 
 
7.6   LIMITATION.  The foregoing obligations shall not apply to the extent the infringement 
arises as a result of modifications to the Software made by any party other than SCPDC or 
SCPDC's authorized representative. 



6 

 
7.7   EXCLUSIVE REMEDY. The foregoing states the entire liability of SCPDC and 
Licensee’s exclusive remedy with respect to infringement of any patent, copyright, trade secret 
or other proprietary right. 
 
7.8   To the extent allowable under Texas law, Licensee shall indemnify and hold SCPDC 
harmless from and against any costs, losses, liabilities and expenses arising out of third party 
claims related to any breach by Licensee of this agreement, use of the software, or as a result of 
the carelessness, negligence or improper conduct of Licensee, its agents, employees or 
representatives. 
 
8.    CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
8.1   CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  Each party acknowledges that the Confidential 
Information constitutes valuable trade secrets and each party agrees that it shall use Confidential 
Information solely in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and will not disclose, or 
permit to be disclosed, except as required by law, including but not limited to the Texas Public 
Information Act, the same, directly or indirectly, to any third party without the other party's prior 
written consent. Each party agrees to exercise due care in protecting the Confidential Information 
from unauthorized use and disclosure. Furthermore, it is understood that the terms of this 
Agreement reflect consideration received by Licensee in return for being an early user of the 
Software. However, neither party bears any responsibility for safeguarding information that (i) is 
publicly available, subject to a public records request pursuant to revised Statute 44:1 et seq., (ii) 
already in the other party's possession an not subject to a confidentiality obligation, (iii) obtained 
by the other party from third parties without restrictions on disclosure, (iv) independently 
developed by the other party without reference to Confidential Information, or (v) required to be 
disclosed by order of a court or other governmental entity. Nothing herein will prevent routine 
discussions by the parties that normally take place in a "user group" context. 
 
8.2   INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.  In the event of actual or threatened breach of the provisions of 
Section 9.1, the non-breaching party will have no adequate remedy at law and will be entitled to 
immediate and injunctive and other equitable relief, without bond and without the necessity of 
showing actual monetary damages. 
 
9.   TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
9.1  TERM.  This Agreement will take effect on the Effective Date and will remain in force  
for a period of two (2) years thereafter.  The contract will automatically renew for 12-months 
periods following the end of the initial term unless terminated in accordance with this 
Agreement. The payment of any funds in future budget years, as provided in this Agreement, 
shall be subject to annual appropriation by the Licensee’s City Council in the annual budget and 
the Licensee’s obligations under this Agreement shall not constitute a general obligation of the 
City or indebtedness under the constitution or laws of the State of Texas. Nothing contained 
herein shall ever be construed so as to require Licensee to create a sinking fund or to assess, levy 
and collect any tax to fund its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 9.2   TERMINATION.  This Agreement is terminated by: 
 

(a) By Licensee. Should there be discovered a serious defect or flaw in the SCPDC software 
that prevents the Licensee from using the system to support Licensee’s operations in 
issuance of permits, Licensee shall notify SCPDC of the issue.  SCPDC will have 45 days 
to resolve the issue.  If the issue cannot be resolved within the time period, the contract 
will terminate on the 1st of the following month.  



7 

(b) By Licensee for Non-Appropriation of Funds. Notwithstanding anything contained herein 
to the contrary, Licensee will have the right to withdraw from this Agreement on the last 
day of the Licensee’s fiscal year if the Licensee’s governing body fails to appropriate 
funds to cover the cost of this Agreement in the upcoming fiscal year budget. SCPDC 
will be under no obligation to Licensee in the event of such termination and services will 
terminate at the conclusion of the currently funded fiscal year. 

 
 
 
(b) By SCPDC. Upon written notice to Licensee if any of the following events 

("Termination Events") occur, provided that no such termination will entitle Licensee to a refund 
of any portion of the License Fee or maintenance fees: (i) Licensee fails to pay any undisputed 
amount due to SCPDC within thirty (30) days after SCPDC gives the Licensee written notice of 
such non-payment; (ii) Licensee is in material breach of any non-monetary term, condition or 
provision of Agreement, which breach, if capable of being cured, is not cured within thirty (30) 
days after SCPDC gives Licensee written notice of such breach; or (iii) Licensee becomes 
subject to any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding under federal or state statutes; or (iv) 
SCPDC elects to refund Licensee's fees. 
 
 
9.3 EFFECT OF TERMINATION.  If any Termination Event occurs, termination will become 
effective immediately or on the date set forth in the written notice of termination. Termination of 
this Agreement will not affect the provisions regarding Licensee's or SCPDC's treatment of 
Confidential Information, provisions relating to the payment of amounts due, or provisions 
limiting or disclaiming SCPDC's liability, which provisions will survive termination of this 
Agreement. Within fourteen (14) days after the date of termination or discontinuance of this 
Agreement for any reason whatsoever, Licensee shall return any copies of the SCPDC Software, 
derivative works and all copies thereof, in whole or in part, all related Documentation and all 
copies thereof, and any other Confidential Information in its possession. Upon termination of this 
Agreement, Licensee shall cause the SCPDC Software to be removed from all computer units, 
including desktops and laptops, in the Licensee’s office and from the computer units of third 
party contractors performing work for Licensee.  Licensee shall furnish SCPDC with a certificate 
signed by an executive officer of Licensee verifying that the same has been done. 
 
9.4 In the event of the termination or nonrenewal of this agreement, SPCDC warrants that the 
information stored by SPCDC as a result of Licensee use of the MyPermitNow will be available 
to Licensee. 
 
10.  NON-ASSIGNMENT.  Neither this Agreement nor any rights under this Agreement may 
be assigned or otherwise transferred by Licensee, in whole or in part, whether voluntary or by 
operation of law, including by way of sale of assets, merger or consolidation, without the prior 
written consent of SCPDC, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Subject 
to the foregoing, this Agreement will be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
11.   NOTICES.  Any notice required or permitted under the terms of this Agreement or 
required by law must be in writing and must be (a) delivered in person, (b) sent by first class 
registered mail, or air mail, as appropriate, (c) sent by overnight air courier, or (d) by facsimile, 
in each case properly posted to the appropriate address set forth below. Either party may change 
its address for notice by notice to the other party given in accordance with this Section. Notices 
will be considered to have been given at the time of actual delivery in person, three (3) business 
days after deposited the mail as set forth above, one (1) day after delivery to an overnight air 
courier service, or one (1) day after the moment of transmission by facsimile.  



8 

 
To:   South Central Planning and To: City of Temple, Texas  
 District Commission   
 
Address:  5058 West Main St. Address:  
     Houma, LA  70360    
  
 
12.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
12.1  VIRUSES AND DISABLING DEVICES.  Neither SCPDC Software nor any 
enhancements, modifications, upgrades, updates, revisions or releases thereof shall contain (i) 
any mechanism such as a "trap door", "time bomb", or "logic bomb", software protection routine 
or other similar device, that would enable SCPDC to disable the Software or make the Software 
inaccessible to Licensee after the Software is installed; or (ii) to the best of SCPDC's knowledge, 
any computer "virus", "worm" or similar programming routine. 
 
12.2  FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither party will incur any liability to the other party on account 
of any loss or damage resulting from any delay or failure to perform all or any part of this 
Agreement if such delay or failure is caused, in whole or in part, by events, occurrences, or 
causes beyond the control and without negligence of the parties. Such events, occurrences, or 
causes will include, without limitation, acts of God, strikes, lockouts, riots, acts of war, 
earthquakes, fire and explosions, but the inability to meet financial obligations is expressly 
excluded. 
 
12.3  WAIVER.  Any waiver of the provisions of this Agreement or of a party's rights or 
remedies under this Agreement must be in writing to be effective. Failure, neglect, or delay by a 
party to enforce the provisions of this Agreement or its rights or remedies at any time, will not be 
construed and will not be deemed to be a waiver of such party's rights under this Agreement and 
will not in any way affect the validity of the whole or any part of this Agreement or prejudice 
such party's right to take subsequent action. Except as expressly stated in this Agreement, no 
exercise or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy under this Agreement will 
preclude the enforcement by such party of any other right or remedy under this Agreement or 
that such party is entitled by law to enforce. 
 
12.4  SEVERABILITY.  If any term, condition, or provision in this Agreement is found to be 
invalid, unlawful or unenforceable to any extent, the parties shall endeavor in good faith to agree 
to such amendments that will preserve, as far as possible, the intentions expressed in this 
Agreement. If the parties fail to agree on such an amendment, such invalid term, condition or 
provision will be severed from the remaining terms, conditions and provisions, which will 
continue to be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
12.5  STANDARD TERMS OF LICENSEE.  No terms, provisions or conditions of any 
purchase order, acknowledgment or other business form that Licensee may use in connection 
with the acquisition or licensing of the Software use will have any effect on the rights, duties or 
obligations of the parties under, or otherwise modify, this Agreement, regardless of any failure of 
SCPDC to object to such terms, provisions or conditions. 
 
12.6  AMENDMENTS TO THIS AGREEMENT.  This Agreement may not be amended, 
except by a writing signed by both parties. 
 



9 

12.7  SCPDC'S PRIOR CONSENT.  Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, 
any prior consent of SCPDC that is required before Licensee may take an action may be granted 
or withheld in SCPDC's sole and absolute discretion. 
 
12.8  EXPORT OF SOFTWARE. Licensee may not export or re-export the SCPDC Software 
without the prior written consent of SCPDC and without the appropriate United States and 
foreign government licenses. 
 
12.9  PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS.  Licensee acknowledges that SCPDC may desire to use 
its name in press releases, product brochures and financial reports indicating that Licensee is a 
Licensee of SCPDC, and Licensee agrees that SCPDC may use its name in such a manner. 
Licensee reserves the right to review any use of its name and to withhold permission, which 
permission will not reasonably be withheld. 
 
12.10  DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The parties have entered into this Agreement voluntarily and 
in good faith. As a result, if any dispute, claim or controversy ("dispute") arises between them, 
unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, they agree that they will first attempt to resolve the 
dispute by entering into mediation.  
12.11  HEADINGS. Section and Schedule headings are for ease of reference only and do not 
form part of this Agreement. 
 
12.12  ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement (including the Schedules and any addenda 
hereto signed by both parties) contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 
subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all previous communications, representations, 
understandings and agreements, either oral or written, between the parties with respect to said 
subject matter, except as provided in Section 8.1 with respect to the definition of "Confidential 
Information." 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement. 
 
 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS SOUTH CENTRAL PLANNING AND 

DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION THROUGH ITS 
AGENT, CAPCOG 

 
By:  By:  
 
        
Jonathan Graham, City Manager  Betty Voights, Executive Director 
 
        
Date    Date 

 
 

______________________________             
Witness      
 
 
Date: _________________________             



10 

 
SCHEDULE A 

INTERLOCAL CONTRACT 
South Central Planning and Development Commission and Jurisdiction Government 

 
SOFTWARE AND LICENSE FEE 

A. SOFTWARE USE 
   
 Licensee use of SCPDC’s My Permit Now System, Standard configuration, including the 
following modules: Permit Management, Plan Review, Inspections, Alerts and functionality that 
is incorporated into My Permit Now System and not identified as a separate chargeable option. 
Inspection Anywhere System, Standard Configuration.  
     
B. LICENSE FEE 
   

1.              MyPermitNow and Inspection Anywhere:  
 

The following package prices are offered though the initial term of the contract.  Please fill in below 
which permit volume package most reasonably fits your anticipated annual permit volume. 

 MONTHLY RATE 

Permit Volume Overage Rate  Permits 
Planning & 
Zoning 

Code 
Enforcement 

Addressing / GIS 
Integration 

0 - 100 $10.00 $56.25 $50.00 $50.00 $230.00 
101 - 500 $10.00 $260.42 $156.25 $50.00 $230.00 

501 - 1000 $10.00 $500.00 $300.00 $75.00 $230.00 

1001 - 2000 $10.00 $958.33 $575.00 $143.75 $230.00 

2001 - 4000 $10.00 $1,833.33 $1,100.00 $275.00 $230.00 

4001 - 6000 $10.00 $2,500.00 $1,500.00 $375.00 $230.00 
6001 - 8000 $10.00 $3,166.67 $1,900.00 $475.00 $230.00 

8001 - 10000 $10.00 $3,750.00 $2,250.00 $562.50 $230.00 
10001 - 12000 $10.00 $4,250.00 $2,550.00 $637.50 $230.00 

12001 - 14000 $10.00 $4,666.67 $2,800.00 $700.00 $230.00 

14001 - 16000 $10.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 $230.00 

16001 - 18000 $10.00 $5,250.00 $3,150.00 $787.50 $230.00 
18001 - 30000 No Overage $5,416.67 $3,250.00 $812.50 $230.00 

 
ANNUAL PERMIT VOLUME OVER 30,000 A YEAR MAY REQUIRE A CUSTOM QUOTE. 

 
The Jurisdiction has agreed to the 2001-4000 Permit Volume package.  It is understood this will 
be billed on a levelized billing system of $ 1,833.33__ monthly.  If anytime during a calendar 
year the total volume of permits exceeds the packages permit volume, Licensee shall pay, in 
addition to its package Rate Per Permit fee, the Overage Rate shown in the Schedule above.  
Permit volume packages may be adjusted annually. At the end of a permit volume year if the 
jurisdiction’s permit volume exceeds 20% of the max permit volume number of their currently 
subscribed package the jurisdiction shall automatically subscribe to the package that the total new 
permit volume count places them in. 
 
The City of Temple has agreed to the 2001-4000 Permit Volume Package and have included 
Planning & Zoning, Code Enforcement and Addressing/GIS Integration the modules which is a 
monthly total cost of $3,438.33. 
 
 
 
 



11 

 
Add on modules of a standard configuration of Planning & Zoning, Solution Center, Addressing / 
GIS Integration may be activated by request during the term of this agreement for the monthly 
rates defined in the rate chart in Schedule A that corresponds to the jurisdictions selected permit 
package.  .  In the event the jurisdiction makes a change to the original permit package chosen, 
the monthly rate shall change to correspond with the rate chart as shown in Schedule A.  
 
 
 

Other Fees: 
 
On-Site Vists: Reimbursement of lodging, transportation and meals. 
 
Integration for online credit card or ACH transactions: Existing Credit Card Vendor: $100.00 
one-time fee; New Credit Card Vendor: $500.00 one-time fee. 
 
Historic Data Imports: Imports requiring 20 hours of staff time or less free of charge.  Imports 
requiring more than 20 hours of analyst time is subject to a custom quote. 
 
Additional Modules: 
Reoccurring Septic Permits, Fire Marshal, and Public Works Modules available by custom 
quote. 
 
 
 
 
SCPDC will invoice Licensee at the beginning of each month. The invoices shall be payable 
within 30 days of the date of the invoice.  



12 

 
  SCHEDULE B 

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR USE AGREEMENT 
South Central Planning and Development Commission and Jurisdiction  

 
EQUIPMENT SITE, USER NAME, AND  

PERSONAL ACCESS PASSWORD 
 
B.1   The following is the Equipment on which Licensees may use the software: 
 

Restricted to computers used by Licensee’s personnel in order to accomplish Personnel’s 
job duties via the Internet for access to SCPDC Software, each user having a specially assigned 
user name and a personal access password.  
  
B.2. At the execution of this Agreement, SCPDC shall provide a USER CREATION form to 
the lLicensee to be used for Personnel account creation requests.  Upon completion of the forms 
the licensee will return the forms to SCPDC or its AGENT and accounts shall be created in the 
system with information provided on the forms.  Users can change the provided password on the 
form in the software after their first login. The personal user name and personal access password 
will be maintained in camera and not distributed to the public. Additional personal user names 
and personal access passwords may be provided upon a written request to SCPDC with the user 
creation form providing the user name and confirmation that the user is an employee of Licensee 
is supplied to SCPDC, which will become an addendum to this schedule, such request will not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 

 SCHEDULE C 
COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR USE AGREEMENT 

South Central Planning and Development Commission and Jurisdiction 
 

MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1   "SUPPORT CALL (TIER 1)" means a reported problem in the SCPDC Software which 
is not affecting the Software's ability to perform substantially in accordance with the user 
documentation. 
 
1.2   "SUPPORT CALL (TIER 2)" means a reported problem in the SCPDC Software, not 
considered as a Level I support problem as defined in 1.1 above, which causes serious disruption 
of a function, however the system is still serving Licensee. 
 
1.3   "SUPPORT CALL (TIER 3)" means a reported problem in the SCPDC Software which 
causes the system to be down and not serving as designed, or has a significant revenue impact, 
with no obvious work-around. 
 
1.4   "RESPONSE TIME" means the elapsed time between the receipt of a service call and the 
time when SCPDC begins the Maintenance and Support, including a verbal or written 
confirmation to the Licensee thereof. 
 
1.5   "RESPONSE CENTER AND CONTACT PROCEDURE" shall mean: 
 
          Address                              Hours of Operation  
5058 West Main Street 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
Houma, LA 70360 
 
          
          Contact Information 
 
    Tel: 1 866 957 3764              E-mail: support@scpdc.org 
    Ryan Hutchinson,  
    Information Technology Administrator 
 
 
2.     TERM AND TERMINATION.  SCPDC’s provision of Maintenance and Support to     
Licensee will commence on the Effective Date and will continue for an initial term of two (2) 
years.  Maintenance and Support will automatically renew at the end of the initial term and any 
subsequent term for a renewal term of one (1) year unless Licensee has provided SCPDC with a 
written termination notice of its intention not to renew the Maintenance and Support at least 
ninety (90) days prior to the termination expiration of the then-current term.  Termination of 
Maintenance and Support upon failure to renew will not affect the license of the Software. 
 
3.     MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES.  Maintenance and Support will be 
provided only with respect to use of the versions of the Software that are being supported by 
SCPDC.  SCPDC will provide multi-site backup of permit issuance data for permits supported 
by MyPermitNow system. SCPDC will provide 24-hour emergency service support, after hours 
cell numbers are accessed through the IVR menu, for Licensee’s staff and Licensee’s customers 
by SCPDC’s technical support personnel. SCPDC will offer to Licensee new versions of 
MyPermitNow Software as they become available. Upon Licensee’s request SCPDC will 

mailto:support@scpdc.org


14 

attempt, so long as practicable, to convert Licensee’s current permit data for use with SCPDC 
Software. Upon Licensee’s request SCPDC will, as long as practicable, will perform regularly 
scheduled exports of Licensee’s permit and inspection data to Licensee’s database. Within 
SCPDC’s capabilities, SCPDC will perform customization of SCPDC Software based on 
Licensee’s specific jurisdiction. Whenever possible, SCPDC will provide features in the SCPDC 
Software allowing Licensee to create and search variances and define relationships between 
variances and permits. SCPDC will provide remote support for the storage of photos, 
building/permits documents, inspection reports, plan review files and associated miscellaneous 
records. Within the capabilities of the SCPDC Software, and upon Licensee’s request, SCPDC 
will provide Licensee with customized reports. The client will be expressly forbidden from 
creating add-ons or feature changes to that version or disclose the source code to any third party. 
 
3.1   LEVELS OF MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT.  Maintenance and Support is available 
at the following Response Times: (i) Support Call (Tier 3): response time three (3) hours, patch 
or work-around next day, fixed or documented in next major product release (ii) Support Call 
(Tier 2): response time six (6) hours, patch or work-around within five days, fixed or 
documented in next major product release; (iii) Support Call (Tier 1): one (1) business day, 
problem documented and input for consideration in next major product release. 
 
3.2   BASIC MAINTENANCE.  Basic Maintenance means that SCPDC will provide during 
SCPDC’s standard hours of service: (i) Updates and Minor Updates, when and if available, and 
related on-line Documentation, and (ii) telephone assistance with respect to the use of Software, 
including (a) clarification of functions and features of the Software; (b) clarification of the 
Documentation; (c) guidance in the use of the Software; and (d) error verification, analysis and 
correction to the extent possible by telephone.  SCPDC's standard hours of service are Monday 
through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., CST except for holidays as observed by SCPDC. 
 
3.3   ON-SITE ASSISTANCE.  At SCPDC's discretion, SCPDC can decide to provide 
Maintenance and Support at the Licensee Site.  In such event Licensee will reimburse SCPDC 
for all related traveling expenses and costs for board and lodging. 
 
3.4   CAUSES WHICH ARE NOT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SCPDC.  Maintenance and         
Support will not include services requested as a result of, or with respect to causes which are not 
attributable to SCPDC Software. These services will be billed to Licensee at SCPDC's then-
current rates. Causes which are not attributable to SCPDC include but are not limited to: 
 
 
 
3.5.1   Accident. Unusual physical, electrical or electromagnetic stress; neglect; misuse; failure 
or fluctuation of electric power, air conditioning or humidity control; failure of rotation media 
not furnished by SCPDC; excessive heating; fire and smoke damage; operation of the Software 
with other media and hardware, software or telecommunication interfaces not meeting or not 
maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications; or causes other than ordinary 
use; 
 
3.5.2 Improper use of the Software that deviates from any operating procedures established by 
SCPDC in the applicable Documentation; 
 
3.5.3  Modification, alteration or addition or attempted modification, alteration or addition of 

the Software undertaken by persons other than SCPDC or SCPDC's authorized 
representatives; 

 
3.5.4 Software programs made by Licensee or other parties. 



15 

 
4.     RESPONSIBILITIES OF LICENSEE.  SCPDC's provision of Maintenance and Support 
to Licensee is subject to the following: 
 
4.1   Licensee shall provide SCPDC with access to Licensee's personnel and Equipment during 
normal business hours.  This access must include the ability to dial-in to the Equipment on which 
the Software is operating and to obtain the level of access necessary to support the Software. 
 
4.2   Licensee shall provide supervision, control and management of the Use of the Software.  
In addition, Licensee shall implement procedures for the protection of information and the 
implementation of backup facilities in the event of errors or malfunction of the Software or 
Equipment. 
 
4.3   Licensee shall document and promptly report all errors or malfunctions of the Software to 
SCPDC. Licensee shall take all steps necessary to carry out procedures for the rectification of 
errors or malfunctions within a reasonable time after such procedures have been received from 
SCPDC. 
 
4.4   Licensee shall maintain a current backup copy of all records and transactions using the 
SCPDC Software.  
 
4.5   Licensee shall properly train its personnel in the Use and application of the Software and 
the Equipment on which it is used. 
 
5.     MAINTENANCE FEE.  For Jurisdiction the maintenance fees are waived and the license 
fees cover all costs for maintenance and support for the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 
 6.    ASSIGNMENT OF DUTIES.  SCPDC may assign its duties of Maintenance and     
Support to a third party, provided that SCPDC will remain responsible for the actions of such 
third party.  Any such assignment is subject to Licensee's consent, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed.  
 
7.  Project Abandonment – Should SCPDC abandon development and support of My Permit 
Now system and can no longer fulfill its contractual obligations pursuant to this Agreement, the 
last stable source code release of My Permit Now Software will be licensed to Licensee under an 
open source license agreement such as for instance GNU. The specific open source license 
agreement would be chosen by SCPDC at such time. 

8.  Licensee data - Upon the client’s written request, SCPDC agrees to provide all hosted client 
data to the client electronically once a calendar year in either the existing database format or 
CSV format.  Upon Licensee request, these transfers can be automated to take place on a regular 
schedule.  SCPDC will not be held liable if technical issues disrupt the automatic scheduling of a 
data transfer. SCPDC will take all reasonable care to safeguard and protect the Licensee’s data. 
Licensee expressly agrees to maintain on its site and under its care a current copy of Licensee’s 
permitting data.   
 
9.  Role of Agent – The Agent has no obligations or liabilities to the Licensee implied or written 
in the interlocal contract.  The agent’s responsibilities and obligations are to SCPDC only and 
defined specifically in a separate agreement between SCPDC and the AGENT, hereinafter 
referred to as “CAPCOG”.  The SCPDC and CAPCOG agreement may provide additional 
services to the licensee which could include but not limited to onsite representation, support 
issue mediation and marketing material distribution. 



16 

Accepted: 

CITY OF Temple, TEXAS 

___________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
By: Jonathan Graham, City Manager 
___________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
Witness 

South Central Planning and Development Commission, 
Through its agent, CAPCOG 

___________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
By: Betty Voights, Executive Director 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8509-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL CONTRACT WITH THE 
SOUTH CENTRAL PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION IN 
THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $60,000 FOR THE USE OF AN ONLINE 
MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE FOR PERMITTING, PLANNING & ZONING, 
LAND MANAGEMENT, AND CODE ENFORCEMENT; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the City has been using a software called OneSolution for Community 
Development for the past twelve years but the software, while it has served its purpose, will no 
longer be supported and enhanced by Sungard Public Section, the company that provides the 
City’s current financial software, Naviline;  

Whereas, since this product will no longer be enhanced and supported, Staff is 
recommending the purchase of a new product to enhance the entire development process for our 
employees and customers – Staff is proposing to replace OneSolution with a new product called 
MyGovernmentOnline which will provide more efficient workflow through its integrated 
building permits, planning, and code enforcement software and will also interface with the City’s 
current financial software;  

Whereas, this software will enable a more efficient workflow, easier navigation and a 
fully integrated development process - this software is subscription based for unlimited users on 
the cloud and will be charged a subscription price of approximately $50,000 per year with the 
first year expenditure estimated at $60,000 which includes implementation costs;  

Whereas, a review group made up of the Planning Director, Assistant Planning Director, 
Assistant City Manager, IT Director, IT Project Manager, Permits Supervisor, Chief Building 
Official, Development Coordinator, Deputy City Attorney and Engineering reviewed four 
vendors and the MyGovernmentOnline software was determined to provide the best solution for 
the Planning, Permits and Inspections areas; 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the interlocal contract with the South 
Central Planning and Development Commission in the estimated amount of $60,000 for use of 
this online management software for Permitting, Planning & Zoning, Land Management, and 
Code Enforcement; 

Whereas, funding is appropriated for use of this software in the amount of $60,000, in 
account numbers 110-5919-519-6221 and 520-5000-535-6221, project number 101527; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 



2 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute an interlocal contract with the South Central Planning 
and Development Commission in the estimated amount of $60,000 for use of an online 
management software for Permitting, Planning & Zoning, Land Management, and Code 
Enforcement. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Damon B. Boniface, Utility Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one rack of modules 
for the Membrane Water Treatment Facility from SCINOR Water America, LLC, New York, NY in the 
amount of $117,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The City of Temple owns a water treatment plant located on the north side of the 
Leon River just off Charter Oak Drive. The plant consists of a conventional water treatment train 
and a membrane water treatment train,  which ultimately combine through shared storage and 
pumping facilities and operate as one plant which delivers water to customers along the distribution 
system.  The 29.4 MGD CWTT is an aging facility that has been renovated and expanded several 
times since its construction in 1957. In 2004, the 11.6 MGD MWTT was constructed in response 
to increasing water demands.  

To address immediate water facility needs, on December 17, 2015, Council approved a professional 
services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple in an amount not 
to exceed $242,649 for professional services required for preliminary engineering design and 
associated investigations at the City of Temple Water Treatment Plant. Of highest, and most immediate 
importance were the first set of three tasks, which included Task 2 – Membrane Treatment Process 
Optimization ($165,022).  As part of the scope of work, various membrane module technologies and 
options were considered, including conducting a full-scale pilot study using replacement modules with 
similar manufacturers. The full scale 90-day pilot-study, as required by the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality for “innovative technologies” 30 TAC 290.42, will replace one rack of existing 
modules with SCINOR Membrane Technologies, thereby determining their viability for plant treatment 
optimization needs and future purchasing options. Presently, the City is constrained to a sole-source 
purchase for modules from Pall Corporation.  New technologies and advanced innovation has recently 
opened the market for water treatment facilities to explore other membrane modules for viable 
treatment and economic solutions. 



01/19/17 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

As outlined in the 2015 professional services agreement between the City of Temple and Kasberg, 
Patrick & Associates, LLP, for the Membrane Treatment Process Optimization, the City is responsible 
for the purchase of modules and necessary monitoring equipment for conducting the full scale pilot-
study.  At the conclusion of the study, KPA will confirm whether the test met the goals set forth in the 
pilot study protocol as determined by the TCEQ related to water quality, in addition to confirming its 
viability as an economic solution for the City. The City is able to return the SCINOR modules less 
shipping and handling, if recommended by KPA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available in the FY 2017 operating budget, account 520-5100-535-
6310, project #101419, to fund the purchase of membrane water treatment modules from SCINOR 
Water America, LLC in the amount of $117,000 as shown below:

Project Budget  $        504,000 
Encumbered/Committed to Date  (34,119) 

SCINOR Water America, LLC    (117,000) 
Remaining Funds Available  $        352,881 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8510-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE RACK OF MODULES 
(78) FOR THE MEMBRANE WATER TREATMENT FACILITY FROM 
SCINOR WATER AMERICA, LLC, NEW YORK, NEW YORK, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $117,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE.

Whereas, the City of Temple owns a water treatment plant located on the north side of 
the Leon River just off Charter Oak Drive - the plant consists of a conventional water treatment 
train (CWTT) and a membrane water treatment train (MWTT), which ultimately combine 
through shared storage and pumping facilities and operate as one plant which delivers water to 
customers along the distribution system;  

Whereas, the 29.4 MGD CWTT is an aging facility that has been renovated and 
expanded several times since its construction in 1957 - in 2004, the 11.6 MGD MWTT was 
constructed in response to increasing water demands;  

Whereas, to address immediate water facility needs, on December 17, 2015, Council 
approved a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, (KPA) of 
Temple in an amount not to exceed $242,649 for professional services required for preliminary 
engineering design and associated investigations at the City of Temple Water Treatment Plant – 
of  highest, and most immediate importance were the first set of three tasks, which included Task 
2 – Membrane Treatment Process Optimization;  

Whereas, as part of the scope of work, various membrane module technologies and 
options were considered, including conducting a full-scale pilot study using replacement 
modules with similar manufacturers - the full scale 90-day pilot-study, as required by the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) for “innovative technologies,” will replace one 
rack of existing modules with SCINOR Membrane Technologies, thereby determining their 
viability for plant treatment optimization needs and future purchasing options; 

Whereas, presently, the City is constrained to a sole-source purchase for modules from 
Pall Corporation - new technologies and advanced innovation has recently opened the market for 
water treatment facilities to explore other membrane modules for viable treatment and economic 
solutions;  

Whereas, the City is responsible for the purchase of modules and necessary monitoring 
equipment for conducting the full scale pilot-study - at the conclusion of the study, KPA will 
confirm whether the test met the goals set forth in the pilot study protocol as determined by the 
TCEQ related to water quality, in addition to confirming its viability as an economic solution for 
the City; 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of one rack of modules (78) 
for the Membrane Water Treatment Facility from SCINOR Water America, LLC, New York, 
NY in the amount of $117,000; 



2 

Whereas, funding is available in account 520-5100-535-6310, project # 101419 for the 
purchase of membrane water treatment modules from SCINOR Water America, LLC, in the 
amount of $117,000; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of one rack of modules (78) for the 
Membrane Water Treatment Facility from SCINOR Water America, LLC, New York, New 
York, in the amount of $117,000. 

Part 3:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of three rights-of-way 
necessary for the construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and conversion of the private road 
Daniels Drive into a public street and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase, in an 
amount not to exceed $9,000. 

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: In 2007, Council authorized a professional services agreement with Carter Burgess, 
Inc., now Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for engineering services related to the Bird Creek Interceptor. 
This project, targeted toward reducing sanitary sewer overflows, will rehabilitate existing deteriorated 
infrastructure through the heart of the city. To date, the City has constructed three phases of the Bird 
Creek Interceptor project. Design of Phases 4 and 5 is underway and acquisition of the necessary 
easements is partially complete.  

The design of Phase 4 includes a realignment of the interceptor beneath Daniels Drive, currently a 
private street in South Temple that runs parallel to Bird Creek, with a steep slope in between. Erosion 
from the creek may require significant repairs to Daniels Drive in the future in order to ensure its integrity 
and protect the welfare of residents in the neighborhood. Accordingly, Staff believes that the in order 
to conduct repairs needed on Daniels Drive, to take necessary steps to prevent the erosion of the slope 
between Daniels Drive and Bird Creek, and to realign the Bird Creek interceptor beneath the roadway, 
it would be in the public interest to acquire the right-of-way necessary to convert the private road into a 
public street. 



01/19/17 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

The design requires the acquisition of rights of way for wastewater utilities and the new public street 
from five property owners, including the properties situated at 2609, 2613, and 2617 Daniels Drive. 
Appraisals were performed on the parcels and an offer was presented to the property owners in 
December 2016. Staff has reached an agreement with three of the property owners and is asking for 
authorization to purchase the necessary rights-of-way and pay closing costs in an amount not to exceed 
$9,000.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the purchase of the three properties necessary for the 
construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor in an amount not to exceed $9,000 in account 520-5900-535-
6110, project #101213. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8511-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF THREE RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE BIRD CREEK 
INTERCEPTOR PROJECT AND CONVERSION OF THE PRIVATE ROAD 
DANIELS DRIVE INTO A PUBLIC STREET AND AUTHORIZING 
CLOSING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASES, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $9,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, in 2007, Council authorized a professional services agreement with Carter 
Burgess, Inc., now Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for engineering services related to the Bird 
Creek Interceptor - this project, targeted toward reducing sanitary sewer overflows, will 
rehabilitate existing deteriorated infrastructure through the heart of the city; 

Whereas, to date, the City has constructed three phases of the Bird Creek Interceptor 
project - design of Phases 4 and 5 is underway and acquisition of the necessary easements is 
partially complete;  

Whereas, the design of Phase 4 includes a realignment of the interceptor beneath Daniels 
Drive, currently a private street in South Temple that runs parallel to Bird Creek, with a steep 
slope in between - erosion from the creek may require significant repairs to Daniels Drive in the 
future in order to ensure its integrity and protect the welfare of residents in the neighborhood;  

Whereas, Staff believes that in order to conduct repairs needed on Daniels Drive, to take 
necessary steps to prevent the erosion of the slope between Daniels Drive and Bird Creek, and to 
realign the Bird Creek interceptor beneath the roadway, it would be in the public interest to 
acquire the right-of-way necessary to convert the private road into a public street;  

Whereas, the design requires the acquisition of rights of way for wastewater utilities and 
the new public street from five property owners, including the properties situated at 2609, 2613, 
and 2617 Daniels Drive - appraisals were performed on the parcels and offers were presented to 
the property owners in December 2016; 

Whereas, Staff has reached an agreement with three of the property owners and is asking 
for authorization to purchase the necessary rights-of-way and pay closing costs in an amount not 
to exceed $9,000 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of three rights-of-way 
necessary for the construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and conversion of the private 
road, Daniels Drive, into a public street and authorize closing costs associated with the 
purchases, in an amount not to exceed $9,000; 

Whereas, funding is available for the purchase of the three properties necessary for the 
construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor in an amount not to exceed $9,000 in account 520-
5900-535-6110, project #101213; and 



2 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of three rights-of-way necessary for the 
construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and conversion of the private road, Daniels 
Drive, into a public street and located at 2609, 2613, and 2617 Daniels Drive, and authorizes the 
payment of closings costs associated with the purchases, in an amount not to exceed $9,000. 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for the purchase 
of the rights-of-way. 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right of way 
necessary for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorizing closing costs 
associated with the purchase in an amount not to exceed $352,000.  

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old Howard 
Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road 
from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at Pegasus Drive. The design 
requires the acquisition of right-of-way from 21 different property owners. Appraisals have been 
performed on twenty of the parcels, and the remaining one is underway.  Offers have been made to 
several of the property owners based upon those appraisals, and the remaining offers will be presented 
in the coming weeks.  For those properties that will require relocation, the City’s consultant is preparing 
the necessary relocation studies.  

The City has acquired seven rights of way and has reached an agreement with a property owner.  Staff 
is actively negotiating with each of the remaining property owners and hopes to reach agreements with 
each of them this fiscal year. At this time, Staff is asking for authorization to purchase the right of way 
and pay closing costs in an amount not to exceed $352,000. 

The location and Bell County Appraisal District ID Number of the property is listed below: 

Old Howard Road, Temple – Bell CAD ID #15887 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is appropriated for the purchase of the right of way necessary for the 
expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorizing closing costs associated with 
the purchase in an amount not to exceed $352,000 in account 795-9800-531-6864, project #101001. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8512-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF RIGHT OF WAY 
NECESSARY FOR THE EXPANSION OF OLD HOWARD ROAD AND 
MOORES MILL ROAD AND AUTHORIZING CLOSING COSTS 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$352,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old 
Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of 
Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at 
Pegasus Drive;  

Whereas, Staff is actively negotiating with owners of the properties from which right of 
way will need to be acquired for this project and at this time, Staff is asking for authorization to 
purchase right of way and pay closing costs in an amount not to exceed $352,000 - the location 
and Bell County Appraisal District ID Number of the property is listed as Old Howard Road, 
Temple – Bell CAD ID #15887;  

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of right of way necessary for 
the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorize closing costs associated 
with the purchase in an amount not to exceed $352,000; 

Whereas, funding is appropriated for the purchase of the right of way necessary for the 
expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and the payment of closing costs, in an 
amount not to exceed $352,000, in account 795-9800-531-6864, project #101001; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of a portion of the property located 
along Old Howard Road, Temple and designated with Bell CAD ID #15887 which is necessary 
for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road, and authorizes the payment of 
closing costs associated with the purchase, in the not to exceed amount of $352,000. 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for the purchase 
of this property.  



2 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC in the amount not to exceed of $42,500 for a Water and 
Wastewater cost of service study. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Approval of this item will allow for a water and wastewater cost of service study. 
The study will develop a five year revenue requirement for the Water and Wastewater utility. The last 
study was completed in FY 2012.   

As part of the analysis and development of the five-year revenue requirement, NewGen will address 
the following: 

 Review the historical and projected trends with regards to operations and maintenance costs,
debt service, capital improvements, water usage, wastewater flows

 Identification of fixed versus variable cost
 Normalization of the revenue requirement to adjust for ‘wet’ and ‘dry’ years
 Inflation adjustments for labor, benefits, chemicals, electricity and all other operating costs
 Evaluation of current wastewater effluent rates
 Design Retail and Wholesale water and wastewater rates

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the study is included in the adopted FY2017 budget in account 520-
5000-535-2616, Professional Services, in the amount of $42,500. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Professional Service Agreement 
Resolution   



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1 of 9

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is dated January 12, 2017 
by and between NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company 
(“Consultant”), with offices at 3420 Executive Center Drive, Suite 165, Austin, Texas 78731 and 
City of Temple (“Client”), with a mailing office at 2 N. Main Street, Temple, Texas 76501. 

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the promises herein and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services: Consultant and Client agree that Consultant will perform services as
detailed in Exhibit A.  All services to be provided by Consultant shall be agreed to by the
parties and attached to this Agreement.  The Exhibit shall set forth the scope of services,
including the intended purpose of the services, schedule, budget, payment provisions and
other special provisions, if any, related to the scope of services (the “Services”).

2. Independent Contractor:  Consultant is an independent contractor and is not an employee
of Client.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, or should be construed to, create a
partnership, joint venture or employer-employee relationship between Client and
Consultant.  Consultant shall be solely responsible for filing all tax returns and submitting
all payments as required by federal, state or local authority arising from the payment of
fees to Consultant by Client under this Agreement.  Services performed by Consultant
under this Agreement are solely for the benefit of Client.  Nothing contained in this
Agreement creates any duties on the part of Consultant toward any person not a party to
this Agreement.

3. Standard of Care: Consultant will perform Services under this Agreement with the degree
of skill and diligence normally practiced by professional engineers or consultants
performing the same or similar Services.  Except as otherwise provided in a specific
Exhibit, Consultant shall have exclusive control over the manner and means of performing
the Services, including the choice of place and time and will use its expertise and analytical
skills in performing the Services.  No other warranty or guarantee, expressed or implied, is
made with respect to the services furnished under this Agreement and all implied
warranties are disclaimed.

4. Fee for Services and Payment:  Unless otherwise provided in an Exhibit (e.g., fixed fee
for a project), the fee to Consultant for Services will be based on the actual hours of
Services furnished multiplied by Consultant’s billing rates as of the date of its monthly
invoice plus all expenses incurred by Consultant and related to the Services furnished under
an Exhibit (as described in more detail below).  Additionally, Client shall reimburse
Consultant on a monthly basis at cost plus ten percent (10%) for Services provided by any
subconsultant working under Consultant.  Client shall pay Consultant in U.S. dollars within
thirty (30) days of receipt of invoices less any disputed amounts.  If Client disputes any
portion of the invoice, the undisputed portion will be paid and Consultant will be notified
in writing, within ten (10) days of receipt of the invoice of the amounts in dispute.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
2 of 9

Consultant and Client will attempt to resolve the payment dispute within sixty (60) days or 
the matter may be submitted to arbitration as provided below.  Additional charges for 
interest shall become due and payable at a rate of one and one-half percent (1-1/2%) per 
month (or the maximum percentage allowed by law, whichever is lower) on the unpaid, 
undisputed invoiced amounts.  Any interest charges due from Client on past due invoices 
are outside any amounts otherwise due under this Agreement. If Client fails to pay 
undisputed invoiced amounts within sixty (60) days after delivery of invoice, Consultant, 
at its sole discretion, may suspend Services hereunder or may initiate collections 
proceedings, including mandatory binding arbitration, or both, without incurring any 
liability or waiving any right established hereunder or by law. 

5. Changes/Amendments:  This Agreement (together with any exhibits attached hereto)
constitute the entire agreement between the parties and together with its exhibits supersede
any prior written or oral agreements.  This Agreement may not be changed except by
written amendment signed by both parties.  The estimate of the level of effort, schedule
and payment required to complete the Services, as Consultant understands it, is reflected
herein. Services not expressly set forth in this Agreement or its exhibits are excluded.
Consultant shall promptly notify Client if changes to the Services affect the schedule, level
of effort or payment to Consultant and the schedule and payment shall be equitably
adjusted.  If Consultant is delayed in performing its Services due to an event beyond its
reasonable control, including but not limited to, fire, flood, earthquake, explosion, strike,
transportation or equipment delays, act of war, or act of God, then the schedule for the
performance of the Services and payment of fees under the Agreement shall be equitably
adjusted, if necessary, to compensate Consultant for any additional costs due to the delay.

6. Indemnity: To the extent permitted by law, Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Client and its directors, officers, shareholders and employees from and
against any liability (including without limitation, reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees)
incurred by Client to the extent caused by Consultant’s negligent acts, errors or omissions,
including judgments in favor of any third party.

To the extent permitted by law, Client agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
Consultant and its managers, members, employees and subconsultants from and against
any liability (including, without limitation, reasonable costs and attorney’s fees) incurred
by Consultant to the extent caused by Client’s negligent acts, errors or omissions, including
judgments in favor of any third party.

7. Reperformance of Services: If Client believes any of the Services provided under this
Agreement do not comply with the terms of this Agreement, Client shall promptly notify
Consultant to permit Consultant an opportunity to investigate the allegation of
noncompliance.  If the Services do not meet the applicable standard of care, Consultant
will promptly re-perform the Services at no additional cost to Client, including assisting
Client in selecting remedial actions. If Client fails to provide Consultant with prompt
notice of non-compliance and an opportunity to investigate and re-perform its Services,
Consultant’s total obligation to Client will be limited to the costs Consultant would have
incurred to re-perform the Services.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
3 of 9

8. Insurance: Consultant shall maintain insurance with the following required coverages and
minimum limits and upon request, will provide insurance certificates to Client evidencing
the same:

Worker’s Compensation         Statutory  
Employer’s Liability         U.S. $1,000,000

Commercial General Liability         U.S. $1,000,000 per occurrence
      U.S. $1,000,000 aggregate  

Comprehensive General Automobile         U.S. $1,000,000 combined single limit
Professional Liability         U.S. $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate 

9. Work Product: Client shall have the unrestricted right to use the documents, analyses and
other data prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Work Product”); provided,
however, that Client shall not rely on or use the Work Product for any purpose other than
the purposes under this Agreement and the Work Product shall not be changed without the
prior written approval of Consultant.  If Client releases the Work Product to a third party
without Consultant’s prior written consent, or changes or uses the Work Products other
than as intended hereunder, (a) Client does so at its sole risk and discretion, (b) Consultant
shall not be liable for any claims or damages resulting from the change or use or connected
with the release or any third party’s use of the Work Product and (c) Client shall indemnify,
defend and hold Consultant harmless from any and all claims or damages related to the
release, change or reuse.

10. Limitation of Liability: No employee of Consultant shall have individual liability to
Client. To the extent permitted by law, the total liability of Consultant, its officers,
managers, members, employees and subconsultants for any and all claims arising out of
this Agreement, including attorneys’ fees, and whether caused by negligence, errors,
omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or contribution, or indemnity claims based on
third party claims, shall not exceed the revenue received by Consultant under this
Agreement or one hundred fifty thousand dollars (U.S. $150,000.00), whichever is greater.

11. No Consequential Damages: In no event and under no circumstances shall Consultant be
liable to Client for any principal, interest, loss of anticipated revenues, earnings, profits,
increased expense of operation or construction, loss by reason of shutdown or non-
operation due to late completion or otherwise or for any other economic, consequential,
indirect or special damages, nor shall Client be liable to Consultant for any of the above
mentioned consequential damages.

12. Information Provided by Others:  Client shall provide to Consultant in a timely manner
any information Consultant indicates is needed to perform the Services hereunder. Client
confirms and agrees that Consultant may rely on the accuracy of information provided by
Client and its representatives.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
4 of 9

13. Opinions of Cost: Consultant does not control the cost of labor, materials, equipment or
Services furnished by others, nor does it control pricing factors used by others to
accommodate inflation, competitive bidding or market conditions.  Estimates provided by
Consultant for operation expenses or construction costs represent its best judgment as an
experienced and qualified professional, but Client acknowledges and agrees that such
estimates are not a guarantee of cost.  This section does not apply to the cost of Consultant
performing the Services.

14. Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act: Client confirms and
agrees that for all purposes under this Agreement and in Consultant’s performance of all
Services described hereunder, Consultant is and shall be viewed by Client as providing
regulatory and management consulting advice.  It is Client’s understanding, intention and
agreement that under no circumstances shall Consultant be deemed a “municipal advisor”
subject to regulation under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act.

15. Safety and Security:  Consultant has established and maintains programs and procedures
for the safety of its employees. Unless specifically included as a service to be provided
under this Agreement, Consultant specifically disclaims any authority or responsibility for
job site safety and safety of persons other than Consultant’s employees. Consultant shall
not provide any such Services and disclaims any responsibility under this Agreement
related to site security or the assessment, evaluation, review, testing, maintenance,
operation or safety practices or procedures related to security.

18. Termination: Either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ prior
written notice to the other party.  Client shall pay Consultant for all Services rendered
through the date of termination plus reasonable expenses for winding down the Services.
If either party defaults in its obligations hereunder, the non-defaulting party, after giving
seven (7) days’ written notice of its intention to terminate or suspend performance under
this Agreement, may, if cure of the default is not commenced and diligently continued
during such seven-day period, terminate this Agreement or suspend performance under this
Agreement.

19. Dispute Resolution:  Consultant and Client shall attempt to resolve conflicts or disputes
under this Agreement in a fair and reasonable manner and agree that if resolution cannot
be made to attempt to mediate the conflict by a professional mediator (except for payment
disputes which may be submitted directly to arbitration). If mediation does not settle any
dispute or action that arises under this Agreement or that relates in any way to this
Agreement or the subject matter of this Agreement within ninety (90) days after either
requests mediation, the dispute or conflict shall be subject to arbitration in English under
the rules governing commercial arbitration as promulgated by the American Arbitration
Association and arbitrability shall be subject to the Federal Arbitration Act.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5 of 9 

20. Miscellaneous: 
a. This Agreement is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of Client and 

Consultant and their respective successors and assigns. Neither party may assign 
its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other 
party. 

b. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement to be given shall be deemed to 
have been duly given if in writing and delivered personally or five (5) days after 
mailing by first-class, registered, or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows: 

 Client:   City of Temple, Texas 
 Attention:   Ms. Traci Barnard 

Director of Finance 
 Address:   2 N. Main Street 

Temple, Texas  76501 
 
 Consultant:   NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC 
 Attention:   Mr. David S. Yanke 

President – Environmental Practice 
 Address:   3420 Executive Center Drive, Suite 165 

Austin, Texas  78731 
   
c. Client expressly agrees that all provisions of the Agreement, including the clause 

limiting the liability of Consultant, were mutually negotiated and that but for the 
inclusion of the limitation of liability clause in the Agreement, Consultant’s 
compensation for Services would otherwise be greater and/or Consultant would not 
have entered into the Agreement. 

d. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and the provision declared 
invalid or unenforceable shall continue as to other circumstances. 

e. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws 
of the State of Texas. 

f. In any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover, as part of its judgment, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs from 
the other party. 

g. This Agreement shall not be construed against Consultant on the basis that 
Consultant drafted the Agreement.  

  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
6 of 9

h. Notwithstanding any statute to the contrary, the Parties agree that any action to
enforce or interpret this Agreement shall be initiated within two (2) years from the
time the party knew or should have known of the fact giving rise to its action, and
shall not in any case be initiated later than six (6) years after Consultant completes
the Services under this Agreement.

i. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original instrument, but all of which taken together shall constitute
one instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement the date first written above. 

CLIENT: 
City of Temple, Texas 

Signature 
Name 
Title 
Date 

CONSULTANT: 
NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC. 

Signature 
Name David S. Yanke 
Title President – Environmental Practice 
Date January 12, 2017 

Exhibit A – Water and Wastewater Scope of Work and Budget 

ncasselberry
Transparent



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
7 of 9

Exhibit A 
Project Scope and Budget 

to Conduct a Water and Wastewater Cost of Service Study 

Proposed Scope of Services 
NewGen proposes to conduct this analysis in a timely and efficient manner, with the work laid out in the 
following phases: 

 Phase I – Determine Revenue Requirement

 Phase II – Design Retail and Wholesale Water and Wastewater Rates

 Phase III – Issue Draft and Final Report

 Phase IV – Update Cost of Service Model (Optional)

A brief overview of the work to be accomplished during each of the phases is provided below.

Phase I – Determine Revenue Requirement 

A. Water Revenue Requirement
In this phase, NewGen will gather the necessary data required to determine the cost of providing water 
services to the City.  Data to be collected will include the City’s budgets, audited financial statements, 
capital improvement plan, loan documents, water pumpage and usage records, etc.  NewGen will plan an 
on-site visit to meet with the appropriate City staff in order to ensure our understanding of the goals for 
the study, review data provided, review relevant system history, and answer questions from City staff.   

Once the necessary data has been collected, NewGen will review the historical and projected trends with 
regard to operations and maintenance costs, debt service, capital improvements, water usage, etc. 
NewGen will adjust expenditures as necessary (normalize, annualize, etc.) in order to develop an annual 
revenue requirement that is representative of the utility’s financial needs.  During this phase, we will 
utilize the base-extra capacity methodology that is in compliance with the AWWA standards to separate 
water related costs into three primary cost components: 1) base costs; 2) extra-capacity costs; and 3) 
customer costs.  Upon completion of this phase we will have developed a five-year revenue requirement 
forecast, by customer class, for the water utility.   

As part of this analysis, and development of the five-year revenue requirement, NewGen will at a 
minimum address the following issues: 

 Identification of fixed versus variable costs (this information will be used to determine the appropriate 
fixed monthly charge)

 Normalization of the revenue requirement to adjust for “wet” and “dry” years

 Inflation adjustments for labor, benefits, chemicals, electricity and all other operating costs. (Inflation
adjustments may vary based on the cost category being inflated.)

B. Wastewater Revenue Requirement
Using much of the data described in the development of the water revenue requirement, NewGen will 
develop a five-year revenue requirement for the wastewater utility.  Key during the development of this 
revenue requirement will be the forecasting of the new bond issue(s) for the wastewater treatment plant 
expansion.  During this task, NewGen will begin to analyze and employ the volume / strength cost 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
8 of 9 

classification methodology for cost allocations for the City’s wastewater service for the wastewater 
treatment plants.  Wastewater treatment and related operation and maintenance costs plus capital costs 
must be segregated as to volume and strength as endorsed by the Water Environment Federation (WEF).  
The strength component should be further classified into the components of BOD and TSS.  As in water 
cost determination, a thorough understanding and determination of the costs incurred, due to plant 
loading will be made for the appropriate wastewater costs to be assigned to the respective customer 
classes.  This analysis will assist in determining to what degree specific wastewater treatment costs should 
be assigned to a specific customer class (i.e. industrial), if any.  

Phase I Deliverables 
 Preliminary five-year revenue requirement forecast – water and wastewater 

 Meeting to discuss the revenue requirement forecast 

 Final five-year revenue requirement forecast – water and wastewater 

Phase II –Design Retail and Wholesale Water and Wastewater Rates 

A. Water Rates 
In Phase II, NewGen will develop a rate structure that will recover the revenue requirement, as defined in 
Phase I.  In many cases it is the rate structure that will determine whether or not a new set of rates will 
be accepted by the utility’s customers.  NewGen’s close involvement with the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ), and now the Public Utility Commission (PUC), and our familiarity with the 
regulatory environment in Texas will ensure that all rate design issues are fully vetted.  A clear and distinct 
understanding of the City’s overall goals will serve as a basis for the development of the proposed rates. 

We will review the fixed versus variable costs for both the retail rates, as well as the wholesale rates.  The 
base-extra capacity allocation will be utilized to determine the level of peaking associated with wholesale 
water customers, which impacts the City’s required storage, water treatment capacity, etc.  The greater 
the peaking factor, the greater the potential “extra capacity” charge for that particular customer.  

B. Wastewater Rates 
Wastewater rates will be designed for residential and commercial customers, with industrial strength 
surcharges designed if applicable for industrial customers.  During the development of the wastewater 
rates, the NewGen Project Team will also evaluate the current wastewater effluent rates for revenue 
sufficiency. 

Phase II Deliverables 
 Preliminary water and wastewater rates 

 Meeting to discuss the preliminary water and wastewater rates  

 Final water and wastewater rates 

Phase III – Issue Draft and Final Report 
Upon completion of Phase II, NewGen will issue a draft report that summarizes NewGen’s financial 
analysis, methodology, and rate recommendations.  A conference call will be held with the City to 
discuss any staff recommended changes to the draft report, with a final report issued within one week 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
9 of 9

of receiving the final comments from City staff.  NewGen will present its findings and recommendations 
to the City Council in a PowerPoint presentation. 

Phase III Deliverables 
 Issue a draft report

 Issue a final report

 Presentation to the City Council

Phase IV – Update Cost of Service Model (Optional) 
NewGen understands the City may want to be provided an updated version of the cost of service model.  
NewGen will provide an updated version of the financial model, if requested, along with training upon 
completion of Phase III.   

Project Timing and Fees 

NewGen typically completes a water and wastewater cost of service and rate design study within 90 to 
120 days of being retained to conduct the study, and would commit to meeting this timetable assuming 
that all necessary financial and operational data is provided in a timely manner.  The project will be billed 
using our standard billing rates listed below.  NewGen will complete Phase I, II, and III for a not-to-exceed 
budget of $38,500.  This cost includes all professional fees and any applicable out-of-pocket expenses.  If 
the City desires an updated cost of service model be provided (Phase IV), the not-to-exceed budget for 
this phase will be $4,000.  Therefore, the total cost would be a not-to-exceed price of $42,500 inclusive 
of all travel expenses for meetings. 

Staff Billing Rate Per Hour 
Dave Yanke, President – Environmental Practice $265 
Senior Consultant 
Staff Consultant 

$160-210 
$120-$160 

Administrative Staff $65 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8513-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED OF $42,500 FOR A WATER AND WASTEWATER COST OF 
SERVICE STUDY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the last cost of service study was completed in fiscal year 2012 – the proposed 
study will develop a five year revenue requirement for the Water and Wastewater utility; 

Whereas, as part of the analysis and development of the five-year revenue requirement, 
NewGen will address the following: review the historical and projected trends with regards to 
operations and maintenance costs, debt service, capital improvements, water usage, and 
wastewater flows, identification of fixed versus variable cost, normalization of the revenue 
requirement to adjust for ‘wet’ and ‘dry’ years, inflation adjustments for labor, benefits, 
chemicals, electricity and all other operating costs, evaluation of current wastewater effluent 
rates, and design Retail and Wholesale water and wastewater rates;  

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC in the amount not to exceed of $42,500 for a Water and 
Wastewater cost of service study; 

Whereas, funding for the study is included in the adopted FY2017 budget in account 
520-5000-535-2616, Professional Services, in the amount of $42,500; and

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to authorize a professional services agreement with NewGen 
Strategies and Solutions, LLC, in the amount not to exceed of $42,500, for a Water and Wastewater 
cost of service study. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Director of Parks and Recreation 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Playcraft 
Systems, a division of Krauss Craft, Inc., of Grants Pass, OR, in the amount of $180,560.54 for the 
purchase and installation of a play system with shade structure for Oak Creek Park. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: One of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was improving the playscape 
at Oak Creek Park, located at 2304 Forest Trail.   

This portion of the project includes the purchase and installation of a new covered farm-themed 
playground as shown in the attached schematic. Additional forthcoming improvements at Oak Creek 
Park that are not covered by this contract include a trail with life stations and a pavilion.   

The City of Temple will be utilizing The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN) contract #R5201 for 
these improvements to the park, which meets the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities. 

It is anticipated that the improvements to Oak Creek Park will all be completed by the summer of 2017. 

This resolution will also waive any construction permit fees associated with the project. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the contract with Playcraft Systems in the amount of $180,560.54, is 
appropriated in account 362-3500-552-6410, project #10139, as follows: 

Project Budget  $        458,415 
Encumbered/Committed to Date    (4,200) 
Playcraft Systems    (180,561) 
Remaining Funds Available  $        273,654 

ATTACHMENTS:   
Play System Schematic 
Resolution 



This playground system design meets 
the requirements for access under the 
Accessibility Guidelines when properly 
installed over accessible surfacing.

Manufactured by Krauss Craft, Inc.
IMPORTANT: The colors shown are for illustration purposes only.  

Actual colors may vary. Contact your Playcraft Rep for accurate color samples.

WARNING: An impact  absorbing safety 
surface is  required  under and around 
all  playground  equipment.

OAK CREEK PARK
TOP VIEW

STRUCTURE#: R50PC9601
PROJECT#: HLP16CA10EA
DATE: 11/9/2016 | DRAWN BY: LAR

PLAYCRAFT REP:
Heartland Park and Recreation, LLCMIN. USE ZONE: 46' x 35'

GENERAL NOTES:
This conceptual plan is based
on information provided prior
to construction. Detailed site
information, including the
following, should be obtained,
evaluated, and utilized in the
final project design. Exact site
dimensions, topography,
existing utilities, soil conditions
and drainage solutions.

WARNING: Accessible safety
surfacing material is required
beneath and around this
equipment that has a critical 
height value (Fall Height)
appropriate for the highest
accessible part of this
equipment. Refer to the CPSC'S
Handbook For Public
Playground Safety, Section 4:
Surfacing.

R5 FOR KIDS
AGES
5-12

ADA ACCESSIBILITY GUIDELINE - ADAAG CONFORMANCE

ELEVATED ACCESSIBLE RAMP ACCESSIBLE GROUND TYPES
9 9/5 0 4/3 3/3

Top View

Back Perspective

Front Perspective

R-5
5-12For Kids

Ages

System
Type Oak Creek Park

Project# HLP16CA10EA DATE: 11/16/2016



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8514-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH 
PLAYCRAFT SYSTEMS, A DIVISION OF KRAUSS CRAFT, INC., OF 
GRANTS PASS, OREGON, IN THE AMOUNT OF $180,560.54, FOR THE 
PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A PLAY SYSTEM WITH SHADE 
STRUCTURE FOR OAK CREEK PARK; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, one of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was improving the 
playscape at Oak Creek Park, located at 2304 Forest Trail;  

Whereas, this portion of the project includes the purchase and installation of a new 
covered, farm-themed playground - additional forthcoming improvements at Oak Creek Park that 
are not covered by this contract include a trail with life stations and a pavilion;  

Whereas, the City of Temple will be utilizing The Cooperative Purchasing Network 
(TCPN) contract #R5201 for these improvements to the park, which meets the statutory 
procurement requirements for Texas municipalities;  

Whereas, it is anticipated that the improvements to Oak Creek Park will all be completed 
by the summer of 2017 - this resolution will also waive any construction permit fees associated 
with the project. 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a construction contract with Playcraft 
Systems, a division of Krauss Craft, Inc., of Grants Pass, OR, for the purchase and installation of 
a play system with shade structure for Oak Creek Park in the amount of $180,560.54; 

Whereas, funding for the contract with Playcraft Systems, in the amount of $180,560.54, 
is appropriated in account 362-3500-552-6410, project #10139; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to authorize a construction contract with Playcraft Systems, a 
division of Krauss Craft, Inc., of Grants Pass, Oregon, in the amount of $180,560.54, for the 
purchase and installation of a play system with shade structure for Oak Creek Park. 



2 
 

 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kevin Beavers, Director of Parks and Recreation 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Vortex 
USA, Inc. of Carrollton, in the amount of $402,926.41 for the construction of a splashpad at Jaycee 
Neighborhood Park. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: One of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was renovation of the facilities 
and the addition of a splashpad in Jaycee Neighborhood Park located at 2302 West Avenue Z.  

Previously, Council authorized contracts for the installation of a new playscape with shade structure, 
the construction of a trail with play nodes & exercise stations, the construction of a new pavilion, along 
with other park amenities. This final portion of the project includes the construction of a 1,590 sf space-
themed splashpad with a 3,000 gallon enclosed recirculating tank & pump, numerous water features, 
and five offset shade structures. 

The City will be utilizing a National Purchasing Partners cooperative contract to fulfill the solicitation 
requirements associated with this procurement. Contracts awarded through the NPP cooperative have 
been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities. 

It is anticipated that the construction of the splashpad will be complete on or before May 2017. This 
resolution will also waive any construction permit fees associated with the project.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the contract with Vortex USA, Inc. in the amount of $402,926.41, is 
appropriated in account 362-3500-552-6403, project #101312, as follows: 

Project Budget  $        989,570 
Encumbered/Committed to Date    (535,312) 
Vortex USA, Inc.    (402,927) 
Remaining Funds Available  $      51,331 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Schematic Drawing 
Resolution 





1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8515-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH VORTEX 
USA, INC. OF CARROLLTON, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $402,926.41, 
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SPLASHPAD AT JAYCEE 
NEIGHBORHOOD PARK; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, one of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was renovation of the 
facilities and the addition of a splashpad in Jaycee Neighborhood Park located at 2302 West 
Avenue Z;  

Whereas, previously, Council authorized contracts for the installation of a new playscape 
with shade structure, the construction of a trail with play nodes & exercise stations, the 
construction of a new pavilion, along with other park amenities - this final portion of the project 
includes the construction of a 1,590 square-foot, space-themed splashpad with a 3,000 gallon 
enclosed recirculating tank & pump, numerous water features, and five offset shade structures; 

Whereas, the City will be utilizing a National Purchasing Partners (NPP) cooperative 
contract to fulfill the solicitation requirements associated with this procurement – and contracts 
awarded through the NPP cooperative have been competitively procured and meet the statutory 
procurement requirements for Texas municipalities;  

Whereas, it is anticipated that the construction of the splashpad will be complete on or 
before May 2017 - this resolution will also waive any construction permit fees associated with 
the project; 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a construction contract with Vortex USA, 
Inc. of Carrollton, Texas, in the amount of $402,926.41, for the construction of a splashpad at 
Jaycee Neighborhood Park; 

Whereas, funding for the contract with Vortex USA, Inc. in the amount of $402,926.41, 
is appropriated in account 362-3500-552-6403, project #101312; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Vortex USA, Inc. of 



2 
 

Carrollton, Texas, in the amount of $402,926.41, for the construction of a splashpad at Jaycee 
Neighborhood Park. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Ashley Williams, Director of General Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Shaw 
Integrated Solutions and Cen-Tex Tile & Floor Center, in an amount not to exceed $111,592 for flooring 
replacement at the Library utilizing the National Joint Powers Alliance cooperative. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The project entails the replacement of flooring at the Library located at 100 West 
Adams Avenue on the second floor of the Library, the McLane room and the basement lobby.  

Shaw Integrated Solutions of Dalton, GA was identified through the National Joint Powers Alliance 
cooperative agreement. Through this agreement the City is able to purchase materials and include 
labor from a local business. The flooring will be installed by Cen-Tex Tile & Floor Center of Temple. 
The project will be completed with funding not to exceed $111,592. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding to replace the 2nd floor carpet at the library has been appropriated through 
Limited Tax Notes in the amount of $95,000. A budget adjustment is being presented for Council 
approval to appropriate the revenue from a contribution being made by the Foundation of the Temple 
Public Library in the amount of $17,087. Funding for project # 101481 in account 364-4000-555-6310 
is as follows: 

Project Budget  $      95,000 
Budget Adjustment   17,087 

Encumbered/Committed to Date  (495) 
NJPA - Shaw Integrated Solutions  (111,592) 

Remaining Funds Available  $        0 

ATTACHMENTS:   
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2017
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

364-0000-461-08-30
364-4000-555-63-10 101481

TOTAL…………………………………………………………………………………………… -$            

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No
DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Allocating a contribution of $17,087 being made by the Foundation of the Temple Public Library for the purpose of replacing the carpet in the 
main area on the 2nd floor of the library.

1/19/2017

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased account are 
available.

34,174$      

INCREASE

17,087$      
17,087        

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Other Revenues - Foundation of the Temple Public Library

Building & Grounds - Replace 2nd Floor Carpet - Library

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8516-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH SHAW 
INTEGRATED SOLUTIONS AND CEN TEX TILE & FLOOR CENTER IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $111,592 FOR FLOORING 
REPLACEMENT AT THE LIBRARY UTILIZING THE NATIONAL JOINT 
POWERS ALLIANCE CONTRACT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the project entails the replacement of flooring at the Library located at 100 
West Adams Avenue on the second floor of the Library, the McLane Room and the basement 
lobby; 

Whereas, Shaw Integrated Solutions of Dalton, Georgia, was identified through the 
National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) cooperative agreement and through this agreement the 
City is able to purchase materials and include labor from a local business - the flooring will be 
installed by Cen-Tex Tile & Floor Center of Temple; 

Whereas, the project will be completed for a not to exceed amount of $111,592; 

Whereas, funding to replace the 2nd floor carpet at the library has been appropriated 
through Limited Tax Notes in the amount of $95,000 - a budget adjustment is being presented 
for Council approval to appropriate the revenue from a contribution being made by the 
Foundation of the Temple Public Library in the amount of $17,087 – funding for project number 
101481 is appropriated in account number 364-4000-555-6310; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract for flooring replacement at the 
Library with Shaw Integrated Solutions and Cen Tex Tile & Floor Center in an amount not to 
exceed $111,592, utilizing the National Joint Powers Alliance contract. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 



2 
 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an agreement for yearly service through 
AT&T Corporation, of Dallas, in the amount of $90,000 for voice and data services. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in the item description.

ITEM SUMMARY: The Information Technology department currently has many locations throughout 
the City that require multiple contracts with companies that provide telephone, internet and data 
services. One of these services that is provided is what are called “PRI” Circuits or Primary Rate 
Interfaces that provide 24 channels of voice lines. We also have data circuits that are provided through 
various companies. We currently use multiple vendors such as AT&T, Grande and Time Warner 
because we need redundancy among different city locations so that we do not lose services at all 
locations. 

AT&T Corporation currently provides us with voice and high-speed data services to multiple City 
departments which include the City Hall, Police Department, Service Center and other city facilities. 
We currently use services through Grande Communications, Time Warner and AT&T in an effort to 
avoid a catastrophic outage at all City facilities if we were only to use one company. We also use this 
plan successfully by having internet service provided by all three companies for backup due to the 
critical nature of providing access to Police, Fire, email services and other critical city applications 

Now more than ever, the city requires redundant reliable network connectivity and access to city 
resources. Connections to and from city departments, government agencies, vendors and citizens are 
all equally important to keep the continuity when needed. The city runs all day, every day and even in 
off hours. We run operations around the clock, seven days a week so it’s important to realize that to 
keep a solid business continuity strategy, redundancy technologies should be considered and 
implemented. 

As part of our plan to diversify services we recommend to continue this contract with AT&T as they 
already have the equipment and services at these locations.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the services provided by AT&T Corporation for voice and high-speed 
data is available in account 110-1900-519-2610 in the amount of $90,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8517-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING AN AGREEMENT FOR YEARLY VOICE AND DATA 
SERVICES THROUGH AT&T CORPORATION, OF DALLAS, TEXAS, IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $90,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Information Technology Department currently has many locations 
throughout the City that require multiple contracts with companies that provide telephone, 
internet and data services; 

Whereas, the Information Technology Department also has data circuits that are provided 
through various companies and the Department currently uses multiple vendors such as AT&T, 
Grande, and Time Warner to provide redundancy among different City locations;  

Whereas, AT&T Corporation currently provides voice and high-speed data services to 
multiple City departments which include the City Hall, Police Department, Service Center and 
other City facilities and in order to continue to diversify services, Staff recommends the Council 
ratify this agreement for voice and data services with AT&T in the amount of $90,000;  

Whereas, funding for the services provided by AT&T Corporation for voice and high-
speed data is available in account 110-1900-519-2610 in the amount of $90,000; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to ratify an agreement for yearly voice and data services through 
AT&T Corporation, of Dallas, Texas, in the amount of $90,000. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 



2 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 

Item #4(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Kenny Henderson, Transportation Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kimley-Horn of Austin, in an amount not to exceed $49,300 for engineering services required for 
the traffic signal design at the intersections of North Kegley Road at Airport Road and West Adams 
Avenue at Greenview Drive. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The intersections of North Kegley Road at Airport Road and West Adams Avenue 
at Greenview Drive have met warrants for the installation of traffic signals. This is due to growth in the 
area.  
 
Professional engineering services are broken down as follows. 
 

Task I  Project Management   $   6,200.00 
Task II Data Collection    $   2,600.00 

   Survey Sub-Consultant   $   9,500.00 
Task III Plans, Specification, and Estimate $ 31,000.00 

  
  Total       $ 49,300.00     
     
The proposed timeline for design of this project is 90 days.  The estimated construction costs for the 
two traffic signals is $450,000.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Council received a briefing on December 1, 2016, recommending adding these two 
signals to the City’s Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) in the FY 2017 Budget.   
 
Funding is appropriated for the professional services agreement with Kimley-Horn for engineering 
services required for the traffic signal design at the intersections of North Kegley Road at Airport Road 
and West Adams Avenue at Greenview Drive in an amount not to exceed $49,300 in account 365-
2800-532-6810, projects 101611 and 101612 as follows: 

 
 
 



01/19/17 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

North Kegley Road @    West Adams Avenue @ 
       Airport Road    Greenview Drive 

365-2800-532-6810
Project 101611

365-2800-532-6810
Project 101612 Total 

Project Budget  $      - $ - $    - 
Budget Adjustment     24,650  24,650          49,300 

Encumbered/Committed to Date       - -   - 
Kimley-Horn Agreement    (24,650)        (24,650)         (49,300) 

Remaining Project Funds  $      - $ - $  -   

Funding for construction will be reallocated within current TCIP funding. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 



Airport at Kegley and Adams at Greenview Signal Designs November 18, 2016 

Temple, Texas 

1 of 4 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

City: Temple, Texas 

Location(s): Airport Road and N Kegley Road 

W Adams Ave. and Greenview Dr. 

Project: Airport Road and N Kegley Road & W Adams Ave. and Greenview Dr. 

Traffic Signal Design 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Kimley-Horn (the “Engineer”) will be responsible for the proper, accurate, and adequate design and preparation of plans, 

specifications, and estimate for the Project.  The Project generally includes Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) for 

new signal installations at: 

 Airport Road at N Kegley Road

 W Adams Ave. at Greenview Dr.

The intersections of Airport Road at N Kegley Road and W Adams Ave. at Greenview Dr. are unsignalized three and four-

legged intersections respectively.  Both intersections operate under ‘Two-Way’ stop control.  Airport Road is a five lane 

undivided arterial including a center two-way-left-turn lane.  This is a State road with a designation of SH 36 and has a 

speed limit of 60 mph and.  W Adams Ave. is also a five lane undivided arterial including a center two-way-left-turn lane. 

W Adams Ave. has a speed limit of 50 mph and is a State road with a designation of FM 2305.  A new traffic signal will be 

designed for both the intersections.   

Design services related to the design and plan production for this project will be performed in accordance with the current 

TxDOT Design and Construction Standards.  Plans will be prepared on 11”x17” sheets per TxDOT criteria and 2014 

TxDOT Specifications. . 

This project will be developed utilizing Microstation V8i and Bentley Geopak V8i. 

TASK OUTLINE 

I. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Project management spans the entire duration of the project and involves monitoring and coordination of services provided 

to the City of Temple (“the City”) to assure timely and efficient completion of the project.  This task consists of project 

control and scheduling, documentation, reporting requirements, sub-consultant coordination, and quality control.  The 

Engineer will conduct project review and project specific technical meetings under this subtask.  The Engineer will attend 

one (1) kick-off meeting, one (1) 30% field review meeting, and one (1) 90% review meeting. 

II. DATA COLLECTION AND SURVEY

The Engineer will conduct field reconnaissance to verify existing conditions at each of the above locations. 

The Engineer will coordinate with a Sub-Consultant to obtain topographical and Level B sub-surface utility (SUE) survey 

to locate the approximate horizontal location of existing underground utilities at the above locations.  The intersection 

survey limits will be within the right-of-way (ROW), extending approx. 150 feet down each leg from the center of the 

intersection.  

The Engineer will coordinate with the City to mark field locates for their utilities, obtain copies of utility plans in the area, 

obtain copies of plans for any improvements constructed in the area, and meet with the surveyor in the field as required.  

III. PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS & ESTIMATE

A. SIGNAL DESIGN PLANS

The Engineer will develop plans to install new traffic signals at the intersections of Airport Road at N Kegley Road and

W Adams Ave. at Greenview Dr.



Airport at Kegley and Adams at Greenview Signal Designs November 18, 2016 

Temple, Texas 

2 of 4 

(a) The signal plans will be prepared at a scale of 1”=40’ and will include the following sheets.

(i) Existing Conditions sheet will show locations of existing traffic control devices, underground, and

overhead utilities at each intersection.

(ii) Signal Layout sheet will show the locations of proposed signal poles, pedestrian poles, signal heads,

communication equipment, electrical conduits, ground boxes, signal cabinet, new electrical service,

existing utilities, right of way, and proposed roadway improvements.  Due to lateral and vertical

clearance required from an overhead electric line (per the State law), the Engineer will coordinate with

the City before finalizing locations of signal poles, where applicable.

(iii) Signal Elevation sheet will show placement of signal heads on a mast-arm and vertical clearance required

for the mast-arm.

(iv) Conduit Chart and Electrical Wiring sheet will show the type and number of electrical wires in each

conduit run.  A new electrical service will be designed to support total electrical load due to the new

traffic signal and safety lighting at the intersection. The electrical service will include two separate

circuits for traffic signal and illumination. The Engineer will conduct a field meeting with the City and

local electric service provider to determine location of new electrical service.

(v) Phasing & Detection sheet will show the proposed phasing at each intersection. Phasing and signal-heads

for left-turn movements will be designed in conformance with 2014 Texas MUTCD. Video detection

details for each movement will also be shown.

(vi) Quantities sheet will be provided for the intersection.

(b) The Engineer will use latest general notes issued by the City/TxDOT and update appropriately as required for

traffic signals.

(c) There is no existing pedestrian sidewalks or ramps at either intersection.  Locations of new pedestrian poles

and pedestrian access ramps will be designed in conformance with ADA requirements, where possible.

(i) Airport Ave. at N Kegley Road – There are existing drainage pipes on the south side of the intersection

and grade differences at the intersection.  The Engineer has assumed that no drainage or roadway

improvements shall be needed to provide pedestrian crosswalk and ADA ramps, and other pedestrian

equipment.  The Engineer shall not develop any drainage or roadway improvement plans to provide

pedestrian access as part of the scope of services for this project.

(ii) W Adams Ave. at Greenview Dr. – There is an existing drainage structure on the east side of the

intersection that requires guardrails and causes steep grade difference on the northeast and southeast

corners of the intersection.  The Engineer shall not develop any drainage or roadway improvement plans

to provide pedestrian access as part of the scope of services for this project.

B. STANDARDS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND ESTIMATE

(a) The Engineer will download the appropriate City and TxDOT standards from the City or State web site, as

appropriate.  Standards that require modification will be corrected and sealed by the Engineer.  All other

standards will have their title blocks filled out with the applicable project data and printed for inclusion in the

final plan set.

(b) The Engineer will provide a list of applicable special specifications for traffic signals. If needed, the Engineer

will develop or modify up to four (4) unique special specifications where an existing statewide specification is

unavailable.

(c) An opinion of probable construction cost will be prepared at the 90% and prior to final PS&E submittal, and

supplied to the City in Microsoft Excel format.

IV. DELIVERABLES

1. 30% Plans Submittal

(a) Existing Conditions

(b) Proposed Signal Layout

(c) Signal Elevation



 

Airport at Kegley and Adams at Greenview Signal Designs  November 18, 2016 

Temple, Texas 

3 of 4 

 

2. 90% Plans Submittal 

(a) Address any comments from City’s 30% review 

(b) Title Sheet & Index 

(c) General Notes 

(d) Existing Conditions 

(e) Proposed Signal Layout 

(f) Signal Elevation 

(g) Electrical Wiring 

(h) Phasing and Detection 

(i) Signing and Markings 

(j) Estimated Quantities 

(k) City/TxDOT Standards  

(l) Preliminary Cost Estimate 

3. 100% Plans Submittal 

(a) Address any review comments from the City and TxDOT to plan sheets from 90% submittal 

(b) Signed and sealed sheets (see above) 

(c) Final cost estimate 

V. SCHEDULE 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Any services not specifically provided for in the above scope will be considered additional services and can be performed at 

our then current hourly rates.  Additional services we can provide include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

 Bidding phase services 

 Construction phase services and record drawings. 

 Traffic signal warrant study. 

 Drainage design, intersection re-grading, and roadway design. 

 Illumination design except intersection safety lighting mounted on top of signal poles. 

 Traffic signal communication system and coordinated signal timing plans. 

 Preparation of ROW easement exhibit outside of those prepared by the surveyor. 

 Application and permitting fees. 

 As-built surveys of constructed improvements. 

 Attendance at public meetings or City Council, Planning & Zoning meetings. 

 Any additional meetings not listed in the scope of services. 

  

Time 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Kick-off Meeting 1 Day

Field Reconn and Survey 3 Wks

30% Plans 3 Wks

City Review - Field Meeting 2 Wks

90% Plans 4 Wks

City Review 2 Wks

Final PS&E 1.5 Wks

Task

Week



Airport at Kegley and Adams at Greenview Signal Designs November 18, 2016 

Temple, Texas 

4 of 4 

FEE SCHEDULE 

Kimley-Horn will perform the services in Tasks I – III for the total lump sum labor fee as shown below. Individual task 

amounts are informational only.  In addition to the lump sum labor fee, direct reimbursable expenses such as express 

delivery services, fees, air travel, and other direct expenses will be billed at 1.15 times cost.  All permitting, application, and 

similar project fees will be paid directly by the City. 

Lump Sum 

Task I Project Management $    6,200 

Task II Data Collection  $    2,600 

Survey Sub-Consultant  $    9,500 

Task III Plans, Specifications, and Estimate $  31,000 

Total Lump Sum Fee $  49,300 

Lump sum fees will be invoiced monthly based upon the overall percentage of services performed.  Reimbursable expenses 

will be invoiced based upon expenses incurred.  Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the invoice and 

should include the invoice number and Kimley-Horn project number. 



^

^

W Adams Ave at Greenview Dr

Airport Rd at N Kegley Rd

W ADAMS AVE

NW
H K

DO
DG

EN
LO

OPAIRPORT RD

SW
H

K
DODGEN LOOP

OL
D H

OW
AR

D R
D

S 5
7T

H 
ST

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N
KE

GL
EY

RD

S INTERSTATE 35

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

RESEARCH PKWY

W NUGENT AVE

S
KE

G L
EY

RD

AI
RP

OR
TT

RL

12/1/2016

:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not have
been prepared for, or be suitable for, legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. They do not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represent only the approximate relative location of
property boundaries and other features.

Proposed Traffic Signal Locations
0 1,900 3,800 5,700950

Feet





1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8518-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KIMLEY-HORN OF AUSTIN, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF $49,300, 
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES REQUIRED FOR THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
DESIGN AT THE INTERSECTIONS OF NORTH KEGLEY ROAD AT 
AIRPORT ROAD AND WEST ADAMS AVENUE AT GREENVIEW DRIVE; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, on December 1, 2016, City Council received a briefing on the recommendation 
of adding two traffic signals to the City’s Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) 
located at the intersections of North Kegley Road at Airport Road and West Adams Avenue at 
Greenview Drive; 

Whereas, the intersections of North Kegley Road at Airport Road and West Adams 
Avenue at Greenview Drive have met warrants for the installation of traffic signals due to 
growth in the area; 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Kimley-Horn in the amount of $49,300 for engineering services required for the design at the 
above intersections; 

Whereas, funding is appropriated for this agreement in an amount not to exceed $49,300 
in Account No. 365-2800-532-6810, Project No. 101611 and 101612; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Kimley-Horn of 
Austin, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $49,300 for engineering services required for the 
traffic signal design at the intersections of North Kegley Road at Airport Road and West Adams 
Avenue at Greenview Drive. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 

Item #4(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an agreement for Right of Way 
Procurement with the State of Texas for right of way necessary for improvements to FM 2483. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On June 16, 2016, Council approved a resolution authorizing the City Manager, or 
his designee, to execute an Advance Funding Agreement with the State of Texas (Texas Department 
of Transportation) to fund 40% of the construction costs for Prairie View Road Phase 2 from North Pea 
Ridge Road to FM 2483 and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents. 
 
As part of the construction of Prairie View Road Phase 2, the State has deemed it necessary to make 
certain highway improvements on State Highway System Road FM 2483 from FM 2483 to State 
Highway 317. This section of improvements necessitates the acquisition of certain right of way and 
relocating and adjusting of utilities. Per the Advance Funding Agreement, the City is responsible for 
acquiring the needed right of way.  
 
A local government’s cost participation in right of way acquisition for improvements to a State Highway 
System road is set forth in 43 Texas Administrative Code § 15.55.  In accordance with this statute, the 
City agrees to proceed with acquisition of right of way at 100% local participation.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the right of way necessary for improvements to FM 2483 from FM 2483 
to State Highway 317 as part of the construction of Prairie View Road Phase 2 is available in account 
365-3400-531-6862, project #101257. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Agreement for Right of Way Procurement 
Resolution 
 
 
  





































1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8519-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT OF WAY 
PROCUREMENT WITH THE STATE OF TEXAS (TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION) FOR RIGHT OF WAY NECESSARY FOR 
IMPROVEMENTS TO FM 2483; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, On June 16, 2016, Council approved a resolution authorizing the City 
Manager, or his designee, to execute an Advance Funding Agreement (AFA) with the State of 
Texas (Texas Department of Transportation) to fund 40% of the construction costs for Prairie 
View Road Phase 2 from N. Pea Ridge Road to FM 2483 and authorizing the City Manager to 
execute all necessary documents; 

Whereas, as part of the construction of Prairie View Road Phase 2, the State has deemed 
it necessary to make certain highway improvements on State Highway System Road FM 2483 
from FM 2483 to State Highway 317 - this section of improvements necessitates the acquisition 
of certain right of way and relocating and adjusting of utilities and per the AFA, the City is 
responsible for acquiring the needed right of way; 

Whereas, a local government’s cost participation in right of way acquisition for 
improvements to a State Highway System road is set forth in 43 Texas Administrative Code § 
15.55 – and in accordance with this statute, the City agrees to proceed with acquisition of right of 
way at 100% local participation;   

Whereas, the right of way necessary for improvements to FM 2483 from FM 2483 to 
State Highway 317, as part of the construction of Prairie View Road Phase 2, is available in 
account 365-3400-531-6862, project # 101257; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute an Agreement for Right of Way Procurement with the 
State of Texas (Texas Department of Transportation) for right of way necessary for 
improvements to FM 2483. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 



2 
 

place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 

Item #4(M) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Mitch Randles, Fire Chief 
Ashley Williams, General Services Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit an 
application and accept funding through the Texas A&M Forest Services TIFMAS Grant Assistance 
Program, in the amount of $2,250 for training tuition. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Texas A&M Forest Services provides financial assistance to departments across 
the state, assisting in tuition for firefighters to attend initial and recurrent training. Eligible applicants 
include career fire departments that have no volunteer members and that are staffed with paid 
employees only. The reimbursement rate is 100% of the actual cost of tuition, not to exceed $122 per 
day up to a maximum of $610 per trainee. The maximum grant assistance per school per department 
is $6,100.  The annual maximum for all training tuition assistance per department is $12,000. 
 
The application is on a first-come, first-served basis. The grant solicitation is open since Sept 1, 2016.  
The total amount of funds available is $800,000. 
 
Temple Fire & Rescue is requesting funding for two training courses, for 2 trainees. The total costs for 
all courses is $2,400. 
 
Staff also asks that Council authorize the City Manager to execute necessary documents associated 
with the TIFMAS grant program, upon receiving a grant award. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: If awarded the grant, the City would receive $2,250 to pay for a portion of the $2,400 
for Fire Officer training. The remaining amount needed for the training courses of $150 is available in 
account 110-2223-522-25-14. 
     
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8520-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION 
FOR THE TEXAS A&M FOREST SERVICES TIFMAS GRANT 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,250 FOR TRAINING 
TUITION; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Texas A&M Forest Services provides financial assistance to departments 
across the state, assisting in tuition for firefighters to attend initial and recurrent training - 
eligible applicants include career fire departments that have no volunteer members and that are 
staffed with paid employees only; 

Whereas, the reimbursement rate is 100% of the actual cost of tuition, not to exceed $122 
per day up to a maximum of $610 per trainee - the maximum grant assistance per school per 
department is $6,100 and the annual maximum for all training tuition assistance per department 
is $12,000;  

Whereas, the application is on a first-come, first-served basis and the grant solicitation 
has been open since Sept 1, 2016 - Temple Fire & Rescue is requesting funding for two training 
courses, for 2 trainees and the total costs for all courses is $2,400;  

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the submission of a grant application for 
the Texas A&M Forest Services TIFMAS Grant Assistance Program, in the amount of $2,250 
for training tuition – Staff also asks that Council authorize the City Manager to execute necessary 
documents associated with the TIFMAS grant program, upon receiving a grant award; 

Whereas, if awarded the grant, the City would receive $2,250 to pay for a portion of the 
$2,400 for Fire Officer training while the remaining amount needed for the training courses of 
$150 is available in account 110-2223-522-25-14; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 3:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager to submit a grant application for 
the Texas A&M Forest Services TIFMAS Grant Assistance Program, for funding in the amount 
of $2,250 for training tuition. 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents which may be necessary to apply for this 



2 
 

grant, and accept any funds that may be received from this grant. 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 

Item #4(N) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    
 
Kevin Beavers, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING - Consider an ordinance adopting the Temple Parks and 
Recreation Youth Standards of Care. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented on second and final reading. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On August 19, 2004, City Council adopted the Standards of Care for youth programs 
sponsored by the Parks and Recreation Department. The standards were developed after the 
department was contacted by the Texas Department of Protective and Regulatory Services (TDPRS).  
One of the requirements of the TDPRS is for cities that conduct youth programs to adopt a Standards 
of Care policy. The purpose of the policy is to assure the community that when they place their 
child/children in one of our programs our facilities are safe, a background check has been conducted 
on our staff and that they are properly trained for the program they will be conducting.   
 
Some of the key elements of the City or Temple standards include: 
 

• Defining a participant as a youth, ages 5-13, whose parent(s) have completed all required 
registration procedures and is determined to be eligible for a Temple Youth Program 

• Ensuring that criminal background checks will be conducted on prospective youth program 
employees  

• Stating that as soon as possible after employment all appropriate staff will complete a course in 
first aid and Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR). 

• Stating that the Parks and Leisure Services Department will provide training and orientation to 
program employees and that staff will be provided with a program manual specific to each Youth 
Program. 

• Indicating that in a Temple youth recreation program, the number of participants may not exceed 
leaders by a minimum ratio of one leader per 20 participants for children five years to 13 years 
of age.   

 
 
 
 
 



01/19/17 
Item #4(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

• Assuring parents that they will be notified immediately if a:
(1) participant is injured
(2) participant has a sign or symptom requiring exclusion from the site (i.e. communicable

disease, fever, illness)
(3) if there is an outbreak of any communicable disease that is reportable to the State

Department of Health.
• Confirming that all program sites will have an annual fire inspection by the City Fire Marshall

prior to September 1 of each year.
• Requiring the Parks and Recreation Director to provide an annual report to the City Council on

the overall status of the Youth Programs and their operation relative to compliance with the
adopted Standards of Care.

In 2016, average daily enrolled attendance at the afterschool sites increased from 300 children to 313. 
The summer camp average enrolled attendance increased from 257 to 265.   All training and inspection 
requirements were met.  

Each year the Parks and Recreation Department is required to review the previous year’s afterschool 
and camp programs and develop an annual report, including making any recommendations believed 
to be necessary to change the Child Care Ordinance. City Council is then asked to conduct a public 
hearing, approve the report and adopt the Standards of Care.   

We are not recommending any changes to the current (and proposed) Child Care Ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
2016 Child Care Standards Report 
2017 Child Care Standards  
Ordinance



1 

Parks and Recreation Services Department 
Child Care Standards Annual Report 

2016 

Throughout the 2016 school year, the City of Temple Parks and Recreation Services 
Department provided after-school programs for boys and girls ages 5-13 at four Temple 
I.S.D campuses, four Belton I.S.D campuses and St. Mary’s Catholic School. The
department also organized two summer camps, a spring break camp (Camp Adventure),
and a holiday camp (Camp Holidaze) for children ranging from 5 to 13 at the Wilson
Recreation Center.

After School Programs 
The after-school programs run concurrent with each of the schools including holidays and 
teacher workdays. Children attended the programs from 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday 
through Friday.  On teacher workdays and school holidays, the program is offered from 
7am – 6pm at Wilson Park Recreation Center.   

The children are provided with a quality recreation program that includes activities such as 
tutoring and dedicated homework//educational sessions, arts and crafts, athletics, gym 
games, etc.  The children are also provided a healthy snack.  The after school programs are 
staffed with part-time employees but supervised by a full time Program Coordinator and 
Recreation Specialist. 

Location Attendance (daily average) 
2015 2016 

Thornton Elementary 31 26 
Western Hills  14 16 
Kennedy Powell 43 40 
Cater  20 22 
Lakewood 45 48 
Pirtle   44 51 
Tarver  43 44 
St. Mary’s 17 20 
High Point  43 46 

Camps 
Summer camps included Camp Heatwave, which took place at the Wilson Park Recreation 
Center and Camp Horizon which was held at Tarver Elementary School. Camp Heatwave 
and Horizon were 11 week programs. Both camps were staffed with part-time recreation 
leaders and supervised by a full-time Recreation Specialist and a Recreation Coordinator. 
Because of numerous waitlisted children seeking participation in our camps the 
Department is looking into a third site for camp at Kennedy-Powell Elementary School. 
The same staffing format also occurred at Camp Holidaze and Camp Adventure 

The summer camp schedule was 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. The 
children participated in a variety of activities including arts and crafts, athletics, swimming, 
field trips, hiking, disc golf, archery, outdoor adventure programs, etc. The children at 
Camp Heatwave were provided a lunch and an afternoon snack from the Temple I.S.D. 
summer lunch program. 

Each participant submitted a signed waiver, registration form and emergency contact 
information. 



 2 

   
Camp Name      Attendance (daily average) 
        2015  2016 
Camp Holidaze (Christmas Break)    60  54 
Camp Adventure (Spring Break)    91  59 
Camp Heatwave (Summer Camp)    165  123 
Camp Horizon (Summer Camp)    92  69 
Camp Harmony        73 
 
Scholarships 
Parents who are in need of financial support are provided the opportunity to apply for 
assistance. Based upon the guidelines adopted by The Parks and Recreation Services 
Advisory Board, 31 participants received aid in the form of reduced fees. 
 After School Program 

1 – 75% reduced (Parents paid $10 per child, weekly) 
1 – 50% reduced (Parents paid $20 per child, weekly) 

  3 – 20% reduced (Parents paid $32 per child, weekly) 
 
  
 Camp Heatwave, Quest, Horizon 

 1 – 95% reduced (Parents paid $3.5 per child, weekly) 
 2 – 90% reduced (Parents paid $7 per child, weekly) 
 1 – 80% reduced (Parents paid $14 per child, weekly) 

  8 – 75% reduced (Parents paid $17.50 per child, weekly) 
 4 – 60% reduced (Parents paid $28 per child, weekly) 
 6 – 50% reduced (Parents paid $35 per child, weekly) 
 2 – 30% reduced (Parents paid $49 per child, weekly) 

2 – 25% reduced (Parents paid $52.50 per child, weekly) 
 
At the beginning of the 2012-2013 school year, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
adopted new guidelines for scholarships. 
   
Inspection Schedule   
 
The Wilson Recreation Center and all after school sites were inspected in April, May and 
December 2016 for any hazards or potential problems by the Recreation Superintendent.  
None were noted. 
 
The Wilson Recreation Center passed the annual fire inspection in October, 2016. 
 
All school sites were inspected by the Fire Marshall. 
 
 
Training  
Per the adopted Childcare Standards, all staff are CPR/First Aid trained within one year of 
their hire date. Training occurs twice each year. 
 
All staff who worked with children attended a minimum of 12 hours of training pertinent 
to their programming responsibilities. 
 
All staff were given quarterly safety training. 
 
All training requirements were met. 
 



 3 

Recommendations  
 
No recommendations at this time. 



 
 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

 
TEMPLE YOUTH PROGRAMS’ 

 STANDARDS OF CARE 
 

The following Standards of Care have been adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Temple, Texas to pursuant to with Texas Human Resources Code Section 42.041(14).  The 
Standards of Care are the minimum standards by which the City of Temple Parks and Recreation 
Department will operate the City’s Youth Programs.   
 
General Administration 
 
1.   Organization 
 
      A. The governing body of the City of Temple youth programs is the Temple City Council. 
 
      B. Implementation of the Youth Program Standards of Care is the responsibility of the 

Superintendent of Recreation. 
 
      C. Youth Programs (“Program”) to which these Standards will apply are the programs held at 

the Wilson Recreation Center and other “Outreach” programs currently operated by the City 
of Temple. Other programs may be subsequently designated by the City of Temple.     

 
      D. Each Youth Program site will have available for public and staff review a current copy of 

the Standards of Care. 
 
      E. Standards of Care will be made available on the Parks and Recreation Website 

www.templeparks.com. 
 
      F. Criminal background checks will be conducted on prospective Youth Program employees.  

If results of that criminal check indicate that an applicant has been convicted of any of the 
following offenses, he or she will not be considered for employment: 

 
(1) felony or a misdemeanor classified as an offense against a person or family; 

 
(2) felony or misdemeanor classified as public indecency; 

 
(3) felony or misdemeanor violation of any law intended to control the 

possession or distribution of any controlled substance; 
 
(4) offense involving moral turpitude; 

 
(5) offense that would potentially put the City of Temple at risk. 

 
2.  Definitions 



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

2

 
     A. City: City of Temple 
 
     B. City Council: City Council of the City of Temple 
 
     C. Department: Recreation Division of the Parks and Recreation Department of the City of 

Temple 
 
     D. Youth Programs or Program:  City of Temple youth programs held at the Wilson Recreation 

Center, and “Outreach” programs currently operated by the City of Temple.  Other programs 
may be subsequently designated by the City of Temple.   

 
     E. Program Manual: Notebook of policies, procedures, required forms, and organizational and 

programming information relevant to Temple Youth Programs 
 

F. Director: City of Temple Director of Parks and Recreation or his or her designee 
 
     G. Recreation Superintendent: person responsible for the overall oversight of the Parks and 

Recreation  
 

H. Program Coordinator or Coordinator: City of Temple,  Parks and Recreation Department full-
time recreation staff person who has been assigned administrative responsibility for a Temple 
Youth Program 

 
I. Recreation Specialist: City of Temple, Parks and Recreation Department full-time recreation 

staff person who has been assigned day to day responsibilities to implement the City’s Youth 
Program. 

 
J. Recreation Leader or Leaders:  City of Temple, Parks and  Recreation Department part-time 

employee who has been assigned responsibility to conduct the City’s Youth Programs 
 

K. Program Site: Any area or facility where Temple Youth Programs are held    
 

L. Participant: A youth, ages 5-13, whose parent(s) have completed all required registration 
procedures and determined to be eligible for a Temple Youth Program 

 
M. Parent(s): This term will be used to represent one or both parent(s) or guardian(s) who have 

legal custody and authority to enroll their child(ren) in Temple Youth Programs 
 

N. Employee(s): Term used to describe people who have been hired to work for the City of 
Temple, Parks and Recreation Department and have been assigned responsibility for 
managing, administering, implementing or conducting some portions of the Temple Youth 
Programs. 

 
3.  Inspections/Monitoring/Enforcement 



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

3

 
     A. A bi-annual inspection report will be initiated by the Recreation Superintendent to confirm 

the Standards of Care are being adhered to. 
 

(1) Inspection reports will be sent to the Director for review and kept on record 
for at least two years. 

 
(2) The Director will review the report and establish deadlines and criteria for 

compliance with the Standards of Care. 
 
     B. The Recreation Superintendent will make visual inspections of the facilities based on the 

following schedule: 
 

(1)      pre-summer check in May of each year 
 
(2)      winter check in January 

 
     C. Complaints regarding enforcement of the Standards of Care will be directed to the 

Coordinator. The Coordinator will be responsible to take the necessary steps to resolve the 
problems.  All complaints regarding enforcement of the Standards of Care and their 
resolution will be recorded by the Coordinator.  Unresolved complaints regarding 
enforcement of the Standards of Care will be addressed by the Recreation Superintendent, 
and should they still not be resolved, by the Director.  The complaint and the resolution will 
be documented. 

 
     D. The Director will provide an annual report to the City Council on the overall status of the 

Youth Programs and their operation relative to compliance with the adopted Standards of 
Care. 

 
4.  Enrollment 
 
     A. All children participating in the program must be 5 years of age. Before a child can be 

enrolled, the parents must sign registration forms that contain the child’s: 
 

(1) name, address, home telephone number; 
 
(2) name and address of parents and telephone during program hours; 
 
(3) names and telephone numbers of people to whom the child can be 

released; 
 
(4) statement of the child’s special problems or needs; 
 
(5) proof of residency when appropriate; 
 



C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

4

(6)  liability waiver which also includes permission for field trips and emergency
medical authorization.

(7) any medicines the child may be taking

5. Suspected Abuse

Program employees will report suspected child abuse in accordance with the Texas Family 
Code. 

Staffing-Responsibilities and Training 

6. Youth Program Coordinator Qualifications

A. Coordinators will be full-time, employees of the Temple Parks and Recreation Department
and will be required to have all Program Leader qualifications as outlined in Section 8 of
this document.

B. Coordinators must be at least 21 years old.

C. Coordinators must have two years’ experience planning and implementing recreation
activities.

D. Coordinators must be able to pass a background investigation including testing for illegal
substances.

E. As soon as possible after employment with the City of Temple, but within one year,
Coordinators must successfully complete a course in first aid and Cardiopulmonary
Resuscitation (CPR) offered by either: the City of Temple, American Red Cross, American
Heart Association, Medic First-Aid Training Program of America, National Safety Council,
any agency of the State of Texas authorized to provide Emergency Medical Technician or
Emergency Care Attendant certification, or any other agency recognized by any agency of
the U.S. Department of Labor to provide certification.

F. Coordinators must be able to furnish proof of a clear tuberculosis test within 12 months prior
to their employment date.

7. Coordinator’s Responsibilities

A. Coordinators are responsible to administer the Programs’ daily operations in compliance
with the adopted Standards of Care.

B. Coordinators are responsible to recommend for hire, supervise, and evaluate Leaders.



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

5

 
     C. Coordinators are responsible to plan, implement, and evaluate programs. 
 
 
8.  Recreation Leader (“Leader”) Qualifications 
 
     A. Leaders will be full-time, part-time or temporary employees of the Parks and Recreation 

Department. 
 

     B. Leaders working with children must be age sixteen (16) or older.   
 
     C. Leaders should be able to consistently exhibit competency, good judgment, and self-control 

when working with children. 
 
     D. Leaders must relate to children with courtesy, respect, tolerance, and patience. 
 
     E. As soon as possible, but within one year of hiring, all of the Leaders at each site must have 

successfully completed a course in first aid and Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) 
offered by either: the City of Temple, American Red Cross, American Heart Association, 
Medic First-Aid Training Program of America, National Safety Council, any agency of the 
State of Texas authorized to provide Emergency Medical Technician or Emergency Care 
Attendant certification, or any other agency recognized by any agency of the U.S. 
Department of Labor to provide certification.    

 
     F. Each Leader applicant must be able to furnish proof of a clear tuberculosis test within the 12 

months prior to their employment date. 
 
     G. Leader must pass a background investigation including testing for illegal substances. 
 
9.  Leader Responsibilities 
 
     A. Leaders will be responsible to provide participants with an environment in which they can 

feel safe, can enjoy wholesome recreation activities, and can participate in appropriate social 
opportunities with their peers. 

 
     B. Leaders will be responsible to know and follow all City, Departmental, and Program 

standards, policies, and procedures that apply to Temple Youth Programs. 
 
     C. Leaders will ensure that participants are released only to a parent or an adult designated by 

the parent.  All Program sites will have a copy of the Department approved plan to verify 
the identity of a person authorized to pick up a participant if that person is not known to the 
Leader. 

 
      D.  A leader must be with participants at all times or aware of the participants location.    
 



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

6

10. Training/Orientation 
 
     A. The Department is responsible to provide training and orientation to Program employees in 

working with children and for specific job responsibilities.  Coordinators will provide each 
Leader with a Program manual specific to each Youth Program. 

 
     B. Leaders must be familiar with the Standards of Care for Youth Program operation as adopted 

by the City Council. 
 
     C. Program employees must be familiar with the Program’s policies including discipline, 

guidance, and release of participants as outlined in the Program Manual. 
 
     D. Program employees will be trained in appropriate procedures to handle emergencies. 
 
     E. Program employees will be trained in areas including City, Departmental, and Program 

policies and procedures; provision of recreation activities; safety issues; and organization. 
 
     F. All program employees will receive 10 hours of training annually. 
 
     G. Program employees will be required to sign an acknowledgment that they received the 

required training. 
 
Operations 
 
11. Staff-Participant Ratio 
 
     A. In a Temple Youth Program, the number of participants may not exceed leaders by a 

minimum ratio of 1 Leader per 20 participants for children 5 years to 14 years of age.   
 
     B. Each participant should have a Program employee who is responsible for him or her and 

who is aware of details of the participant’s habits, interests, and any special problems as 
identified by the participant’s parents during the registration process. 

 
12. Notification 
 

A. Parents must be notified immediately if: 
 

(1) Participant is injured; or 
 
(2) Participant has a sign or symptom requiring exclusion from the site (i.e. 

communicable disease, fever, illness).   
 
      B. All parents must be notified if there is an outbreak of any communicable disease that is 

reportable to the State Department of Health.   
 



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

7

 
13. Discipline 
 
      A. Program employees will implement discipline and guidance in a consistent manner based on 

the best interests of Program participants. 
 
      B. There will be no cruel or harsh punishment or treatment. 
 
      C. Program employees may use brief, supervised separation from the group if necessary. 
 
      D. As necessary, Program employees will initiate discipline reports to the parent(s) of 

participants. Parents will be asked to sign participant discipline reports to indicate they have 
been advised about a specific problem or incident. 

 
      E. A sufficient number and/or severe nature of discipline reports as detailed in the Program 

manual may result in a participant being suspended from the Program. 
 
      F. In instances where there is a danger to participants or staff, offending participants will be 

removed from the Program site as soon as possible. 
 
14. Programming 
 
     A. Program employees will attempt to provide activities for each group according to the 

participants’ ages, interests, and abilities.  The activities must be appropriate to participants’ 
health, safety, and well-being.  The activities also will be flexible and promote the 
participants’ emotional, social, and mental growth. 

 
     B. Program employees will attempt to provide indoor and outdoor time periods to include: 
 

(1) alternating active and passive activities, 
 

(2) opportunity for individual and group activities, and 
 

(3) outdoor time each day weather permits. 
 
     C. Program employees will be attentive and considerate of the participants’ safety on field trips 

and during any transportation provided by the Program. 
 

(1) During trips, Program employees supervising participants must have 
immediate access to emergency medical forms and emergency 
contact information for each participant. 

 
(2) Program employees must have a written list of the participants in the 

group and must check the roll frequently. 
 



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

8

(3) Program employees must have first aid supplies and a guide to first 
aid and emergency care available on field trips. 

 
(4) Notice of any field trips will be displayed at a prominent place at each site. 

 
15. Communication 
 
     A. Each Program site will have access to a telephone for use in contacting the Recreation Center 

or making emergency calls. 
 
 
     B. The Coordinator will post the following telephone numbers adjacent to a telephone 

accessible to all Program employees at each site: 
 

(1) Temple ambulance or emergency medical services.  
 

(2) Temple Police Department. 
 

(3) Temple Fire Department. 
 

(4) Poison Control. 
 

(5) The telephone number for the site itself. 
 

(6) Numbers at which parents may be reached. 
  

16. Transportation 
 
     A. First aid supplies and a first aid and emergency care guide will be available in all Program 

vehicles that transport children. 
 
     B. All Program vehicles used for transporting participants must have available a 6-BC portable 

fire extinguisher which will be installed in the passenger compartment of the vehicle and 
which must be accessible to the adult occupants. 

 
     C. A notebook containing the names and telephone numbers of Parents and Physicians shall be 

available in all Program vehicles that transport Participants. 
 
Facility Standards 
 
17. Safety 
 
     A. Program employees will inspect Youth Program sites daily to detect sanitation and safety 

concerns that might affect the health and safety of the participants.  A daily inspection report 
will be completed by the Program staff and kept on file by the Program Coordinator. 



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

9

 
     B. Buildings, grounds, and equipment on the Program site will be inspected, cleaned, repaired, 

and maintained to protect the health of the participants. 
 
     C. Program equipment and supplies must be safe for the participant’s use. 
 
     D. Program employees must have first aid supplies available at each site, during transportation, 

and for the duration of any off-site activity. 
 
     E. Program air conditioners, electric fans, and heaters must be mounted out of participants’ 

reach or have safeguards that keep participants from being injured. 
 
     F. Program porches and platforms more than 30 inches above the ground must be equipped 

with railings participants can reach. 
 

G. All swing seats at Program sites must be constructed of durable, lightweight, relatively 
pliable material. 

 
     H. Program employees must have first aid supplies readily available to staff in a designated 

location.  Program employees must have an immediately accessible guide to first aid and 
emergency care. 

 
H. The list of Program sites will be provided to the Bell County Health District-   Environmental 

Health Division so that the Health Division can conduct health inspection(s).  
 
18. Fire 
 
     A. In case of fire, danger of fire, explosion, or other emergency, Program employees’ first 

priority is to evacuate the participants to a designated safe area. 
 
     B. The Program site(s) will have an annual fire inspection by the City Fire Marshall prior to 

September 1 of each year, and the resulting report will detail any safety concerns observed, 
the report will be forwarded to the Director who will review and establish deadlines and 
criteria for compliance.  Information from this report will be included in the Director’s 
annual report to the Council. 

 
     C. Each Program site must have at least one fire extinguisher approved by the Fire Marshall 

readily available to all Program employees.  The fire extinguisher is to be inspected monthly 
by the Program Coordinator, and a monthly report will be forwarded to the Coordinator’s 
supervisor who will keep the report on file for a minimum of two years.  All Youth Program 
staff members will be trained in the proper use of fire extinguishers. 

 
19. Health 
 
     A. Illness or Injury 



C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

10

(1) A participant who is considered to be a health or safety concern to
other participants or staff will not be admitted to the Program.

(2) Illnesses and injuries will be handled in a manner to protect the health
of all participants and employees.

(3) Program employees will follow plans to provide emergency care for
injured participants or for participants with symptoms of an acute
illness as specified in the Program manual.

(4) Program employees will follow the recommendation of the Texas
Department of Health concerning the admission or readmission of any
participant after a communicable disease.

B. Program employees will administer medication only if:

(1) Parent(s) or guardian(s) complete and sign a medication form that
provides authorization for staff to dispense medication with details as
to time and dosages.  The form will include a hold harmless clause to
protect the City.

(2) Prescription medications are in the original containers labeled with
the child’s name, a date, directions, and the physician’s name.
Program staff members will administer the medication only as stated
on the label.  Program staff will not administer medication after the
expiration date.

(3) Nonprescription medications are labeled with the child’s name and
the date the medication was brought to the Program.  Nonprescription
medication must be in the original container.  The Program staff will
administer it only according to label direction.

(4) Medications dispensed will be limited to routine oral ingestion not
requiring special knowledge or skills on the part of Program
employees.  No injections will be administered by the Program
employees.

(5) Program employees must ensure medications are inaccessible to
participants or, if it is necessary to keep medications in the refrigerator
(when available), medications will be kept separate from food.

C. Toilet Facilities

(1) The Program site will have inside toilets located and equipped so children



 
C:\Users\lborgeson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\5BLE1HLE\Childcare 
Standards 2017.docx 

11

can use them independently and program staff can supervise as needed. 
 

(2) There must be one flush toilet for every 30 children.  Urinals may be 
counted in the ratio of toilets to children, but must not exceed 50% of 
the total number of toilets. 

 
(3) An appropriate and adequate number of lavatories will be provided. 

 
     D. Sanitation  
 

(1) The Program site must have adequate light, ventilation, and heat. 
 

(2) The Program must have an adequate supply of water meeting the 
standards of the Texas Department of Health for drinking water and 
ensure that it will be supplied to the participants in a safe and sanitary 
manner. 

 
(3) Program employees must see that garbage is removed from sites 

daily. 
 

     E. The City will contact the Health Department and request an annual health inspection by 
the Health Department prior to September 1 of each year, and the resulting report will detail 
any safety concerns observed, the report will be forwarded to the Director who will review 
and establish deadlines and criteria for compliance 



1

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-4817 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
ADOPTING THE TEMPLE YOUTHS’ PROGRAM STANDARDS OF CARE 
POLICY FROM THE PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, on August 19, 2004, City Council first adopted the Standards of Care for youth 
programs sponsored by the Parks and Recreation Department which were developed after the 
department was contacted by the Texas Department of Protective and Regulatory Services 
(TDPRS);  

Whereas, one of the requirements of the TDPRS is for cities that conduct youth programs to 
adopt a Standards of Care policy annually – the purpose is to assure the community that when they 
place their child/children in one of the City of Temple’s programs, the facilities are safe, a 
background check has been conducted on the Staff, and they are properly trained for any program 
they conduct; 

Whereas, in 2016, the average daily attendance at the afterschool sites increased from a 
daily average of 300 children to 313 with the summer camp average rising from 257 to 265 in 2016; 

Whereas, the Temple Youths’ Program Standards of Care policy, attached hereto as Exhibit 
‘A,’ outlines several key elements including the average daily attendance at all afterschool sites;  

Whereas, each year the Parks and Recreation Department is required to review the previous 
year’s afterschool and camp programs and develop an annual report, including making any 
recommendations Staff believes is necessary to change the Child Care Ordinance – Staff is not 
recommending any changes to the current (and proposed) Child Care Ordinance at this time; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize these actions. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council adopts the Temple Youths’ Program Standards of Care Policy from 
the Temple Parks and Recreation Department, which is required by the Texas Department of 
Protective and Regulatory Services and which assures the community that the City of Temple’s 
facilities are safe, a background check has been conducted on the Staff and they are properly trained 
for any program they conduct, as outlined in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto and incorporated herein for 
all purposes. 

Part 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 
are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 



 

2

 
 
 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the same would have 
been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such invalid 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in accordance 
with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of January, 
2017. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of January, 2017. 
 

 
   THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 

Item #4(O) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPARTMENT/DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – TMED-FY-17-01 – Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending Ordinance No. 2016-4749, for a TMED Planned Development District site plan on .85 +/- 
acres, Lot 11, Block 1, Highline Addition, to allow for a drive-through restaurant located at 2110 South 
31st Street, as well as to amend the overall development/site plan to consider allowing a public sidewalk 
in lieu of a private trail. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their December 6, 2016 meeting, 
P&Z voted unanimously to recommend approval per staff recommendation. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the site plan amendments as proposed 
with the following conditions: 
 

• That the sidewalk is 6 feet wide for consistency with: 
1. The other Scott Boulevard sidewalk required by the developer; and  
2. The Trails Master Plan minimum width 

• That the length of the sidewalk extends to either: 
1. The drainage channel per the Proposed Sidewalk Exhibit; or 
2. As far west as the sidewalk can be extended with the estimated $100,000 budget 

 The cost of replacing the two driveways at 1850 and 2002 Scott Boulevard could 
change based on ADA sloping requirements 

 
ITEM SUMMARY: The horizontal mixed use project called “The District” was approved by City Council 
on February 4, 2016 through a Planned Development District rezoning (apartments zoned PD-T5-e 
and retail PD-T5-c).  The overall project consists of 40.389 acres of apartments to the west and retail 
to the east. 
 
POTBELLY SANDWICH SHOP (LOT 11) 
Drive-through restaurant windows are prohibited in the TMED (Temple Medical Education District) T5-
c zoning district.  The original PD zoning ordinance and accompanying site plan included an exception 
to the drive-through prohibition to allow them on three other restaurant lots; however, no drive-through 
was approved for Lot 11 (shown on 3b of the site plan) and, therefore, the addition of a 4th drive-through 
within the development constitutes as a substantive site plan change requiring City Council approval.  
The proposed Potbelly restaurant will comply with the following condition specified by the PD 
Ordinance: 

• Each restaurant with a drive-through must provide at least 150 square feet of outdoor dining 
space (1500 sf is proposed on Lot 11) 



01/19/17 
Item #4(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
SIDEWALK IN LIEU OF TRAIL 
The Council-approved trail along the drainage connecting the apartments currently under construction 
to S. 37th Street was interpreted to meet the Trails Master Plan implementation requirement for new 
TMED development at that location.  Ultimately, that originally-proposed trail would provide additional 
pedestrian connectivity to Jaycee Park that is also along Scott Boulevard to the west of the development 
and has been slated for $1.1 million worth of park bond-funded improvements this winter.  While the 
developer of The District has indicated that they could still build the trail, they have proposed and 
discussed a sidewalk alternative that staff believes would provide a greater public benefit than the 
private trail would. The following is a summary of the trail proposal: 

• Build a sidewalk in front of the Candlewood Suites Hotel (1850 Scott Boulevard) and the office 
building lot immediately to the west (2002 Scott Boulevard) per attached Proposed Sidewalk 
Exhibit 

• By City Code, a 4-foot sidewalk would be required since Scott Boulevard is considered a 
Collector 

1. However, staff is recommending a 6-foot sidewalk to match width on developer’s property 
to the east and to comply with Trails Master Plan minimum width 

2. An estimated 880 linear feet of sidewalk 
3. Estimated cost of $100,000, which would include the reconstruction of the driveways for 

both 1850 and 2002 Scott Boulevard. 
4. Estimated trails cost is $80,000 

 
In order to ultimately provide a pedestrian connection to Jaycee Park, the following sidewalk 
connections would have to be constructed by others: 

1. In front of the creek/drainage channel 
2. In front of lot at 2102 Scott Blvd. (owner would be responsible for adding a sidewalk when that 

property is developed in the future) 
3. A crosswalk and/or other pedestrian facilities to allow for safe crossing of Scott to Jaycee Park 

Staff is working with Finance to try to finding funding sources for the other phases of the sidewalk. 
 
Development Review Committee: The Design Review Committee (DRC) reviewed the proposed 
Development Plan at their November 21, 2016 meeting. All questions by DRC members were 
adequately addressed by the applicant.   
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Seven notices for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property (Six went to the developer, who still owns 
the other retail lots and one went to Baylor Scott & White Hospital).  As of Friday December 2, 2016 
zero responses had been returned.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Location Map 
Revised Overall Retail Site Plan (Including Potbelly on “Lot 3b”) 
Conceptual Potbelly Site Plan 
Proposed Sidewalk Exhibit 
Notification Map 
P&Z Excerpt (December 6, 2016) 
Ordinance No. 2016-4749 (The District PD Ordinance and Site Plan) 
Ordinance 
  



Potbelly Sandwich Shop Location Map

Easement
Outblock Numbers
Subdivision
ETJ Boundary

Streets
EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL STREET
MINOR ARTERIAL
PRIVATE
RAMP

Railroad
Temple Municipal Boundary
WaterAreas
WaterLines
Park Areas
ETJParcels

Bell County Streets
Bell County Municipal Boundaries
TempleBoundary
Bell County Boundary
Original Annexation Areas

December 12, 2016

 
City of Temple

1:2,257
0 0.04 0.080.02 mi
0 0.085 0.170.0425 km









2110 S. 31st Street Site Plan Amendment-Notification Map

Easement
Outblock Numbers
ETJ Boundary

Streets
EXPRESSWAY
MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR
LOCAL STREET
MINOR ARTERIAL
PRIVATE
RAMP
Railroad

WaterAreas
WaterLines
Park Areas
Bell County Streets
Bell County Boundary
Original Annexation Areas

November 18, 2016

 
City of Temple

1:1,128
0 0.02 0.040.01 mi
0 0.04 0.080.02 km



 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, December 6, 2016 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 2: TMED-FY-17-01 – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action to amend 

Ordinance No. 2016-4749, for a TMED Planned Development District site plan on .85 
+/- acres, Lot 11, Block 1, Highline Addition, to allow for a drive-through restaurant 
located at 2110 South 31st Street, as well as to amend the overall development site 
plan to consider allowing a public sidewalk in lieu of a private trail.  

 
Mr. Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, stated there were two parts to this request. The first 
part is to allow a drive-through at the subject property location (Lot 3B platted as Lot 11) by 
approving an amendment to the original site plan.  
 
The site plan with building footprint shown. The building is 6,600 square feet and will be 
occupied by multiple tenants. 
 
Another site plan is shown with an outdoor patio space of greater than 1,500 square feet 
which exceeds the Planned Development District Ordinance. 
 
Current aerial site plan is shown. 
 
The applicant will need to comply with the landscaping and proposed architectural standards 
of the Unified Development Code (UDC) and as approved in the Planned Development 
District Ordinance. 
 
Part two of the request is a public sidewalk in lieu of a private trail. 
 
Aerial site plan is shown for with the proposed private trail which would essentially connect the 
200 plus apartment project with the South 37th Street stub-out road adjacent to the 
Candlewood Suites Hotel.  
 
Another aerial shows what the area looks like currently with the preserved trees and the 
drainage easement. Whether developed as a trail or not, the trees are to remain.  
 
The applicant is proposing a sidewalk in lieu of the proposed trail for connectivity. A six foot 
sidewalk is proposed along Scott Boulevard (in orange) for pedestrian connectivity all the way 
to the drainage area, which requires a Waters of the US Permit. The applicant has received 
this permit through the Army Corps of Engineers for the detention pond and the drainage work 
(indicated in the red-lined area).  
 
The drainage portion (blue-lined area) requiring a Waters of the US Permit that would be 
outside of the scope of what the developer is requesting. 
 



 

The green-lined area abuts another lot and upon future development a sidewalk will be 
required there. The City would need to provide pedestrian crossing from that sidewalk down to 
the leg of the Jaycee Park. 
 
This proposal would implement the Trails Master Plan (TMP) as part of the Temple Medical 
Education District (TMED) standards for new development. The TMP does show a trail along 
Scott Boulevard connecting to Jaycee Park. 
 
Cost estimates have been provided by the applicant/developer comparing the trail costs of 
$80,000 for a decomposed granite trail, tree work, etc., and the sidewalk construction of 
$100,000 which is higher than the actual trail costs due to unknown expenditures for the 
reconstruction of driveways for Candlewood Suites and the office building to the west to meet 
ADA requirements. 
 
The Thoroughfare Plan designates Scott Boulevard as a collector which requires a four-foot 
wide sidewalk, except in TMED it requires a six-foot wide trail.  
 
Jaycee Park Master Plan is shown. Jaycee Park is funded for bond improvements ($1.1 
million estimate).  
 
Additional view of the “Trail” and Candlewood Suites and how the connectivity would be 
proposed. 
 
The office building located at 2002 Scott Boulevard would also be affected, if approved. 
 
Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed this site plan on November 21, 2016 and 
the applicant has adequately addressed all comments. 
 
Seven notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with zero notices 
returned in agreement or in disagreement. 
 
Staff recommendation is approval with the following conditions: 
 
That the sidewalk is six-feet wide for consistency with: 
 
The other Scott Boulevard sidewalk required by the developer; and 
 
The Trails Master Plan minimum width; and 
 
That the length of the sidewalk extends to either: 
 
The drainage channel per the Proposed Sidewalk Exhibit; or 
 
As far west as the estimated $100,000 will go: 
 
The cost of the two driveways at 1850 and 2002 Scott Boulevard could change based on ADA 
sloping requirements 
 



 

Mr. Chandler explained Candlewood Suites may have been built around 2005-2006 which 
predates TMED and is not actually located within the TMED. Mr. Chandler is unsure why the 
sidewalk was not required for Candlewood Suites at the time of construction. 
 
Chair Rhoads explains the time limits procedure in order for everyone in attendance to have 
an opportunity to speak. 
 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 2, TMED-FY-17-01, and Commissioner 
Ward made a second. 
 
Motion passed:  (8:0) 
Vice-Chair Fettig absent 
 
 

























1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-4818 

(PLANNING NO. TMED-FY-17-01) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2016-4749 FOR A TEMPLE MEDICAL 
EDUCATION DISTRICT PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SITE PLAN ON 
APPROXIMATELY .85 ACRES, LOT 11, BLOCK 1, HIGHLINE ADDITION, TO 
ALLOW FOR A DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 2110 SOUTH 
31ST STREET; AND AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF THE OVERALL 
DEVELOPMENT/SITE PLAN TO CONSIDER ALLOWING A PUBLIC 
SIDEWALK IN LIEU OF A PRIVATE TRAIL; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, the horizontal mixed use project called “The District” was approved by Council 
on February 4, 2016 through a Planned Development District rezoning – the overall project 
consists of approximately 40.389 acres of apartments to the west and retail to the east; 

Whereas, the retail property is currently zoned TMED (Temple Medical Education 
District) T5-c, which prohibits drive-through restaurant windows – the original Planned 
Development zoning and accompanying development/site plan included an exception to the 
drive-through prohibition to allow them on three other restaurant lots, however, no drive-
through was approved for Lot 11 and, therefore, the addition of a 4th drive-through within the 
development constitutes as a substantive site plan change requiring Council approval; 

Whereas, the proposed drive-through restaurant will comply with the required conditions 
specified by the Planned Development Ordinance, which states that each restaurant with a 
drive-through must provide at least 150 square feet of outdoor dining space, and therefore Staff 
recommends Council approve the addition of a 4th drive-through within the development; 

Whereas, the Council-approved trail along the drainage channel connecting the apartments 
to South 37th Street was interpreted to meet the Trails Master Plan implementation requirement 
for new TMED development at that location; 

Whereas, Staff believes the sidewalk would provide a greater public benefit than the 
private trail by creating additional pedestrian connectivity to Jaycee Park to the west;  

Whereas, at its December 6, 2016 meeting, the Planning & Zoning Commission 
recommended approval of the amended site plan; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council amends Ordinance No. 2016-4749, for a TMED Planned 
Development District site plan on approximately .85 acres, Lot 11, Block 1, Highline Addition, 
to allow for a drive-through restaurant located at 2110 South 31st Street attached hereto as 
Exhibit A (Restaurant Site Plan). 



2 
 

 
 
Part 2:  The City Council amends the overall development/site plan to consider allowing 

a public sidewalk in lieu of a private trail, and more particularly described in the site plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit B (Proposed Sidewalk Exhibit) with the following conditions:  

 
 That the sidewalk is 6 feet wide for consistency with: 

1. The other Scott Boulevard sidewalk required by the developer; and  
2. The Trails Master Plan minimum width. 

 
 That the length of the sidewalk extends to either: 

1. The drainage channel per Exhibit B; or 
2. As far west as the sidewalk can be extended with the estimated $100,000 budget 

 The cost of replacing the two driveways at 1850 and 2002 Scott Boulevard 
could change based on ADA sloping requirements. 

 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes 

to the City Zoning Map. 
 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 

January, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of January, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(P)

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – Consider adopting an ordinance reapproving the 
extension of the life of City of Temple Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Number One to 
December 31, 2062.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented on first 
reading; with second and final reading on January 19, 2017. 

ITEM SUMMARY: In September 1982, the City Council approved an ordinance creating the City of 
Temple Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone #1 (“TIFRZ#1” or the “Zone”) as authorized by 
Texas Tax Code Chapter 311. The original termination date for TIFRZ#1, as set forth in Ordinance No. 
1457 (attached to this Memorandum), was December 31, 2022.  

In 2010, though Ordinance No. 2010-4404, the City Council extended the life of TIFRZ#1 for an 
additional forty years and set the new termination date at December 31, 2062. Council committed to 
contributing 100% of the City’s taxes levied on the increased value of taxable real property within the 
boundaries of TIFRZ#1 through the new termination date of December 31, 2062. On the same date, 
Council also expanded the boundaries of the Zone to include the Temple Medical and Education 
District.  

Several taxing entities, including Temple College, Elm Creek Watershed Authority, and Temple 
Independent School District agreed to contribute 100% of their taxes levied on the increased value of 
taxable real property within the boundaries of TIFRZ#1 into the City’s tax increment fund through 
December 31, 2062. Bell County agreed to contribute 100% of its taxes through December 31, 2042. 
Elm Creek and Bell County agreed to participate in the expanded area of the Zone, however TISD was 
prohibited by State law from doing so.  



01/19/17 
Item #4(P) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

The Zone benefits significantly from TISD’s participation which currently accounts for approximately 
60% of the revenue generated for the Zone fund. TISD is able to participate at this level because the 
State of Texas recognizes the school district’s participation and fills the gap in property tax funding 
through State funding. The amount of funding received by TISD from the State is dependent upon the 
district’s property tax values. To calculate school district property values, the State Comptroller 
determines the total taxable value of all property in the school district. The total taxable value of property 
is then used to calculate State funding for the district. The higher the total taxable value of property, the 
lower the State funding and vice versa.  

The State recognizes TISD’s participation in TIFRZ#1 when it calculates the total taxable value for the 
district. Once that value is determined, the State then subtracts the “tax increment base” from the total 
taxable value. The tax increment base is the total taxable value of real property taxable by TISD and 
located in the Zone for the year in which the Zone was designated. For our purposes, that year is 1982. 
The tax increment base is then subtracted from the total taxable value of real property to determine the 
“captured appraised value.” The captured appraised value is the “increment” generated by increases 
in real property values occurring since 1982. The captured appraised value is then subtracted from the 
total taxable value and this number sets the new total taxable value for TISD. This lower number 
generates more State funding for the district.  

Without the State’s recognition of TISD’s participation in the Zone, TISD would be unable to contribute 
100% of its taxes levied on the increased value of taxable real property in the Zone. TISD would be 
paying a large sum of its property taxes to the Zone fund without being made whole by the State.  

The process for calculating school district property values, as explained above, is set forth in Texas 
Government Code Section 403.302. This section allows the calculation above to be made for TISD 
through December 31, 2022, which was the original termination date of the Zone.  

In 2011, an amendment to Section 403.302 was passed by the Legislature. The amendment applies 
only to a reinvestment zone created by a municipality that has a population of 70,000 or less and is 
located in a county in which all or part of a military installation is located. Temple’s population in the 
2010 Census was 66,102 and it is located in Bell County where Fort Hood is based.  

The amendment allows the State to continue making TISD whole for its participation in the Zone if “on 
or after January 1, 2017, the municipality adopts an ordinance designating a termination date for the 
zone that is later than the termination date designated in the ordinance creating the zone.” The 
ordinance creating the Zone stated that the Zone would terminate on December 31, 2022. The 2010 
ordinance changed the termination date to 2062. Council has already adopted an ordinance which sets 
forth a termination date later than the termination date designated in the 1982 ordinance. However, to 
meet the requirements of Section 403.302, Council must take a similar action after January 1, 2017. 
For this reason, Staff is requesting that Council reapprove the extension of the life of TIFRZ#1 to 
December 31, 2062. This action should fulfill the requirements of Section 403.302 and continue to allow 
the State to recognize TISD’s participation in the Zone when calculating the district’s State funding.  



01/19/17 
Item #4(P) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

FISCAL IMPACT: TISD’s contribution to the Zone for FY 2016 was $14,753,907 and is estimated to 
be $13,137,164 in FY 2017.  As noted above, approving this ordinance will allow the State to continue 
recognizing TISD participation in the Zone when calculating the district’s State Funding and allow 
TISD’s continued contribution to the Zone beyond 2022. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Ordinance 



 
 1 

 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-4819 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
REAPPROVING THE EXTENSION OF THE LIFE OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 1 TO DECEMBER 31, 
2062; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, in September 1982, the City Council approved an ordinance creating the City of 
Temple Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone #1 (“TIFRZ#1” or the “Zone”) as authorized by 
Texas Tax Code Chapter 311 - The original termination date for TIFRZ#1, as set forth in Ordinance 
No. 1457 was December 31, 2022; 
 

Whereas, in 2010, through Ordinance No. 2010-4404, the City Council extended the life of 
TIFRZ#1 for an additional forty years and set the new termination date at December 31, 2062 – in 
that same Ordinance, Council committed to contributing 100% of the City’s taxes levied on the 
increased value of taxable real property within the boundaries of TIFRZ#1 through the new 
termination date of December 31, 2062; 
 

Whereas, several taxing entities, including Temple College, Elm Creek Watershed Authority, 
and Temple Independent School District agreed to contribute 100% of their taxes levied on the 
increased value of taxable real property within the boundaries of TIFRZ#1 into the City’s tax 
increment fund through December 31, 2062 - Bell County agreed to contribute 100% of its taxes 
through December 31, 2042; 
 

Whereas, the Zone benefits significantly from TISD’s participation which currently accounts 
for approximately 60% of the revenue generated for the Zone fund - TISD is able to participate at this 
level because the State of Texas recognizes the school district’s participation and fills the gap in 
property tax funding through State funding; 

 
Whereas, without the State’s recognition of TISD’s participation in the Zone, TISD would be 

unable to contribute 100% of its taxes levied on the increased value of taxable real property in the 
Zone because TISD would pay a large sum of its property taxes to the Zone fund without being made 
whole by the State;  
 

Whereas, the process for calculating school district property values is set forth in Texas 
Government Code Section 403.302 which allows the calculations to be made for TISD through 
December 31, 2022, which was the original termination date of the Zone;  
 

Whereas, in 2011, an amendment to Section 403.302 was passed by the Legislature which 
applies only to a reinvestment zone created by a municipality that has a population of 70,000 or less 
and is located in a county in which all or part of a military installation is located - Temple’s 
population in the 2010 Census was 66,102 and it is located in Bell County where Fort Hood is based; 

 
 



2 

Whereas, the amendment allows the State to continue making TISD whole for its 
participation in the Zone if “on or after January 1, 2017, the municipality adopts an ordinance 
designating a termination date for the zone that is later than the termination date designated in the 
ordinance creating the zone;”  

Whereas, the original ordinance creating the Zone stated that the Zone would terminate on 
December 31, 2022 and the 2010 ordinance changed the termination date to 2062; 

Whereas, Council has already adopted an ordinance which sets forth a termination date later 
than the termination date designated in the 1982 ordinance, however, to meet the requirements of 
Section 403.302, Council must take a similar action after January 1, 2017; 

Whereas, for this reason, Staff recommends Council reapprove the extension of the life of 
TIFRZ#1 to December 31, 2062 which should fulfill the requirements of Section 403.302 and 
continue to allow the State to recognize TISD’s participation in the Zone when calculating the 
district’s State funding;  

Whereas, the Council finds that reapproving the extension of the life of the TIFRZ#1 is 
feasible and conforms to the Comprehensive Plan of the City, and that this action will promote 
economic development within the City of Temple; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS THAT: 

Part 1: Findings. The statements contained in the preamble of this ordinance are true and 
correct and are adopted as findings of fact hereby. 

Part 2: The City Council reapproves extending the life of the City of Temple Tax Increment 
Financing Reinvestment Zone Number One through December 31, 2062. 

Part 3: Copies to Taxing Units. The City Secretary shall provide a copy of this resolution to 
each taxing unit that taxes real property located in the Zone. 

Part 4: Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

Part 5: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 



3 

Part 6: Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of January, 
2017. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of January, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS     

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 

Item #4(Q) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    
 
Floyd O. Mitchell, Chief of Police 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit an 
application and accept funding through a Body-worn Camera Program through the Criminal Justice 
Division of the Governor’s Office.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Criminal Justice Division, Office of the Governor, will make funding decisions 
for the Body-worn Camera Program. The purpose of the program is to aid municipal police departments 
in establishing or enhancing body worn camera program. Temple Police Department has instituted a 
body-worn camera program in which the cameras were purchased from L3 Mobile-Vision and issued to 
officers. The current storage space on our server is not going to meet capacity since we are currently 
adding three terabytes a month to the server which currently has only 21TB left which does not include a 
backup.   
 
The plan is to add storage and back up capacity for the upcoming year. If awarded the earliest start date 
is March 1, 2017, and all funds may not exceed a 12-month period.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: If awarded the grant, the City would receive $52,848 of the total cost for the extra 
storage and backup for the Body-worn Camera Program of approximately $66,060. There is a required 
match of 20%, approximately $13,212, of the total project cost that can be funded with state seized 
funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution 
  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8521-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT AN 
APPLICATION AND ACCEPT FUNDING THROUGH A BODY-WORN 
CAMERA PROGRAM THROUGH THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE DIVISION OF 
THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Criminal Justice Division, Office of the Governor, will make funding 
decisions for the Body-Worn Camera Program - the purpose of the program is to aid municipal 
police departments in establishing or enhancing a body-worn camera program;  

Whereas, Temple Police Department has instituted a body-worn camera program in 
which the cameras were purchased from L3 Mobile-Vision and issued to officers - the current 
storage space on the Police Department’s server is not going to meet capacity and the plan is to 
add storage and back up capacity for the upcoming year;  

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the City Manager to submit an application 
and accept funding through a Body-Worn Camera Program through the Criminal Justice 
Division of the Governor’s Office; 

Whereas, if awarded the grant, the City would receive $52,848 of the total cost for the 
extra storage and backup for the Body-Worn Camera Program of approximately $66,060 - there 
is a required match of 20%, approximately $13,212, of the total project cost that can be funded 
with state seized funds; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the submission of a grant application to the Body-
Worn Camera Program through the Criminal Justice Division of the Governor’s Office for the 
funding of extra storage and backup for the City’s Body-Worn Camera Program.  

Part 3:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents which may be necessary to apply for this 
grant, and accept any funds that may be received from this grant.  

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 



2 
 

place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW 

Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Parks and Recreation Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a requested exception to the 
Parkland Dedication Fees for North Gate phase 2. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the exception to the Parkland Dedication 
Fees for North Gate Phase 2 in the amount of $ 14,625 ($225 for each of the 65 lots).  Instead of paying 
the fees to the City of Temple, Kiella Real Estate Group would like to apply these fees towards a private 
pocket park which will cost $30,452.74. The difference of $15,827.74 would be split between the 
Developer and Builder. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Kiella Real Estate Group and I met to share their vision of developing a private park 
within phase 2 of North Gate. Staff from the Kiella Group had been to the Houston, Texas area and 
seen playground areas that were more natural in design. After reviewing these photos and the proposed 
drawings of what they were wanting to accomplish, I concurred that this would be a unique opportunity 
to offer the neighborhood an alternative to the traditional playground.   
I am in favor of this for the following reasons: 

• With the addition of Developer and Builder fees, a play area can be built quicker and to a larger
scale as there are other entities that can contribute to the total cost of the project.

• This playground will be less than ½ mile from the new Crossroads Park playground which will
have traditional play elements.

• When this project was approved in 2014, Crossroads Park was not in existence. The bond
election of May 2015 helped create this unique opportunity.

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Request Letter 
Cost Estimates 
Site Plan 
Resolution 



 

 

September 27, 2016  

Kevin Beavers 

2 N. Main St., Suite 201 

Temple, TX 76501 

(254) 298-5690 

 

Cc: Jonathan Graham – City Manager 

       Traci Barnard – Director of Finance 

Dear Kevin, 

West Tanglefoot Development, as the developer of North Gate subdivision, is requesting the 

section 2 park fees to spend on the park within North Gate.  The total amount requested is $14,625 

which represents $225 for the 65 lots in section 2. Based on bids received the total project would cost 

$30,452.74.  Therefore the developer and builder will split the remaining $15,827.74. 

Please see the attached maps, plans and specifications for the project scope. We are excited to 

commence this project.  

Thank you for the consideration.  

Best regards, 

 

John Kiella 

 



 

 

 
Total Cost  $ 30,452.74  

Park fees section 2  $(14,625.00) 

Remaining Cost  $ 15,827.74  

Stylecraft Builder’s portion  $   7,913.87  

West Tanglefoot Development portion  $   7,913.87  



Estimate
Date:

7/13/2016
Estimate #

6106

Name / Address:
Stylecraft Builders, Inc
4090 State HWY 6 South
College Station, TX 77845

Rep

QA

Project

Northgate Park

Signature Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (7.25%)

I accept this proposal and agree for said work to be
performed. I also undestand and agree that the full

amount for this project is due upon completion.

9710 Lark Trail                 P:(254)947-9150
Salado, TX 76571             F:(254)947-3770

www.chicklandscaping.com

Description Qty Rate Total

Chick Landscaping, Inc Irrigation System-Repair and rework existing to
allow for new Park area

1 1,875.00 1,875.00

Labor-remove sod and hauloff 1 750.00 750.00
Hamlin Grass- 5gal 7 21.00 147.00T
Iris - 5gal 3 21.00 63.00T
Lantana - 1gal 4 9.00 36.00T
Salvia Greggii (Red) - 5gal 10 21.00 210.00T
Dwarf Yaupon Holly - 7gal 12 32.00 384.00T
Soft Leaf Yucca - 5gal 1 21.00 21.00T
PRO 5 Weed Barrier 4x250-Granite walkways and planting beds 1,100 0.55 605.00T
PRO 5 Weed Barrier 4x250-Playground area 1,520 0.55 836.00T
6" Concrete curbing with #3 rebar 315 18.00 5,670.00T
Black Mulch-Planting areas 100 6.50 650.00T
Hardwood Mulch 800 5.00 4,000.00T
Crushed Granite-(walkways) 10 85.00 850.00T
River Rock 1/2x1 2 105.00 210.00T
Limestone Block Feature-2x2x5 Limestone Blocks 1 3,000.00 3,000.00T
Railroad tye balance beam 1 450.00 450.00T
Labor-set benches, tables, and signs 1 550.00 550.00
Moss Rock Boulders-assorted sizes mortared in concrete curbing 1 1,125.00 1,125.00T

_____________________________________
$22,755.64

$21,432.00

$1,323.64











1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8522-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN EXCEPTION TO THE PARKLAND 
DEDICATION FEES FOR NORTH GATE PHASE 2; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Kiella Real Estate Group met with the Parks & Recreation Department to share 
its vision of developing a private park within Phase 2 of the North Gate Subdivision; 

Whereas, Kiella Real Estate Group plans to install a playground area that is more natural 
in design and after reviewing the proposed drawings, the Parks & Recreation Department agrees 
that the proposed park would be a unique opportunity to offer the subdivision as an alternative to 
a traditional playground;  

Whereas, Staff recommends Council approve the exception to the Parkland Dedication 
Fees for the North Gate Phase 2 Subdivision, in the amount of $ 14,625 ($225 for each of the 65 
lots);  

Whereas, instead of paying the fees to the City of Temple, Kiella Real Estate Group 
would like to apply these fees towards a private pocket park which will cost $30,452.74 - the 
difference of $15,827.74 would be split between the Developer and Builder of the Subdivision; 
and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

Part 2:  The City Council approves the exception to the Parkland Dedication Fees for the 
North Gate Phase 2 Subdivision in the amount of $14,625 ($225 for each of the 65 lots). 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 



2 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #4(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2016-2017. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2016-2017 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The total amount of budget amendments is $183,735. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

January 19, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-1800-525-2223 Capital < $5,000 / Computer Software 1,600$           
110-0000-452-0455 Administrative Fees / Technology Fee 1,600$           

To allocate technology funds for CS 00023086 MOD with SunGard Public Sector.

110-4000-555-2128 Supplies / Postage 2,958$           
110-4000-555-2110 Supplies / Office Supplies 2,959$           
110-0000-431-0163 Federal Grants / Federal Grants 5,917$           

To appropriate grant revenue and expenditure related to a grant the City received from the 
Texas State Library and Archives Commission through the Inter-Library Loan Program.
Funds will be used for expenses related to lending library materials to other libraries.

561-0000-311-0112 Reserve for Encumbrance - Prior Year 73,802$         
561-5200-535-6907 100223 Capital - Bonds / SH 317 Waterline Relocation 73,802$         

To correct the carry forward entry from FY 16 for an invoice for services performed in FY 16
received on 12/02/2016 after all year end entries were recorded.

561-5200-535-6977 101620 Capital - Bonds / HD Pressure Reducing Valve Improvements 93,091$         
561-5400-535-6956 101199 Capital - Bonds / Pepper Creek WW Line Extension 93,091$         

To appropriate funding for the installation of a pressure reducing valve at the Harley Davidson
tie-in to the City's main water transmission line.

260-3400-531-6315 101440 Capital Building & Grounds / Sidewalk/Curb/Gutter - N. 31st Street Sidewalks 9,325$           
260-0000-445-1995 Other / Reinvestment Zone # 1 Reimbursement 9,325$           

To appropriate additional funding related to contract amendment # 3 with KPA for $4,450,
testing services by Langerman Foster for $1,000, and project shortage of $3,874.50.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 183,735$       183,735$       

Reconciliation
GENERAL FUND

Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 5,257$           
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                    
Taken From Judgments & Damages -                    
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 5,257$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 560,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 560,000$       

Net Balance Council Contingency 565,257$       

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                  
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                    
Taken From Budget Sweep -                    
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                  

1



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

January 19, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Taken From Contingency (14,558)         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 35,442$         

Beginning Compensation Contingency 112,500$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 112,500$       

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 147,942$       

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 28,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 28,300$         

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 28,300$         

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 24,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 24,300$         

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 24,300$         

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Carry forward from Prior Year 52,292           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Taken From Contingency (14,948)         

Net Balance Fed/State Grant Fund Contingency 37,344$         

2



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8523-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2016-2017 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, on the 26th day of August, 2016, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2016-2017 fiscal year; and 

Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2016-2017 City Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council approves amending the 2016-2017 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
 

01/19/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing the annexation of 60.33 acres of land Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, 
Texas, a portion of a 86.91 acre tract conveyed as Tract Four to Roy Skaff, as the Independent Executor 
of the estate of Leonard Apt, in Document No. 2016-00009203, Official Public Records of Real Property, 
Bell County, Texas. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve ordinance as presented in item description and schedule 
second reading for Thursday, February 2, 2017 at 5:00 P.M. in the City Council Chambers. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  WGG Land, LLC filed a petition on November 3, 2016, seeking voluntary annexation 
of 60.33 acres into the City of Temple. Voluntary annexation is governed by Section 43.028 of the 
Texas Local Government Code and applies only to the annexation of an area that is: 
 

1. Less than one-half mile in width, 
2. Contiguous to the annexing municipality, and 
3. Vacant and without residents or on which fewer than three qualified voters reside. 

 
On November 17, 2016, the City Council adopted a resolution directing City staff to create a Municipal 
Service Plan and public hearing schedule to consider the annexation of the subject property.  The two 
public hearings for the Plan were held at City Council on December 15, 2016 and December 16, 2016. 
 
The applicant has indicated that he will request a zoning designation of Planned Development Single 
Family One (PD-SF-1), which will require a site/development plan, once the site plan is ready for 
submittal. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The Municipal Service Plan does not contain any proposal to extend water or 
wastewater services to the area, or any other new physical facilities to serve this tract. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voluntary Annexation Map 
Municipal Service Plan 
Survey  
Field Notes  
Voluntary Annexation Schedule 
Ordinance 
  



VA
LL
EY

M
IS
T
D
R SU

N
 V
A
LL
EY

 D
R

M
IL
A
N
 C
T

VALLEY RANCH DR

D
U
B
O
SE

 R
D

SO
U
TH

W
O
O
D
 D
R PALERMOPKWY

VA
LLE

YM
ISTCT

VALLEYPARKDR

B
O
U
TW

EL
L 
R
D

N
A
PL
ES

D
R

FORRESTER RD
BO

U
TW

EL
L 
RD

D
U
BO

SE
 R
D

SO
U
TH

W
O
O
D
 D
R

WFM93

S 
31

ST
 S
T 
(F
M
 1
74

1)

Valley Ranch Park

Ü

Annexation Case :
X-FY-17-01

Address :
6851 Southwood Dr

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 tlyerly
Date: 11/10/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea



 1 

 CITY OF TEMPLE  
ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN—VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION   

J.C. Wall III and WGG Land, LLC. 
 

For a 60.33 acre tract of land situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, Texas, 
embracing a portion of a called 86.91 acre tract conveyed as Tract Four to Roy Skaff, as the 
Independent Executor of the estate of Leonard Apt, in Document No. 2016-00009203, Official Public 
Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas, and being more particularly described as Exhibit “A” 
(Fields) and depicted as Exhibit “B” (Survey) of the Annexation Ordinance (2016-####).  
 
 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION 
 

1. POLICE PROTECTION 
 

The City will provide protection to the newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other areas of the City, with the same or similar topography, land use and population 
density. 

 
2. FIRE PROTECTION AND AMBULANCE SERVICE 

 
The City will provide fire protection from Stations #3 and #4 to the newly-annexed area at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar 
topography, land use and population density. The City will provide First Responder services through its 
Fire Department and contract for emergency medical services (EMS) with a licensed emergency 
medical services provider. 

 
3. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 

 
Upon payment of any required deposits and the agreement to pay lawful service fees and charges, 
solid waste collection will be provided to the newly-annexed area to the extent that the City has access 
to the area to be serviced.  Private contractors currently providing sanitation collecting services in the 
area may continue to do so for up to two years. 

 
4. MAINTENANCE OF WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES 

 
Any and all water or wastewater facilities owned or maintained by the City at the time of the proposed 
annexation shall continue to be maintained by the City. Any and all water or wastewater facilities which 
may be acquired subsequent to the annexation of the proposed area shall be maintained by the City, 
to the extent of its ownership. Any and all water or wastewater facilities owned by other water or 
wastewater treatment providers shall continue to be allowed to provide those services to the newly-
annexed tract. 

 
5. MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND STREETS 

 
Any and all public roads, streets or alleyways which have been dedicated to the City, or which are 
owned by the City, shall be maintained to the same degree and extent that other roads, streets and 
alleyways are maintained in areas with similar topography, land use and population density. Any and 
all lighting of roads, streets and alleyways which may be positioned in a right-of-way, roadway or utility 



 2 

company easement shall be maintained by the applicable utility company servicing the City, pursuant 
to the rules, regulations and fees of such utility. 

 
6. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS 

 
The City Council is not aware of the existence of any public parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now 
located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such parks, playgrounds or swimming 
pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas to the same extent and degree 
that it maintains parks, playgrounds and swimming pools and other similar areas of the City now 
incorporated in the City. 

 
7. MAINTENANCE OF MUNICIPALLY-OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING OR MUNICIPAL 

SERVICE 
 
The City Council is not aware of the existence of any publicly-owned facility, building or other municipal 
service now located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such publicly-owned facility, 
building or municipal service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas to the 
same extent and degree that it maintains publicly-owned facilities, buildings or municipal services of 
the City now incorporated in the City. 

 
8. INSPECTIONS 
 

The City will provide building inspection services upon approved building permits from the City to the 
newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the 
City with the same or similar topography, land use and population density. 

 
9. CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 

The City will provide code enforcement services to the newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level 
of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar topography, land use 
and population density. 
 

10. MOWING 
 

The City will provide right-of-way mowing services adjacent to the newly-annexed tract at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar 
topography, land use and population density. 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 

1. POLICE PROTECTION, FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
 
The City Council finds and determines it to be unnecessary to acquire or construct any capital 
improvements for the purposes of providing police protection, fire protection, or emergency medical 
services. The City Council finds and determines that it has at the present time adequate facilities to 
provide the same type, kind and level of protection and service which is presently being administered 
to other areas already incorporated in the City with the same or similar topography, land use and 
population density. 

 
2. ROADS AND STREETS 



3 

The City will undertake to provide the same degree of road and street lighting as is provided in areas 
of the same or similar topography, land use and population density within the present corporate limits 
of the City. Maintenance of properly dedicated roads and streets will be consistent with the 
maintenance provided by the City to other roads and streets in areas of similar topography, land use 
and subdivision development of the annexed property. Developers will be required, pursuant to the 
ordinances of the City to provide internal and peripheral streets and to construct those streets in 
accordance with the specifications required by the City for the properly dedicated street. City 
participation in capital expenditures will be in accordance with city policies. 

3. WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES

The City of Temple has water facilities in the West FM 93 right-of way along the north the boundary 
of the voluntary annexation, and proposes no other extension of water facilities to the area, taking 
into consideration the existing land use, and topography and population density relative to areas 
within the existing City Limits which do not have water services. 

Currently, there are no wastewater treatment providers within the boundaries of the voluntary 
annexation and property owners rely on on-site sewage facilities (septic systems). Other areas of 
the City of Temple with similar topography, land use, and population density as those found in the 
boundaries of the voluntary annexation also rely on on-site sewage facilities for wastewater 
infrastructure. For this reason and in accordance with Local Government Code Section 43.056(g), 
the City proposes no extensions of wastewater facilities within the boundaries of the voluntary 
annexation.  

4. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this service plan, a landowner within the newly annexed area 
will not be required to fund capital improvements as necessary for municipal services in a manner 
inconsistent with Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
landowner. 

SPECIFIC FINDINGS 

The City Council finds and determines that this proposed Service Plan will not provide any fewer 
services, and it will not provide a lower level of service in the area proposed to be annexed than were 
in existence in the proposed area at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 

Because of the differing characteristics of topography, land utilization and population density, the 
service levels which may ultimately be provided in the newly annexed area may differ somewhat from 
services provided in other areas of the City. These differences are specifically dictated because of 
differing characteristics of the property and the City will provide the newly-annexed area with the same 
type, kind and quality of service presently enjoyed by the citizens of the City who reside in areas of 
the same or similar topography, land utilization and population density. 

APPROVED ON THIS __________DAY OF _______________, 2016. 

   City of Temple, Texas 



 4 

         ________________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
         ATTEST: 
 
         ________________________________________ 
         City Secretary 









 

SCHEDULE 
Voluntary Annexation – WGG Land, LLC (60.33 acres) 

 
DATE ACTION TIME LIMIT/NOTES 

11-3-16 CITY RECEIVES PETITION of landowner to 

annex area adjacent to city limits; fewer than 

3 qualified voters reside in the area. 

N/A 

11-17-16 

Regular Meeting 

COUNCIL ADOPTS RESOLUTION 

1. Granting petition (14th day after petition 

filed); 

2.  Directing staff to develop service plans; 

and 

3. Setting dates, times, places for public 

hearings 

 

1. Hear and grant or deny petition 

after the 5th day, but on or before the 

30th day after petition is filed.  

2. Council must direct Staff to 

develop the services plan before 

publication of notice of 1st hearing 

required under § 43.063 LGC. 

§ 43.065 LGC 

11-14-16 CITY SECRETARY MAILS NOTICES TO 

1. Property owners  

2. Public and private service entities 

3. Railroads  

31st day before 1st public hearing 

Before the 30th day before the date of 

the first hearing required under 

§ 43.063. § 43.062(b) LGC 

 

12-02-16 CITY SECRETARY SENDS NOTICE TO 

Public school districts located in annexation 

area 

13th day before 1st public hearing 

Within the period prescribed for 

publishing the notice of the 1st 

hearing under § 43.063 LGC 

12-04-16 

 

CITY SECRETARY PUBLISHES NOTICES 

FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS ON ANNEXATION 

Posts notice on City web site 

Publishes notice in Telegram 

11th day before 1st public hearing 

12th day before 2nd public hearing 

Publish hearing notice on or after the 

20th day but before the 10th day 

before the date of the hearing 

§ 43.063(c)LGC 

 

12-14-16 

 

RESIDENTS’ LAST DAY TO FILE PROTEST 

10th day after publication of hearing notice 

Hold one hearing in area proposed for 

annexation if more than 10% of 

adults who are permanent residents 

of area file written protest within 10 

days after publication of notice. 

§ 43.063(b) LGC 

12-15-16 

Regular meeting 

COUNCIL HOLDS 1st PUBLIC HEARING 

Staff presents service plan 

35th day before 1st reading of ordinance 

 

Hold hearings on or after the 40th day 

but before the 20th day before the 

date of institution of annexation 

proceedings with 1st reading of 

ordinance. § 43.063(a) LGC. 

12-16-16 

Special meeting 

COUNCIL HOLDS 2nd PUBLIC HEARING 

Staff presents service plan 

34th day before 1st reading of ordinance 

Hold hearings on or after the 40th day 

but before the 20th day before the 

date of institution of annexation 

proceedings with 1st reading of 

ordinance. LGC § 43.063(a) 

01-19-17 

Regular Meeting 

COUNCIL CONSIDERS ANNEXATION 

ORDINANCE ON 1ST READING & HOLDS 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

First reading institutes proceedings 

for purposes of statutory time limits. 

02-02-17 

Regular Meeting 

COUNCIL CONSIDERS ANNEXATION 

ORDINANCES ON 2ND READING 

14th day from 1st reading 

Complete annexation proceedings 

within 90 days from 1st reading. 

§ 43.064(A) LGC. 

 

  



 

DATE ACTION TIME LIMIT/NOTES 

 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 

PREPARES AMENDED CITY MAP 

1. Amended City limit boundary 

2. Amended City ETJ boundary 

 

 
 CITY SECRETARY SENDS NOTICES TO: 

 

TEXAS SECRETARY OF STATE 

1. Copy of annexation ordinance 

2. Annexation map 

3. Statement that annexation is not involved 

in any litigation 

 

 

Secretary of State certifies to U. S. 

Department of Commerce that 

annexation was valid. 

[No citation found.] 

 VOTER REGISTRAR FOR BELL COUNTY 

1. Map in format compatible with mapping 

format used by registrar’s office. 

Not later than the 30th day after the 

date the change is adopted. 

§ 42.0615 Election Code 

 

The County Election Administrator is 

the Voter Registrar for Bell County. 

 STATE COMPTROLLER, SALES TAX 

DIVISION 

1. Annexation ordinance 

2. Map showing whole municipality  

§ 321.102 Tax Code 

Delivery of notice affects 

implementation of tax collection. 

 BELL COUNTY CLERK 

1. Certified copy of annexation ordinance 

including legal description of annexed area. 

Within 30 days after obtaining 

preclearance for the annexation 

under the Federal Voting Rights Act. 

§ 41.0015 LGC 

 BELL COUNTY CLERK 

1. Certified copy of annexation ordinance 

2. Copy of petition 

For annexation of Sparsely Occupied 

Area on Petition of Area Landowners 

§ 43.028(f) 

 PUC AND FRANCHISEES 

Utility, telecommunication, transportation, 

and EMS providers 

 

 TxDOT 

If state road is affected. 

 

 TEXAS COMMISSION ON FIRE 

PROTECTION 

[No citation found. No information 

found on Commission’s web site.] 

 U. S. BUREAU OF THE CENSUS [Or does SOS notify Bureau of the 

Census?] 

 
 CITY ATTORNEY SENDS INFORMATION 

TO U. S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Map 

3. Service plan 

4. Copies of pertinent laws /regulations 

If annexation affects Corps’ property. 

Army Regulation 405-25 

 



 
 1 

 ORDINANCE NO.     
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, ANNEXING 60.33 ACRES OF 
LAND SITUATED IN THE REDDING ROBERTS SURVEY, ABSTRACT 692, BELL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, A PORTION OF AN 86.91 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED AS 
TRACT FOUR TO ROY SKAFF, AS THE INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR OF THE 
ESTATE OF LEONARD APT, IN DOCUMENT NO. 2016-00009203, OFFICIAL 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF REAL PROPERTY, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, WGG Land, LLC filed a petition on November 3, 2016, seeking voluntary 

annexation of 60.33 acres into the City of Temple - voluntary annexation is governed by Section 
43.028 of the Texas Local Government Code and applies only to the annexation of an area that is 
(1) less than one-half mile in width, (2) contiguous to the annexing municipality, and (3) vacant 
and without residents or on which fewer than three qualified voters reside; 
 

Whereas, on November 17, 2016, the City Council adopted a resolution directing City 
staff to create a Municipal Service Plan and public hearing schedule to consider the annexation of 
the subject property - the two public hearings took place at City Council meetings held on 
December 15, 2016 and December 16, 2016; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize these actions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The property consisting of approximately 60.33 acres of land situated in the 
Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, Texas, a portion of an 86.91 acre tract 
conveyed as Tract Four to Roy Skaff, as the Independent Executor of the estate of Leonard Apt, in 
Document No. 2016-00009203, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas, 
described in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto, is hereby annexed and brought within the corporate 
limits of the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, and is made an integral part thereof. 
 
 Part 3: The service plan submitted in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 
Government Code is hereby approved as part of this ordinance, made a part hereof and attached 
hereto as Exhibit "B." 
 
 Part 4: The official map and boundaries of the City of Temple are hereby amended so as to 
include the annexed Property as part of the City of Temple. 

 
 Part 5: The annexed Property shall be zoned at a future date, in compliance with the Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Temple. 
 



2 

Part 6: The annexed Property shall be included in, and become a part of, the City of Temple 
City Council Election District Number 3. 

Part 7: If the taking of any territory annexed by this ordinance is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid and/or illegal, it shall not affect the balance of the property 
annexed and attempted to be annexed, and that property shall remain as part of the City of Temple, 
Texas. It is the intent of this ordinance that any territory that is not lawful for the City to incorporate 
be excluded from this annexation and that such exclusion be documented by having a qualified 
surveyor correct the property description of the annexed area to conform to the Council's intention 
and to insure that the boundary description closes. 

Part 8: Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

Part 9: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

Part 10:  Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
January, 2017. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second and Final Reading on the 2nd day of February, 
2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
 

01/19/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-04: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing rezoning from Two Family zoning district to Commercial zoning district, Lot 4, 
Block 011, Temple Heights subdivision, located at 1107 South 53rd Street, Temple. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Two Family district (2F) 
to Commercial (C) district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed rezoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan’s (FLUP) Auto-
Urban Commercial District; 

2. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning and automotive-related 
uses;  and 

3. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECCOMMENDATION:  At their December 19, 2016 meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted seven to zero to recommend approval of the proposed 
rezoning from Two-Family district to Commercial district.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, Neil Wisener requests rezoning of one lot (Lot 4, Block 011, Temple 
Heights subdivision) from Two-Family dwelling to Commercial for expansion of existing automotive 
uses. Lot 4 is approximately 0.16 +/- acres (7,000 square feet) in area. This request is the third in the 
immediate area within four years, the last two of which were from the same applicant (Z-FY-16-08 & Z-
FY-12-22).  Both of these previous requests were from the Two-Family district to Commercial zoning 
district.  
 
Most recently, Ordinance 2016-4752 was approved on February 2, 2016 to rezone the property 
immediately to the south of the requested parcel, from Two Family district to Commercial district for 
prospective automotive uses. To date, the property has not been redeveloped. 
 
Additionally, the same applicant, per Ordinance 2012-4518, received approval, for Lots 9-12, Block 
017, Temple Heights subdivision to rezone from Two Family Dwelling district to Commercial district. 
Similarly, both of these zoning cases were requested to accommodate automotive uses, as well. 
 
 
 

 



01/19/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

This current request would convert the last remaining 2F-zoned parcel to C zoning on this block, west 
of the alley, which has been established west of South 51st Street and more specifically west of the 
mid-block alley between South 51st Street and South 53rd Street and continuing westward toward 
Interstate 35. 

The only remaining 2F-zoned properties are the three parcels across from the subject property which 
are currently occupied by single family residential uses. 
A staff initiated neighborhood land use inventory was created during the review of the adjacent zoning 
case Z-FY-16-08.  The inventory has been updated and attached which shows existing uses within a 
one-half to one block radius of the subject property. The inventory continues to suggest that while the 
area was initially developed with detached single family residences in the first-half of the 20th Century, 
the area is transitioning to more intensive commercialized uses, namely automotive related uses. This 
continues to support recent changes to surrounding zoning, the current request is consistent with the 
underlying Future Land Use designation of Auto-Urban Commercial.  

Relative to the requested zoning of commercial, according to UDC Section 4.3.18: 

The Commercial zoning district permits all retail and most commercial land uses including auto 
dealerships with complete servicing facilities, building material sales, light manufacturing and 
heavy machinery sales and storage. The Commercial zoning district is intended to serve 
Citywide or regional service areas. This district should be located along major highways and 
should provide total on-site traffic maneuvering such that traffic entering and existing the facility 
should have room to turn, queue for parking area and park within the confines of the facility. This 
district should be located away from low and medium density residential development.  

While commercial uses, specifically, automotive uses have been established along the adjacent local 
roads, additional commercial uses may complicate the infrastructure inadequacies.  Commercial uses 
are more acceptable along thoroughfares and arterial streets and the subject property is one full block 
removed from West Avenue M, a collector street. While the introduction of additional commercial zoning 
is still consistent with the surrounding zoning, this block of South 53rd street, containing the subject 
property is problematic, since concerns have been identified relative to compliance to the Thoroughfare 
Plan and the adequacy of the existing roadway infrastructure. See additional discussion about the 
Thoroughfare Plan later in this report.     

Although it is anticipated the property will be expanded by the neighboring Wisener Automotive facility, 
there are a number of residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by right in the Commercial 
zoning district. It should be noted that while the Commercial zoning district permits a wide range of 
uses either by right or with a Conditional Use Permit, not all uses can be accommodated on the subject 
property, if they do not meet development standards. The attached use table shows a number of 
permitted and Conditional uses in the “2F” and “C” zoning districts. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 



01/19/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The property is within the Auto-Urban Commercial land use district. The Auto-Urban Commercial district 
is intended for the majority of the areas identified for commercial use, generally concentrated at 
intersections versus strip development along the major roads. As discussed in the Item Description of 
this report, an inventory supporting rezoning efforts from a multi-family district to a Commercial district 
have transitioned the area to commercialized uses, namely those of an automotive nature. This 
transitioning is supported by the underlying FLUM, Auto-Urban Commercial district.  Therefore, the 
requested Commercial zoning district is in compliance with the Auto-Urban Commercial district.   
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The requested property fronts on both South 53rd Street and West Avenue L. Both streets are identified 
in the Thoroughfare Plan as local streets. No additional improvements are anticipated. However, as 
local streets, a minimum 31 feet of pavement is required.  
 
According to the Temple Comprehensive Plan “Choices 08” – Land Use Policy No. 13, which states 
that commercial development should be concentrated in nodes at major intersections and other 
appropriate locations along highway frontages and primary roadways to maintain safe and efficient 
traffic flow on major roads.  This is not being achieved since both South 53rd Street and West Avenue 
L are local streets rather than collector or arterial streets. This deficiency could be problematic 
particularly since the applicant is proposing expansion to an existing automotive use but in general the 
proposed Commercial zoning will introduce the potential for more intensive uses in the neighborhood. 
 
Further, as described in UDC Section 4.3.16, there are retail and service zoning districts, such as the 
Neighborhood Service district, that are intended to be located at the corners of collector and local 
streets which serve neighborhoods. This is further indicative that local streets are not appropriate for 
commercial traffic. 
 
Per the attached table, according to the trip generation values identified in the 9th Edition of the Institute 
of Transportation Engineers manual, the potential peak-hour trip rates associated with automotive uses, 
such as a care center or parts and service center, would likely increase traffic onto a local street, 
compared with a two-family residential use that is typical with the 2F district, such as a duplex. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 6-inch sewer line in the alley between 
South 53rd Street & South 51st Street.  Water is available through an existing 12” water line in South 
53rd Street and a 6” water line in West Avenue L.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan does not identify any trails on either West Avenue L or South 53rd Street. Since 
both roads are identified as local roads, no sidewalks are required. However, existing sidewalk will need 
to remain or be replaced if disturbed by any future development or expansion. 
  
 
 
 
 
 



01/19/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

BUFFERING AND SCREENING: Buffering and screening are required per UDC Section 7.7.4. 
Buffering and screening may consist of evergreen hedges composed of five gallon plants or larger, with 
a planted height of six feet on 36-inch centers.  Buffering may also consist of a six foot to eight foot 
high fence or wall, constructed by any allowed materials per UDC Section 7.7.5, to include but not 
limited to: 

1. Wood,
2. Masonry,
3. Stone or pre-cast concrete

PUBLIC NOTICE: Sixteen notices, representing 11 property owners within 200-feet of the subject 
property were sent notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of 
Tuesday January 10, 2017 at 9:00 AM, six notices in agreement, represented by two property owners 
have been received.  No notices in disagreement have been received. 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on December 8, 2016, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Boundary Survey (Exhibit A) 
Photos 
Maps 
Tables 
Neighborhood Land Use Inventory 
Ord 2016-4752 
Ord 2012-4518 
P&Z Excerpts (Dec 19, 2016) 
Ordinance  



mbaker
Polygon

mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site: Undeveloped – Currently used for Parking  
(2F) 

 

 
 

North: Existing Automotive Uses  
(C) 



 

 
 

East:  Alleyway Behind Subject Property 
 

 
 

East: Alleyway Behind Subject Property (from W. Ave K) 
 

 

Subject 
Property 

Faith Baptist 
Church 



 
 

East:  Existing Residential Uses Associated with Faith Baptist Church  
(Seen from Alley)  

(2F) 
 

 
 

East: Existing Residential Uses Associated with Faith Baptist Church  
(Seen from South 51st Street)  

(2F) 



 
 

West: Existing Residential Uses along South 53rd Street 
(2F) 

 
 

 
 

South: Unoccupied Single-Family Residence 
(C) 



Maps 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 
 

 
 

Location Map 



 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 



 
 

Notification Map 
 
 
 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table (Comparison between 2F & C) 
 

Use Type Two Family (2F) Existing Commercial (C) Proposed 

Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard 
* Same as 2F                                    
* Livestock Auction (CUP) 

Residential Uses 

*  Single Family (Detached 
& Attached)                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
* Family or Group Home                                                         

* Same as 2F                          
*  Duplex                                
*  Townhouse                        
*  Family or Group Home 
(CUP)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Retail & Service Uses 
* None * All Retail & Service Uses                               

* Veterinary Hosp. (Kennels 
(CUP)                                                

Commercial Uses 

*  None                                                                                                                                                           *  All Commercial Uses        
*  Bakery / Confectionary               
*  Cabinet Shop                                 
*  Open Storage of 
furniture,  appliances or 
machinery                                                                                                       

Industrial Uses 

* Temporary Asphalt & 
Concrete Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                                                                         

* Same as 2F                         
*  Laboratory Manufacturing                                                 
* Storage Warehouse           
* Wholesale storage & sales                                                                                                                          

Recreational Uses 
* Park or Playground                                                              * Same as GR                        

* All Alcohol (On Premise 
Consumption) > 75% (CUP)                                              

Vehicle Service Uses 

*  None * Auto Leasing, Rental                    
*  Auto Sales - New & Used           
* Car Wash                                         
* Vehicle Servicing (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses *  None *  With & Without Drive-In 

Overnight Accommodations *  None * Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses *  None * Emergency Vehicle 
Service                                                                                        

 
 
 
 



Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Auto-Urban Commercial 2F  
North Auto-Urban Commercial 2F & C Commercial Uses 

South Auto-Urban Commercial 2F, C & 
GR 

Commercial Uses 

East Auto-Urban Commercial 2F Single Family Uses & 
Existing Businesses 

West Auto-Urban Commercial C Commercial Uses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  NO 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 



Development Standards 
 

 

Current  (2F)  
Detached SF Res 

Proposed (C) 
Non-Res 

Minimum Lot Size 6,000 SF N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 50 N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 100 N/A 

Front Setback 25 Feet 
30 Feet Centerline 

(UDC Sec. 
4.4.4F.d) 

Side Setback 5 Feet 0 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 0 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet 0 Feet 
Max Building Height 2 1/2 Stories * ALH 

* ALH - Any Legal Height not Prohibited by other Laws  
 
 
 
 
 

Peak Hour Trip Rates Table 
 

Peak Hour Trip Rates Table (9th Ed. ITE Manual) 

 
Use Peak Hour Trip Rate 

Single Family Detached Residence 1.00 per DU 
Automotive Care Center 3.11 (Per 1,000 S.F.) 

Automotive Parts & Service Center 4.46 (Per 1,000 S.F.) 
Quick Lubrication Vehicle Stop 5.19 (Per Service Bay) 

 



 

 

 
A = Automotive Use     NR   = Other Non-Residential Use       R = Residential Use   

Existing Neighborhood Land Use Inventory 
 

NR 

Church 

R 

R 

R 
R 
R 

Motel 

Conv. 
Store 

NR 
A 

A 
A 

A 

A 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 
R 

R 
R 
R 
R 

R 
R 

A 

R 

2F to C 
Ord. 2016-4752 

R 
R 

2F to C 
Ord. 2012-4518 









mbaker
Typewritten Text
3 Separate Notices Received





mbaker
Typewritten Text
2 Separate Notices Received





 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2016 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 32: Z-FY-17-04 – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a rezoning from 

Two Family (2F) zoning district to Commercial (C) zoning district, Lot 4, Block 011, Temple 
Heights Subdivision, located at 1107 South 53rd Street, Temple, Texas. 

 
Commissioner Armstrong informed the P&Z Commission he would be abstaining from this item. 
 
Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item is scheduled to go forward to City Council for first 
reading on January 19, 2017 and second reading on February 2, 2017. 
 
Vicinity and aerial maps shown. 
 
This request is for the rezoning of approximately 7,000 square feet, on Lot 4, Block 011, of the Temple 
Heights Subdivision and is being proposed for Commercial “C” zoning. It is anticipated for the 
expansion of the adjacent automotive-related uses. 
 
This is the third rezoning request along South 53rd Street in four years (Ord. No. 2016-4752, and Ord. 
No. 2012-4518, both from the same applicant). 
 
Zoning map shown.  Commercial zoning lies to the north, west, and south, which are primarily 
automotive-related uses established on South 53rd Street. 
 
The Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 4.3.18 does caution that C zoning should be on major 
highways, away from low and/or medium density housing. The request is in compliance. 
 
The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the subject property as Auto-Urban Commercial 
which is intended for areas of commercial use, it does support the C zoning, and does allow 
automotive-related uses. The request is in compliance. 
 
Both water and sewer are available along South 53rd Street as well as the alley to serve the subject 
property. 
 
The Thoroughfare Plan designates South 53rd Street, West Avenue L, and West Avenue K as Local 
Streets.  
 
The Comprehensive Plan “Choices 08”, specifically Land Use Policy No. 13, does identify commercial 
development at major intersections and other appropriate locations along highway frontages. 
 
In accordance with the UDC Section 4.3.16 – Retail and Service uses are better suited for local and 
collector streets. 



 

 
Peak Hour Trip Rates were provided to the Commission, specifically for impacts from automotive-
related uses which are more intensive than 2F dwellings on Local Streets. The request is not in 
compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Existing Land Use inventory for the surrounding area is shown and briefly discussed. 
 
Surrounding properties include existing automotive service uses, zoned C, to the north; vacant single 
family use (Ordinance No. 2016-4752), zoned C, and existing automotive service uses, zoned C, to the 
south; existing single family uses, zoned Two Family (2F), to the west, and existing single family 
residential uses (owned by Faith Baptist Church) fronting on South 51st Street, zoned 2F, to the east. 
 
Comparison chart for allowed and prohibited uses are given for 2F and C. 
 
Current and proposed Development Standards are given. The proposed C zoning would require a 30-
foot centerline for the front setback (UDC Sec. 4.4.4F.d) as opposed to the current zoning of 2F which 
requires a 25-foot front setback. 
 
Per UDC Section 7.7.4 – Buffering and screening is required and may consist of either evergreen 
hedges composed of five-gallon plants or larger, with a planted height of six-feet on 36-inch centers or 
may consist of a six-foot to eight-foot high fence or wall, constructed by any number of allowed 
materials per UDC  Section 7.7.5, such as: 
 

Wood 
Masonry 
Stone or pre-cast concrete 

 
Eighteen notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with six notices 
returned in agreement and zero notices in disagreement. 
 
The request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, is compatible with 
surrounding uses and zoning, and public facilities are available to serve the property. 
 
The request is not in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from Two Family (2F) to Commercial (C). 
 
Chair Roads asked if the property directly south of the subject property is owned or affiliated with 
Caliber Collision. Mr. Baker responded that he was uncertain of that ownership. 
 
Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Neil Wisener, 1107 South 53rd Street, Temple, Texas, stated he was the owner of Wisener Auto 
Clinic. It was originally Frost Automotive with the current building and the subject property. It was 
purchased with the intention of developing onto the existing building and growing the business. 
 



 

Mr. Wisener stated they redesigned the entrance/exit to the building due to equipment 
improvements. The existing connex on the property is being used for tire storage. 
 
There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 3, Z-FY-17-04, and Vice-Chair Fettig made a 
second. 
 
Motion passed:  (7:0:1) 
Commissioner Armstrong abstained; Commissioner Ward absent 
 
Commissioner Armstrong returns and Commissioner Ward arrives to the meeting at 5:54 p.m 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4821 

(Z-FY-17-04) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM TWO FAMILY (2F) ZONING DISTRICT 
TO COMMERCIAL (C) ZONING DISTRICT, LOT 4, BLOCK 011, TEMPLE 
HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 1107 SOUTH 53RD STREET, TEMPLE, 
BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Two Family (2F) zoning district to 
Commercial (C) zoning district on Lot 4, Block 011, Temple Heights subdivision, situated in 
the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, located at 1107 South 53rd Street, as outlined in the 
surveyor’s sketch attached as Exhibit ‘A,’ and field notes attached hereto, and made a part 
hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Two Family (2F) zoning 

district to the Commercial (C) zoning district. 
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this 
ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 

January, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of February, 2017. 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
           

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 



2 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/19/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW; 
 
Dessie Redmond, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING -  Z-FY-17-06:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from the Commercial zoning district to the Multi-Family Two zoning 
district, on 0.928 +/- acres, Lots 1-6, Pt. 7, Eastern Hills Subdivision, located at 715 North 20th Street, 
Temple. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their December 19, 2016 meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted nine to zero to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning 
as presented by staff.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the following compliance factors, staff recommends approval 
for a rezoning from the C zoning district to the MF-2 zoning district: 

1. Surrounding zoning; 
2. Existing multi-family use on the property;  
3. Availability of public facilities to serve the subject property.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The subject property contains .93 +/- acres, (attachments: Surveyor Sketch). The 
property is currently developed with an existing multi-family use (ten units, one-story apartment 
building) and two surface parking areas. There is some vacant space at the north and south portions 
of the subject property. The applicant is proposing to utilize the vacant space to the south for an 
additional one-story, apartment building with six attached units. The additional six units will not be 
attached to the existing ten unit apartment building.  
 
The property was originally platted in 1971 (attachments: Eastern Hills Plat Section I). At that time the 
plat showed the subject property as residential lots. It also shows East Houston Avenue continuing east 
along the north abutting property and East Garfield Avenue continuing along the south abutting 
property. The property was re-platted and zoned Commercial at an unknown date. In 1986, the existing 
10 unit apartment complex was built. The UDC (adopted in 2010) prohibits multi-family use in a C 
zoning district. Therefore, the request for a rezoning to MF-2, which permits multi-family by right, brings 
the subject property’s use into compliance with the UDC zoning requirements.   
 
 
 
 



01/19/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
There is an existing 20 foot wide utility easement that runs west-east through the middle of the property 
which is also shown on the original plat. A portion of the existing apartment building was built within 
this easement (attachment: Existing Easement). This proposal does not include renovation to said 
building and therefore, the applicant is not required to abandon this easement at this time. However, 
this may be a requirement in the future if said building is renovated.  
 
There are other residential and non-residential uses that are permitted in the MF-2 zoning district. The 
proposed MF-2 zoning district is more restrictive than the existing C zoning district. A Use Comparison 
Summary Table is located in the attachments.  
 
To the north is a large, undeveloped, residential parcel of property. The properties to the east are also 
undeveloped, residential properties with the MF-2 zoning district. To the south is a single-family 
residence and to the west is a vacant lot and a single-family residence lot (attachments: Surrounding 
Property & Uses Table).  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan. A table summarizing the 
following discussion is attached: Comprehensive Plan Compliance Summary Table. 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is within the Auto-Urban Residential character district. This character district is 
intended for smaller single-family lots. This rezoning request does not comply with the Auto-Urban 
Residential character district. However, this is an existing multi-family use on the subject property.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property is accessed off of North 20th Street which is designated as a local street in our 
Thoroughfare Plan. A local street requires 50 feet of right-of-way and 31 feet of pavement. Currently, 
there appears to be approximately 35 feet of right-of-way and 20 feet of pavement. Therefore, this 
request does not comply with our Thoroughfare Plan. However, the subject property includes 10 single-
story units and therefore, is considered a low intensity apartment complex.  
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan does not identify any existing or proposed trails on or abutting the subject 
property. Therefore, the Trails Master Plan is not applicable to the subject property.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 12-inch sewer line that runs along North 
20th Street. Water is available to the site through a 2-inch line that runs along the alley between East 
Houston Avenue and East Garfield Avenue. There is also an existing 6-inch water line that runs along 
East Houston Avenue. There are public facilities available to the site and therefore, the request 
complies with the City’s public service capacities. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: A comparison summary table for residential dimensional standards 
in the C & MF-2 zoning districts is located in the attachments (Residential Dimensional Standards 
Comparison Table).  
 
 



01/19/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Twenty-nine property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent notice 
of  the public hearing as required by state law and city ordinance. As of Monday, January 9, 2017, one 
notice has been returned in disagreement of the case. No other letters have been received.  

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on December 8, 2016, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Surveyor Sketch 
Eastern Hills Plat Section 1 
Existing Easement 
Location Map / Aerial 
Zoning Map / Future Land Use Map    
Thoroughfare & Trails Map / Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Use Comparison Summary Table 
Surrounding Properties & Uses Table / Comprehensive Plan Compliance Summary Table / 
Residential Dimensional Standards Comparison Table 
Returned Property Owner Letter 
December 19, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting excerpts 
Ordinance 



Standing on N. 2oth Street looking east onto the existing apartment building. 

Property to the north of subject property (vacant). 

Site Photos

N. 20th Street

N. 20th Street



Property to the south (existing residence).

Property to the west (existing residence). 

Site Photos

Driveway into existing  subject 
property surface area parking lot

N. 20th Street



Surveyor Sketch



Eastern Hills Plat Section I



Existing Easement
1021

1017

1105

1101

1114908

1013

1009

1005
1001

1112

609

902

818

1106

1102

1022

1020

1018
1014

1010

1006

813

903

905

828

828

900

904

715

901

815

901

827

825

826

811

809

1002

1116

900

100ft

–
+

Development Map City of Temple

31.100 97.327 Degrees

hilldell estates

Show search results for hill…

Existing Utility Easement
Existing Building Footprint



Location Map

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R
U

n
i o

n
 P

a
c

i f
i c

 R
R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

E FRENCH AVE

N
 8

TH
 S

T

N
 2

4T
H

 S
T

S 
24

TH
 S

T

LAVENDUSKY DR

E AVE A

N
 6

TH
 S

T

N
 4

TH
 S

T

E AVE B

N
12

TH
ST

N
 1

6T
H

 S
T

N
 1

0T
H

 S
T

E DOWNS AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

N
 2

N
D

 S
T

N
 8

TH
 S

T

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

E AVE C

E IRVIN AVE

E CENTRAL AVE

S 
10

TH
 S

T

S 
12

TH
 S

T

S 
14

TH
 S

T

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E BARTON AVE

S 
16

TH
 S

T N
 3

6T
H

 S
T

N
 1

4T
H

 S
T

S 
6T

H
 S

T

S 
18

TH
 S

T

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

S 
20

TH
 S

T

E ELM AVE

S 
22

N
D

 S
T

N
14

TH
ST

(K
A

TY
ST

)

N
 3

4T
H

 S
T

FO
W

LE
R

 R
D

E FRENCH AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

PR
EW

IT
T

D
R

E CALHOUN AVE

E JACKSON AVE

N
 K

A
TY

 S
T

E JACKSON AVE

E FRENCH AVE

E BARTON AVE

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E CALHOUN AVE

N
 1

4T
H

 S
T

E BARTON AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

E CALHOUN AVE

N
 1

2T
H

 S
T

E ELM AVE

E IRVIN AVE
N

 1
0T

H
 S

T

E FRENCH AVE

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

E CENTRAL AVE

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

FO
W

LE
R

 R
D

E BARTON AVE

E FRENCH AVE

E DOWNS AVE

E ADAMS AVE (HWY 53)

E CENTRAL AVE

Prewitt Park

Baker Field

Ferguson Park

Jackson Park

S 
M

A
R

TI
N

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 D

R

N
 M

A
R

TI
N

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 D

R

E AVE A

Ü

Zoning Case:
Z-FY-16-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 dredmond
Date: 12/14/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

Aerial

N
20

TH
ST

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E GARFIELD AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

1116

715

901

903

904

900

905

1102

1018

1022

1020

1001
1005

1014

1009
1013

1010

1017

901

1006

1106

1021

1002
900

609

Ü

Zoning Case:
Z-FY-16-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 dredmond
Date: 12/14/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea



Zoning Map

Future Land Use Character Map

827
PropID:
105968

821
PropID:
11155

817
PropID:
34947

812
PropID:
108807

814
PropID:
99250

818
PropID:
50967

901
PropID:
114275

902
PropID:
68855

905
PropID:
77546

813
PropID:
55781

807
PropID:
94962

806
PropID:
22728

808
PropID:
27760

810
PropID:
13859

805
PropID:
128212

807
PropID:
127235

809
PropID:
128210

811
PropID:
128211 815

PropID:
39351

901
PropID:
72862

809
PropID:
48009

1116
PropID:
102420

1102
PropID:
117215

1100
PropID:
117214

605
PropID:
80586

609
PropID:
114085

820
PropID:
61555

900
PropID:
61572

1106
PropID:
113998 1108

PropID:
95311 1112

PropID:
113988

1114
PropID:
113996

1118
PropID:
44057

1120
PropID:
49040

1200
PropID:
12026

1002
PropID:
102421

1006
PropID:
102422

1010
PropID:
102423

715
PropID:
71406

1014
PropID:
102424

1018
PropID:
102425

1020
PropID:
102426

1022
PropID:
102427 1102

PropID:
102428

1106
PropID:
102429

1101
PropID:
102430

1105
PropID:
102431

1001
PropID:
114086

1005
PropID:
102432

1009
PropID:
102433

1013
PropID:
102434

1017
PropID:
102435 1021

PropID:
102436

904
PropID:
14063

900
PropID:
73665

828
PropID:
104919

828
PropID:
104920

826
PropID:

3531

824
PropID:
56313

820
PropID:
35524

905
PropID:
96967

908
PropID:
67125

907
PropID:
118046

812
PropID:

9875

903
PropID:
99891

607
PropID:
108613

815
PropID:
68759

813
PropID:
108633

825
PropID:
128873

317-A

319-A

N
20

TH
ST

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E FRENCH AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

C

2F

MF-2

2F

LI

PropID:
27760

ÜPropID:Ü

Date: 12/5/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case:
Z-FY-17-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

GIS products are for informational purposes and

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer

C

Date: 12/14/2016

827

814

818

901

902

810

809

811

815

901

1116

609

820

900

1106
1108

1112
1114

1118

1002
1006

1010

715

1014
1018

1020
1022

1102

1106

1101

1105

1001
1005 1009

1013
1017

1021

904

900
828

828

826

905

908

812

903

607

825

813

E GARFIELD AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

Ü
Zoning Case:
Z-FY-16-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 12/14/2016
 dredmond

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Thoroughfare Plan (no proposed or exisiting trails - Trails Master Plan is N/A).

Utility Map

Date: 12/14/2016

827

814

818

901

902

810

809

811

815

901

1116

609

820

900

1106
1108

1112
1114

1118

1002
1006

1010

715

1014
1018

1020
1022

1102

1106

1101

1105

1001
1005 1009

1013
1017

1021

904

900
828

828

826

905

908

812

903

607

825

813

E GARFIELD AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

Ü
Zoning Case:
Z-FY-16-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 12/14/2016
 dredmond

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP

GF

6

2

8

6

2N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

N
20

TH
ST

E HOUSTON AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

E FRENCH AVE

1116

900

715

820

1106

901

903

1108
1112

811

609

809

1114

813

807

815

902

901

905

805

908

900

904

1118

814

825

812

821

818

827

826

817

828

824

812

828

820

813

1021

1102

605

810

1018

1101

1120

607

1022
1020

1105

1017

1106

1013

1002

1005
1009

815

1006
1010

1001

808

1200

1014

806

905

811

810

907

1100

1102 1202

811

803

802

816

Ü

Zoning Case:
Z-FY-16-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 dredmond
Date: 12/14/2016

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea



Notification Map (200 foot buffer area). 

827
PropID:
105968

821
PropID:
11155

814
PropID:
99250

818
PropID:
50967

901
PropID:
114275

902
PropID:
68855

905
PropID:
77546

807
PropID:
94962808

PropID:
27760

810
PropID:
13859

807
PropID:
127235

809
PropID:
128210

811
PropID:
128211 815

PropID:
39351

901
PropID:
72862

809
PropID:
48009

1116
PropID:
102420

1102
PropID:
117215

1100
PropID:
117214

605
PropID:
80586

609
PropID:
114085

820
PropID:
61555

900
PropID:
61572

1106
PropID:
113998

1108
PropID:
95311

1112
PropID:
113988

1114
PropID:
113996 1118

PropID:
44057

1120
PropID:
49040

1200
PropID:
12026

1002
PropID:
102421

1006
PropID:
102422

1010
PropID:
102423

715
PropID:
71406

1014
PropID:
102424

1018
PropID:
102425

1020
PropID:
102426

1022
PropID:
102427 1102

PropID:
102428

1106
PropID:
102429

1101
PropID:
102430

1105
PropID:
102431

1001
PropID:
114086

1005
PropID:
102432

1009
PropID:
102433

1013
PropID:
102434

1017
PropID:
102435 1021

PropID:
102436

904
PropID:
14063

900
PropID:
73665

828
PropID:
104919

828
PropID:
104920

826
PropID:

3531

824
PropID:
56313

905
PropID:
96967

908
PropID:
67125

907
PropID:
118046

812
PropID:

9875

903
PropID:
99891

607
PropID:
108613

825
PropID:
128873

813
PropID:
108633

815
PropID:
68759

317-A

319-A

N
20

TH
ST

E FRENCH AVE

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E GARFIELD AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

C

2F

MF-2

2F

LI

P
99

810
P ID

Ü810Ü

Date: 12/14/2016
 dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-22

AG TO GR

Address :
6401 N Hwy 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

GIS products are for informational purposes and

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer

C

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R
U

n
i o

n
 P

a
c

i f
i c

 R
R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

E FRENCH AVE

N
 8

TH
 S

T

N
 2

4T
H

 S
T

S 
24

TH
 S

T

LAVENDUSKY DR

E AVE A

N
 6

TH
 S

T

N
 4

TH
 S

T

E AVE B

N
12

TH
ST

N
 1

6T
H

 S
T

N
 1

0T
H

 S
T

E DOWNS AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

N
 2

N
D

 S
T

N
 8

TH
 S

T

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

E AVE C

E IRVIN AVE

E CENTRAL AVE

S 
10

TH
 S

T

S 
12

TH
 S

T

S 
14

TH
 S

T

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E BARTON AVE

S 
16

TH
 S

T N
 3

6T
H

 S
T

N
 1

4T
H

 S
T

S 
6T

H
 S

T

S 
18

TH
 S

T

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

S 
20

TH
 S

T

E ELM AVE

S 
22

N
D

 S
T

N
14

TH
ST

(K
A

TY
ST

)

N
 3

4T
H

 S
T

FO
W

LE
R

 R
D

E FRENCH AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

PR
EW

IT
T

D
R

E CALHOUN AVE

E JACKSON AVE

N
 K

A
TY

 S
T

E JACKSON AVE

E FRENCH AVE

E BARTON AVE

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E CALHOUN AVE

N
 1

4T
H

 S
T

E BARTON AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

E CALHOUN AVE

N
 1

2T
H

 S
T

E ELM AVE

E IRVIN AVE
N

 1
0T

H
 S

T

E FRENCH AVE

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

E CENTRAL AVE

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

FO
W

LE
R

 R
D

E BARTON AVE

E FRENCH AVE

E DOWNS AVE

E ADAMS AVE (HWY 53)

E CENTRAL AVE

Prewitt Park

Baker Field

Ferguson Park

Jackson Park

S 
M

A
R

TI
N

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 D

R

N
 M

A
R

TI
N

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 D

R

E AVE A

Ü

Zoning Case:
Z-FY-16-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 dredmond
Date: 12/14/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R
U

n
i o

n
 P

a
c

i f
i c

 R
R

U
n

i o
n

 P
a

c
i f

i c
 R

R

E FRENCH AVE

N
 8

TH
 S

T

N
 2

4T
H

 S
T

S 
24

TH
 S

T

LAVENDUSKY
DR

E AVE A

N
 6

TH
 S

T

N
 4

TH
 S

T

E AVE B

N
12

TH
ST

N
 1

6T
H

 S
T

N
 1

0T
H

 S
T

E DOWNS AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

N
 2

N
D

 S
T

N
 8

TH
 S

T

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

E AVE C

E IRVIN AVE

E CENTRAL AVE

S 
10

TH
 S

T

S 
12

TH
 S

T

S 
14

TH
 S

T

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E BARTON AVE

S 
16

TH
 S

T N
 3

6T
H

 S
T

N
 1

4T
H

 S
T

S 
6T

H
 S

T

S 
18

TH
 S

T

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

S 
20

TH
 S

T

E ELM AVE

S 
22

N
D

 S
T

N
14

TH
ST

(K
A

TY
ST

)

N
 3

4T
H

 S
T

FO
W

LE
R

 R
D

E FRENCH AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

PR
EW

IT
T

D
R

E CALHOUN AVE

E JACKSON AVE

N
 K

A
TY

 S
T

E JACKSON AVE

E FRENCH AVE

E BARTON AVE

N
 1

8T
H

 S
T

E CALHOUN AVE

N
 1

4T
H

 S
T

E BARTON AVE

E GARFIELD AVE

E CALHOUN AVE

N
 1

2T
H

 S
T

E ELM AVE

E IRVIN AVE
N

 1
0T

H
 S

T

E FRENCH AVE

N
 2

2N
D

 S
T

E CENTRAL AVE

N
 2

0T
H

 S
T

FO
W

LE
R

 R
D

E BARTON AVE

E FRENCH AVE

E DOWNS AVE

E ADAMS AVE (HWY 53)

E CENTRAL AVE

Prewitt Park

Baker Field

Ferguson Park

Jackson Park

S 
M

A
R

TI
N

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 D

R

N
 M

A
R

TI
N

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 D

R

E AVE A

Ü

Zoning Case:
Z-FY-16-06

C to MF-2

Address:
715 N 20th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 dredmond
Date: 12/14/2016

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea

827
PropID:
105968

821
PropID:
11155

814
PropID:
99250

818
PropID:
50967

901
PropID:
114275

902
PropID:
68855

905
PropID:
77546

807
PropID:
94962808

PropID:
27760

810
PropID:
13859

807
PropID:
127235

809
PropID:
128210

811
PropID:
128211 815

PropID:
39351

901
PropID:
72862

809
PropID:
48009

1116
PropID:
102420

1102
PropID:
117215

1100
PropID:
117214

605
PropID:
80586

609
PropID:
114085

820
PropID:
61555

900
PropID:
61572

1106
PropID:
113998

1108
PropID:
95311

1112
PropID:
113988

1114
PropID:
113996 1118

PropID:
44057

1120
PropID:
49040

1200
PropID:
12026

1002
PropID:
102421

1006
PropID:
102422

1010
PropID:
102423

715
PropID:
71406

1014
PropID:
102424

1018
PropID:
102425

1020
PropID:
102426

1022
PropID:
102427 1102

PropID:
102428

1106
PropID:
102429

1101
PropID:
102430

1105
PropID:
102431

1001
PropID:
114086

1005
PropID:
102432

1009
PropID:
102433

1013
PropID:
102434

1017
PropID:
102435 1021

PropID:
102436

904
PropID:
14063

900
PropID:
73665

828
PropID:
104919

828
PropID:
104920

826
PropID:

3531

824
PropID:
56313

905
PropID:
96967

908
PropID:
67125

907
PropID:
118046

812
PropID:

9875

903
PropID:
99891

607
PropID:
108613

825
PropID:
128873

813
PropID:
108633

815
PropID:
68759

317-A

319-A

N
20

TH
ST

E FRENCH AVE

N
18

TH
ST

E GARFIELD AVE

E HOUSTON AVE

C

2F

MF-2

2F

LI

P
99

810
P ID

Ü810Ü

Date: 12/14/2016
dredmond

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-16-22

AG TO GR

Address :
6401 N Hwy 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

GIS products are for informational purposes and

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer

C



Existing Proposed
C MF‐2

Residential Uses
Convent or monastery

Multi‐family (L)
Triplex
Zero lot line dwelling

Agricultural Uses

Farm, ranch, orchard
*Animal shelter
Greenhouse or nursery
Hatchery, poultry

Farm, ranch, orchard

Commercial Uses

Most commercial uses including;
Bakery
Heavy machinery sales
Paint shop

none

Education & Institutional 

Art gallery
Childcare (L)
Halfway house
School, business
Place of worship

Place of worship

Industrial Uses
Laboratory manufacturing
*Laboratory medical, dental

none

Office Uses
Office
Warehouse office

none

Overnight Accommodations Hotel or motel same

Entertainment Uses

*Alcoholic beverage sales for on
premise consumption: beer & wine
only less than 75% revenue from
alcohol
(restaurant)

none

Restaurant Uses
Restaurant (not drive‐in)
Restaurant (drive‐in)

none

Retail & Service Uses
Exercise gym
Antique shop
Discount or department store

*Exercise gym

Transportation Uses
Bus station
Emergency Vehicle service

none

Utility & Service Uses
Radio tower
Fire station

Fire station

Vehicle Service Uses
Auto leasing
Car wash
Fuel Sales (L)

none

Use Comparison Summary Table

*Conditional Use Permit required
(L) Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations



Direction FLUM Zoning Current Land Use
Site Auto‐Urban Residential C apartment building
North Auto‐Urban Residential 2F vacant
South Auto‐Urban Residential 2F single‐family
West Auto‐Urban Residential 2F single‐family/vacant
East  Auto‐Urban Residential 2F/MF‐2 vacant

Surrounding Properties & Uses Table

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 ‐ Future Land Use Map No
CP Map 5.2 ‐ Thoroughfare Plan  No

CP
Goal 4.1 ‐ Growth and development patterns should be consistent 
with the City’s infrastructure and public service capacities

Yes

UDC UDC, Section 5.1 Use Table Yes
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan

Comprehensive Plan Compliance Summary Table

Existing Proposed
C MF‐2

Minimum Lot Size 2,800 sq ft
Minimum Lot Width 60 ft
Minimum Lot Depth 120 ft

Front Setback 25 ft
Side Setback **

Side Setback (corner) 10 ft
Rear Setback **

Max Building Height 2
** = See Section 5.3.3

Residential Dimensional Standards Comparison

multi‐family 
dwelling use not 

permitted



Returned Property Owner Letter - Sherwood



EXCERPTS FROM THE

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING

MONDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2016

ACTION ITEMS

Item 5: Z-FY-17-06 – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a rezoning from the 
Commercial (C) zoning district to the Multi-Family Two (MF-2) zoning district, on 0.928 +/- 
acres, Lots 1-6, Pt. 7, Eastern Hills Subdivision, located at 715 North 20th Street, Temple, 
Texas. 

Ms. Dessie Redmond, Planner, stated this item was scheduled to go forward to City Council for first 
reading on January 19, 2017 and second reading on February 2, 2017. 

The applicant and property owner is Mr. Brad Dusek (who was in attendance) and the site is located in 
the Eastern Hills Subdivision.  

A 10-unit apartment building currently exists on the site and the applicant is requesting a rezoning 
from C to MF-2. 

Site photos are shown. 

Surrounding properties include vacant property to the north and east, and existing residential to the 
south and west.  

The existing building is one story in height with two surface parking lots. There is some vacant space 
within the subject property to the north and south. The proposal is to utilize some of the vacant space 
to the south to construct an additional attached six-unit, one story building, which would not be 
attached to the existing 10-unit building. 

Zoning map is shown. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate the subject property as Auto-Urban Residential 
character. This designation is generally for smaller single family lots so the request is not in 
compliance with this designation. However, an existing multi-family use is currently located on the 
property. 

The property is accessed off of North 20th Street which is designated as a Local Street in the 
Thoroughfare Plan. A Local Street has a right-of-way designation of 50-feet and a 30-foot width of 
pavement. Currently there is approximately 35-feet of right-of-way and approximately 20-feet of 
pavement and therefore, is not compliant with the Thoroughfare Plan. However, the existing and 
proposed units are considered a low intensity apartment complex and do not appear to have created 
any issues to date or are therefore any foreseen issues with the proposal. 

Water and sewer are available to the property. 

December 19, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting excerpts



Use comparison table is shown and briefly described. 

Twenty-nine notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with zero response 
letters returned in agreement and one response letter returned in disagreement of the proposal. 

Staff recommends approval of the request for rezoning from Commercial (C) to Multi-Family Two (MF-
2) based on the following compliance factors:

The surrounding zoning; 
The existing multi-family use on the property; and  
The availability of public facilities to serve the property. 

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Armstrong made a motion to approve Item 5, Z-FY-17-06, and Vice-Chair Fettig made a 
second. 

Motion passed:  (9:0) 

December 19, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting excerpts



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4822 
(Z-FY-17-06) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM THE COMMERCIAL (C) ZONING 
DISTRICT TO THE MULTI-FAMILY TWO (MF-2) ZONING DISTRICT, ON 0.928 
+/- ACRES, LOTS 1-6, PT. 7, EASTERN HILLS SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT 715 
NORTH 20TH STREET, TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from the Commercial (C) zoning district 
to the Multi-Family Two (MF-2) zoning district on 0.928 +/- acres, Lots 1-6, Pt. 7, Eastern 
Hills Subdivision, situated in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, located at 715 North 
20th Street, as outlined in the surveyor’s sketch attached as Exhibit ‘A,’ and field notes 
attached hereto, and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

Part 2:  Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from Commercial (C) zoning district 
to the Multi-Family Two (MF-2) zoning district. 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this 
ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
January, 2017. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of February, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 



2 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/19/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Dessie Redmond, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - A-FY-16-10:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing abandonment and conveyance of the entire 20 foot wide alley in Block 3 of the 
Keaton Addition Subdivision, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the applicant’s requested alley 
abandonment as submitted and described in the item description.   

ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, Wesley Teeters, requests abandonment and conveyance of all of 
the 20 foot wide alley in Block 3 of the Keaton Addition Subdivision—approximately .196 acres. The 
applicant owns all of the property bounding the west side, east side and north end of the alley. The City 
of Temple owns the property on the south end of the alley and has no interest in retaining the alley. If 
the requested sale is approved, Mr. Teeters will own all of Block 3, including the entire alley. Mr. Teeters 
is aware that the terms of the sale would allow construction of buildings within the abandoned alley 
right-of-way due to no existing utility service lines located within the alley. 

Planning staff contacted all utility providers, including the Public Works Department, regarding the 
proposed easement abandonment. All providers and city staff confirmed that the alley may be 
conveyed without reserving utility or drainage easements, as the providers’ responses indicate there 
are no existing public facilities or utilities in the alley and no objections to abandoning the alley because 
it is not needed for other public services or access. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Upon approval, the applicant will purchase the abandoned alley rights-of-way at the 
fair market value of $2,000, as recommended by a 3rd party broker’s opinion.  Proceeds received will 
be deposited into account 110-0000-461-0423, Sale of Land.      

ATTACHMENTS:   
Location Map / Site Photo 
Survey 
Appraisal  
Ordinance 



1/19/17
Regular Agenda

Location Map

Subject property. Standing on N. 31st Street, looking north through the site. 

Site Photos

I-3
5

N. 31st Street

subject property

Temple High 
School



1/19/17
Regular Agenda

Survey



1/19/17
Regular Agenda

Appraisal



1/19/17
Regular Agenda

Ordinance

1

ORDINANCE NO.     

(A-FY-16-10)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING ABANDONMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF THE 
ENTIRE 20 FOOT WIDE ALLEY LOCATED IN BLOCK 3 OF THE KEATON 
ADDITION SUBDIVISION, CITY OF TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; 
DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the applicant, Wesley Teeters, submitted a request for the abandonment and 
conveyance of the 20 foot wide alley that is located in Block 3 of the Keaton Addition 
Subdivision, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, and more particularly described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes; 

Whereas, Wesley Teeters owns all of the property bounding the west side, east side and 
north end of the alley and the City of Temple owns the property on the south end of the alley and 
the City has no interest in acquiring the alley; 

Whereas, the south end of the approximately .196 acre alley terminates at a public utility 
easement that runs parallel to Bray Street and the subject alley is vacant and undeveloped; 

Whereas, Staff has contacted all public and private service providers, including the 
Public Works Department and Fire Department, and confirmed that the alley may be conveyed 
without reserving utility or drainage easements, as the providers’ responses indicate there are no 
existing public facilities or utilities in the alley and no objections to abandoning the alley because it 
is not needed for other public services or access;

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
approve this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT:

Part 1: The City Council abandons the entire 20 foot wide alley that is located in Block 3, 
Keaton Addition Subdivision, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, and more particularly 
described in Exhibit A.

Part 2: As consideration for the conveyance of the property described in Part 1, Wesley 
Teeters shall pay to the City of Temple the fair market value of the alley, in the amount of 
$2,000.

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas, to execute a 
Deed Without Warranty conveying the rights and interests of the City of Temple, Texas to the 
property owner. 



1/19/17
Regular Agenda

Ordinance, continued

2

Part 4: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 19th day of January, 2017. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading and Public Hearing the 2nd day of 
February, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST:      ATTEST: 

Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF BELL  § 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ___________, 2017, by 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas. 

               
       Notary Public, State of Texas 



1/19/17
Regular Agenda

Ordinance, continued



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

 
01/19/17 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-05 (WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT):  Consider 
an ordinance adopting a rezoning from Agricultural to Planned Development-Single Family One 
requiring development/site plan approval, per Unified Development Code Section 3.4, on 15.662 +/- 
acres, 39-lots, 1-block, residential subdivision, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, 
located at 6352 Jupiter Drive. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Due to opposition from surrounding property owners and the denial 
recommendation (6/3) from the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant has withdrawn 
his request for a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to Planned Development Single Family 
One District (PD-SF-1) to allow development of a proposed 39-lot, 1-block, single family residential 
subdivision, located at 6252 Jupiter Drive.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Location map with Aerial  
Zoning/Notification Map 
Request to Withdraw Rezoning  
  



 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
On Jan 3, 2017, at 9:10 AM, BJ Little <blittle@turley-inc.com> wrote: 

Brian, 
  
At this time we do not have a time frame so we would like to withdraw the zoning request.  We will be 
meeting with our client to determine how to move forward. 
  
Thank You, 
  
B.J. Little Manager 
Project Management/ Business Development 
254.773.2400  x 207 
  
TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC. 
301 North 3rd Street 
Temple, TX  76501 
www.turley-inc.com 
 

mailto:blittle@turley-inc.com
http://www.turley-inc.com/


 
 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
 

01/19/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   P-FY-17-03 & A-FY-17-03: Consider adopting resolutions: 

(A) Approving the Final Plat of Santa Fe Plaza West, an 11.007 +/- acre, 9 lot, 3 block, non-
residential subdivision, being a replat which embraces multiple lots within the Original Town of 
Temple subdivision and Moores Railway Addition subdivision plats; 

 
(B) Authorizing abandonment of all or portions of service alleyways originally dedicated within the 

Original Town of Temple and Moore’s Railroad Addition subdivision plats; 
 

(C) Authorizing abandonment of all or portions of public rights-of way originally dedicated as West 
Avenue A, West Avenue B, South 5th Street, South 7th Street, and South 9th Street within the 
Original Town of Temple subdivision plat; and  

 
(D) Authorizing abandonment of all or portions of public rights-of-way originally dedicated as West 

Avenue A, South 9th Street, and South 11th Street within the Moore’s Railway Addition 
subdivision plat. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Santa Fe Plaza West 
and the companion abandonment of public rights-of-way and alleyway as described in the Item 
Description. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their December 19, 2016 meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted eight to zero to recommend approval of the final plat of Santa 
Fe Plaza West.  While it was discussed during the meeting, no separate action was required or taken 
regarding the companion case for the abandonment of street rights-of-way or alleyway. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: All County Surveying, on behalf of the City of Temple has submitted a final plat and 
rights-of-way and alleyway abandonment for the Santa Fe Plaza West, non-residential subdivision plat. 
The plat is comprised of nine lots and three blocks. The subdivision is the first step in the implementation 
of the Santa Fe Plaza Master Plan as well as the redevelopment of this City-owned property. The plat 
is also the first step for the relocation of several key City-related organizations and their administrative 
offices, which include the Temple Chamber of Commerce, Temple Economic Development Corporation 
and the Temple Independent School District. Aside from replatting, it is anticipated that additional plats 
for the remaining segments for the Implementation of the Santa Fe Plaza Master Plan will be 
forthcoming as development warrants. 



01/19/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3  

 
The final plat of Santa Fe Plaza West is a replat, which embraces all of Lots 9 and 10, Block 18, Original 
Town of Temple; a portion of Lot 1 (West 1/2) and all of Lots 11 through 15, Block 25, all of Block 26, 
all of Lots 1 through 9, Block 27, the remainder of Lots 11 through 19, Block 27, the alleys situated in 
said Block 26 and 27, a portion of public roadways known as West Avenue A, West Avenue B, South 
5th Street, South 7th Street, and South 9th Street, Original Town of Temple; and embracing the 
remainder of Lot 1 and Lot 3, and all of Lots 2 and 4, Block 23, all of Lot 1, Lot 11, Lot 12, and Lot 13, 
Block 12, a portion of West Avenue A, and a portion of South 9th Street and South 11th Street, Moore's 
Railway Addition as further described and depicted by Exhibit A.  
 
The companion abandonment request includes rights-of-way abandonment to all or portions of West 
Avenue A, West Avenue B, South 5th, 9th, and 11th Streets, Moores Railway Addition and Original Town 
of Temple, subdivision and partial alleyway abandonment in Blocks 12, Moores Railway Addition and 
Blocks 26 & 27, Original Town of Temple, subdivision as further described and depicted by Exhibit B.     
 
The Development Review Committee reviewed the final plat on November 10, 2016. It was deemed 
administratively complete on December 15, 2016. The 9-lots range in size from the smallest, Lot 1, 
Block 1 (0.152 acre) to Lot 1, Block 3 (5.884 acres). As a non-residential plat and a City-owned plaza, 
no parkland dedication fees are required. 
 
The property is currently zoned Central Area district. The CA district principally addresses development 
in the Central Business District of the City, allowing most commercial, retail and office uses. Maximum 
building height may be any legal limit that other laws and ordinances do not prohibit. 
 
The plat, as proposed, will provide access from the following: 

a) West Avenue A, 
b) West Avenue B, 
c) South 3rd Street, 
d) South 5th Street, 
e) South 7th Street, 
f) South 9th Street, and 
g) South 11th Street 

 
The City Council-approved Master Plan for the Santa Fe Plaza contains sidewalk and other pedestrian 
amenities. Accommodations for the sidewalk and pedestrian amenities will be shown on the building 
plans in conformance to the approved Master Plan.    
 
Sewer is available by 18-inch wastewater lines in both West Avenue A & West Avenue B. Additional 
availability is from several existing utility easements located within public alleyways. Water is available 
through either an existing 12-inch waterline in West Avenue A or an 8-inch waterline in West Avenue 
B.  Additional availability is from a 12-inch waterline in South 11th Street, a 6-inch waterline in South 9th 
Street or an 8-inch waterline in South 5th Street as well as waterlines within several utility easements. 
 
No exceptions to the UDC are needed, since the City of Temple is the property owner, the City Council 
is the final plat approval authority. While item discussion is combined into one staff report, separate 
action is required for the final plat and the abandonments and will be documented by separate 
Resolutions. 

 



01/19/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3  

 
Lastly, fronting on both West Avenue A & West Avenue B, the plat is bordered by an approximately 
0.074 +/- acre (3,250 square feet) parcel, which is currently in the process of being acquired by the 
City. At such time that the parcel is acquired, a replat of the Santa Fe Plaza West subdivision will be 
necessary as well as an abandonment of an existing alleyway and right-of-way to a portion of West 
Avenue B. City Council consideration of the replat and adjacent abandonment is required. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Aerial, Site Plan & Property Photos 
Final Plat & Field Notes (Exhibit A) 
Topo / Utility Plan 
Survey of Abandonments, Individual Survey Sketches & Field Notes (Exhibit B) 
P&Z Excerpts for Final Plat (December 19, 2016) 
Resolutions 
 
 



Aerial, Site Plan & Property Photos 
 

 
 

Aerial Image: Whistle Stop Playground, Santa Fe Depot & Vicinity (CA) 
 

 
 

Site Plan: Santa Fe Plaza Master Plan 
 

BNSF Railyard 

Whistle Stop 
Playground 

Santa Fe Depot. 

W. Ave B 

W. Ave A 

W. Central Ave 

S. 5th St 

S. 9th St 



 
 

Site: Looking East – Intersection of S. 11th Street & W. Ave A (CA) 
 

 
 

Site:  Looking Northwest - Former Ice House Pad Site along W. Ave A (CA) 
 

W. Ave A 

W. Ave A 

S. 11th St 

Santa Fe Depot 

Whistle Stop 
Playground 



 
 

Site: Looking East along W. Ave B in front of Santa Fe Depot (CA) 
 

 
 

Site: Looking North from Picnic Area at Santa Fe Depot toward W. Ave B (CA) 

W. Ave B 

W. Ave B 

Santa Fe Depot 

S. 5th St 



 
 

Site: Looking West from South 3rd Street Overcrossing (CA) 
 

 
 

Site: Looking South along W. Ave A at 0.074 +/- Acre Property which is in the 
process of acquisition by the City which will require Future Replatting (CA) 

W. Ave B 

W. Ave A 

Former Location 
of Skate Park 

Santa Fe Depot 



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

mbaker
Text Box



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

mbaker
Text Box



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

mbaker
Text Box



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

mbaker
Text Box



W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

W

V

1
2
"
 
W

L

1
2
"
 
W

L

1

2

"

 

W

L

12" WL 12" WL

12" WL
12" WL

12" WL 12" WL
12" WL

12" WL
12" WL

12" WL

1
2
"
 W

L

1
2
"
 W

L

6
"
 W

L

6
"
 W

L

6
"
 
W

L

6
"
 
W

L

8
"
 
W

L

8
"
 
W

L

8
"
 
W

L

6
"
 
W

L

1
2

"
 
W

L

1
2
"
 
W

L

1
2

"
 
W

L

1
2
"
 
W

L

1
2
"
 
W

L

1
2
"
 
W

L

1

2

"

 

W

L

1
2
"
 W

L

1
2

"
 
W

L
1

2
"
 
W

L
1
2
"
 
W

L

1
2
"
 
W

L

1
2

"
 
W

L
1
2
"
 
W

L

P
:
\
T

e
m

p
l
e

 
R

e
i
n

v
e

s
t
m

e
n

t
\
2

0
1

4
\
2

0
1

4
-
1

2
6

 
S

a
n

t
a

 
F

e
 
P

l
a

z
a

\
C

A
D

\
B

A
S

E
\
E

X
H

I
B

I
T

\
S

a
n

t
a

 
F

e
 
E

x
i
s
t
 
t
o

p
o

.
d

w
g

SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

Plotted By:

DATE

REVISIONDATE

Plot Date:

 Dec 15,  2016 - 2:16pm

NO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Fabian T. Gomez

R. David Patrick, P.E.

FTG

          Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP 2016

2014-126

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

SANTA FE PLAZA

P-01

01
TOPOGRAPHY / EXISTING AND PROPOSED

UTILITY LAYOUT

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

50 100

N

O

R

T

H

12" W

8" WW

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 11 MOORE'S RAILWAY ADDITION Vol. 115, Pg. 416

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 17 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE Vol. 36, Pg. 640

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 18 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE Vol. 36, Pg. 640

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 19 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE Vol. 36, Pg. 640

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 BLOCK 3 5.884 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 BLOCK 3 5.884 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 BLOCK 3 0.855 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 BLOCK 2 0.447 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 BLOCK 2 0.692 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 BLOCK 2 1.319 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4 BLOCK 2 0.830 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 BLOCK 3 0.419 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 BLOCK 1 0.152 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST AVENUE B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST AVENUE B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 9TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 7TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 11TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST CENTRAL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPUR 290

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURLINGTON NORTHERN & SANTA FE RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK 1 LENGEFELD ADDITION Cab. C, Sl. 264-C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Utility Easement - See Detail 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST AVENUE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
32' Utility & Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
28' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
See Detail 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 1/2 LOT 1, BLOCK 25 "BUSWELL"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Portion of existing West Avenue B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.605 ACRE TO BE DEDICATED AS ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5 BLOCK 2 0.402 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY / PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WASTEWATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT (P.U.E.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WASTEWATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTNG PROPERTY LINE



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHBIIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2016 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 6: P-FY-17-03 – Consider and recommend action on the Final Plat of Santa Fe Plaza West, an 

11.007 +/- acre, a 9 lot, 3 block, non-residential subdivision, being a replat embracing all or 
portions of several lots within blocks 25, 26, 27 & 18, Original Town of Temple, subdivision 
and all or portions of several lots within blocks 12 & 23, Moore's Railway Addition, 
subdivision, as further described by legal description and providing street frontage on West 
Ave A, West Ave B, South 11th, South 9th South 7th & South 5th Streets, Temple, Texas.
  

Mr. Baker stated the applicant is the City of Temple which is being represented by All County 
Surveying. Because the City is the owner, this item is tentatively scheduled to go forward to City 
Council on January 19, 2017. This item will also be matched up with an abandonment request which is 
part of the application. 
 
This is a replat of two existing platted subdivisions (Moore’s Railway Addition and Original Town of 
Temple Subdivision plats). 
 
The final plat was reviewed by the DRC on November 10, 2016 and deemed administratively complete 
on December 15, 2016. 
 
The zoning  for the entire property is Central Area (CA) and proposed as a City-owned plaza. 
 
The replat is the first stage to implementation of the City Council Approved Santa Fe Plaza Master Plan 
and will be the future administrative office sites for: 
 

Temple Chamber of Commerce; 
Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC); and 
Temple Independent School District (TISD). 

 
The plat as proposed does require right-of-way and alleyway abandonment which will be processed by 
a separate application.   
 
Sidewalk and other pedestrian amenities are being proposed and would be shown on the building 
plans which are consistent with City Council Approved Master Plan. 
 
In addition, there is a small parcel (approximately 0.074 +/- acres) in process of being acquired by the 
City. That acquisition will require a replat of this plat (Santa Fe Plaza West Final Plat) and would 
possibly include additional abandonment(s). That replat and abandonment would also go back to City 
Council for final approval authority. 
 



 

Wastewater, sewer and water are available to serve the site; not only along West Avenue A and West 
Avenue B, but the additional sewer lines that are available throughout the subdivision. 
 
No exceptions to the UDC are being requested or identified. 
 
The site plan is shown, along with the current configuration and the proposed final plat. 
 
The current topo/utility plan is shown. 
 
Site photos shown. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the final plat of Santa Fe Plaza West. 
 
A public hearing is not required. 
 
Commissioner Alaniz made a motion to approve Item 6, P-FY-17-03, and Commissioner Ward made a 
second. 
 
Motion passed:  (9:0) 



1 
 

 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8524-R 
 

(PLANNING NO. P-FY-17-03) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF SANTA FE PLAZA WEST, AN 11.007 +/- ACRE, 
9 LOT, 3 BLOCK, NON-RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION, BEING A REPLAT WHICH 
EMBRACES MULTIPLE LOTS WITHIN THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE 
SUBDIVISION AND MOORES RAILWAY ADDITION SUBDIVISION PLATS; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, on November 10, 2016, the Development Review Committee reviewed the proposed 
final plat of Santa Fe Plaza West and deemed it administratively complete on December 15, 2016; 

 
Whereas, the proposed plat is the first step in the implementation of the Downtown Master Plan 

as well as the redevelopment of this City-owned property;  
 
Whereas, a companion abandonment request includes rights-of-way abandonment to all portions 

of West Avenue A, West Avenue B, South 5th, 9th, and 11th Streets, Moores Railway Addition and 
Original Town of Temple subdivisions and partial alleyway abandonment in Blocks 12, Moores Railway 
Addition and Blocks 26 & 27, Original Town of Temple subdivision; 
 

Whereas, water and wastewater service is available in the area of the proposed subdivision;  
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

approve the Final Plat of Santa Fe Plaza West, an 11.007 + /- acre, 9 lot, 3 block, non-residential 
subdivision, being a replat which embraces multiple lots within the Original Town of Temple subdivision 
and Moores Railway Addition subdivision plats;  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and 
factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
Part 2: The City Council approves the Final Plat of Santa Fe Plaza West, an 11.007 + /- acre, 9 

lot, 3 block, non-residential subdivision, being a replat which embraces multiple lots within the Original 
Town of Temple subdivision and Moores Railway Addition subdivision plats. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution was 

passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of January, 2017. 
  
         



2 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 


	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right of way necessary for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an amount not to exceed $352,...
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement with NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC in the amount not to exceed of $42,500 for a Water and Wastewater cost of service study.
	Item #4(O)
	Consent Agenda
	01/19/17
	Item #4(O)
	Consent Agenda
	01/19/17
	Item #4(R)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 1
	UDEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW
	Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Parks and Recreation Director
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  None
	01/19/17
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 1
	ATTACHMENTS:
	01/19/17
	Item #5
	Regular Agenda
	UDEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:U
	Brian Chandler, Director of Planning
	01/19/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	UDEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	01/19/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan:
	01/19/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	01/19/17
	Item #6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 3
	UDEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW;
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 3
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 3
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 1
	UDEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	01/19/17
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	UDEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:U
	Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner
	01/19/17
	Item #10
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 3
	UDEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:U
	Mark Baker, Senior Planner
	Lastly, fronting on both West Avenue A & West Avenue B, the plat is bordered by an approximately 0.074 +/- acre (3,250 square feet) parcel, which is currently in the process of being acquired by the City. At such time that the parcel is acquired, a re...
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	MyGovernment - SCPDC Permit Software Agreement Temple TX 11-10-2016_crt edit 11-17-16 A....pdf
	Sec. 1.  Parties and Purpose
	A. SOFTWARE USE
	B. LICENSE FEE
	SCHEDULE B

	EQUIPMENT SITE, USER NAME, AND
	PERSONAL ACCESS PASSWORD

	NewGen - Temple PSA_ W+WW COS_012017.pdf
	Proposed Scope of Services
	Phase I – Determine Revenue Requirement
	A.  Water Revenue Requirement
	B.  Wastewater Revenue Requirement
	Phase I Deliverables

	Phase II –Design Retail and Wholesale Water and Wastewater Rates
	A. Water Rates
	B. Wastewater Rates
	Phase II Deliverables

	Phase III – Issue Draft and Final Report
	Phase III Deliverables

	Phase IV – Update Cost of Service Model (Optional)
	Project Timing and Fees


	Library -Budget Amendments-Flooring.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	ChildCare Report- 2016.pdf
	Parks and Recreation Services Department
	Child Care Standards Annual Report
	2016
	Inspection Schedule


	North Gate Park request (002).pdf
	Parks Dept escrow funds request
	Park Dept escrow funds tables
	Stylecraft Northgate Park Revised Estimate
	201608040834
	Stylecraft-Temple Park2-D Revised
	Stylecraft-Temple Park3-D Revised

	Santa Fe Plaza West FP - Staff Report Attachments.pdf
	Santa Fe Exist topo-Layout1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Santa Fe Exist topo-Layout1 (Revised) 12162016.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1






